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Designer
Homes

Combining dynamic artistry and proficient engineering, Xpress Group

is in the business of creating masterpieces that adorn skylines, revitalize

lifestyles, and elevate the level of design and management excellence

in property creation. Creating designer homes is the expression of our

ingenuity as trusted builders and dynamism as visionary developers. We
build dreams that shape the path of creative building.
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7 Masterpieces
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Our strong sense of commitment is evident in the way we
build structures and partnerships. As strong and dependable
as our buildings are the relationships we have created through
the years that enhance our capabilities.

Our pledge of service is marked by unswerving integrity,
reliability, and accountability toward our business and the
people we serve. Service that pu® prime value to every facet
of our work, turning each into a masterpiece that speaks of
beauty, vitality, and fineness of living.
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Chinese Courtyard
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Artist’s Impression
Concept Designer: Chan Heng Fai
Architect: Z Architects Ltd
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Chinese
Courtyard

With an east meets west design fusion concept, we envision the
development of a super luxury, extra-sized Chinese courtyard
villa with an Italian design. We will seek a location where it
could perfectly sit in one of Singapore’s best districts with its
approximately 30,000 sq. ft. total build area, and total yard area
of approximately 15,000 to 20,000 sq. ft.
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Property

EFRET

Japan
Hotel Plaza Miyazaki

The Hamilton
Aizuya

Hong Kong Properties
37 apartments
Wyndham Place

Singapore Investments
Southbank SOHO
Arcadia Gardens
Textile Centre
Dakota Residences
North Canal Rd

Eu Tong Sen Street

Singapore Developments

Charlton Residences

SingXpress Mansions

Design, Build & Sell Scheme / DBSS
(Pasir Ris Central)
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North Canal Rd
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Charlton Residences
SingXpress Mansions
&t~ EEMEHE RS
HH

(Pasir Ris Central)



Japan Properties:
Hotel Plaza Miyazaki

HZAEZ% : Hotel Plaza Miyazaki
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Hotel Plaza Miyazaki is conveniently situated in a city in the
Southern part of Japan on Kyushu Island. It is one of the
well-known hotels situated at the center of Miyazaki City, the
second largest city in Kyushu. The hotel is a 10-minute drive
from the Miyazaki Station along Oyodogawa riverside. It has
164 rooms and provides full service amenities including 15
different size banquet rooms, 4 meeting rooms, a river view
sky restaurant / lounge, 2 Japanese restaurants, a karaoke
room, a bar and a lobby lounge. In addition, the hotel has a
natural hot spring spa facility with indoor and outdoor hot
spring baths, sauna and massage service open to staying guests
and day use visitors.

The hotel is a fine retreat for those seeking a calming and
pleasurable experience in the city.
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Japan Properties:
Aizuya
BAESE  §2E

Aizuya is an authentic and traditional Japanese hot spring
inn located at Nasu, Tochigi prefecture, a famous mountain
resort area which is approximately 2 hours drive from Tokyo
downtown. Aizuya has a total of 22 rooms including 2 rooms
with enchanting hot spring open baths. It can accommodate
over 60 guests at one time. Facilities include 2 large hot
spring baths, 2 private hot spring open baths exclusive for use
of staying guests on a charter basis and 2 massage rooms for
female clients only. Satisfying its guests’ gastronomic needs
and wants is a restaurant serving dinner & breakfast all done in
the traditional meticulous and savoury Japanese way. There is
also a souvenir shop where guests can avail of Aizuya private
label items such as Sake, Soba (Japanese noodles), etc.
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Japan Properties:
The Hamilton Sapporo
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HZAZEZ - The Hamilton Sapporo

The Hamilton Sapporo regally sits in Chuo Ward, Sapporo
City, Japan. It is an eight-storey hotel erected over a one-
level basement. Its 103 rooms of various types all cater to its
guests’ diverse needs from business to relaxation to aesthetics.
Serving utmost convenience and care for its guests are the
hotel’s Japanese room, meeting room, haircut salon, Japanese
restaurant and an aesthetics salon.
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Hong Kong:

Investment Properties

e - REYE

aH

.nﬂ- P . . EF:-

-

etV | Y

HAETFIVol. 362, 4 August 2010
RATIE362H(ZT—Z2F )\ AIA)

| .
st smegp TR

The Company has begun building a portfolio of residential
properties in Hong Kong, specifically focused around MTR
stations. We expect these properties to provide substantial
yields after renovation and leasing, as well as longer-term
capital gains.

Recently, Fast Week Magazine took notice of our property
acquisition activities and highlighted the substantial growth
in property valuation we have enjoyed in the short span of
time since we began building our portfolio. Our average rental
yields on this portfolio now exceed 5% per annum. Moreover,
as we continue with our expansion efforts, we are targeting to
increase the number of our apartments in Hong Kong from our
current 37 to 100 as part of our short-term goals.
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Hong Kong:
Investment Properties
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East Week Magazine took notice of our property acquisition activities and
highlighted the substantial growth in property valuation we have enjoyed in
the short span of time since we began building our portfolio.
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Singapore Developments:
Charlton Residences

HIEEZE  Charlton Residences

Artist's Impression
Concept Designer: Chan Heng Fai
Architect: Design Metabolists Chartered Architects

Charlton Residences, previously known as Foh Pin Mansion
is serenely situated in 1 Charlton Road, Singapore 539548
amid green and peaceful surrounds. The district 19 freehold
development is categorized as Cluster Housing with 21 strata
units and is estimated to be completed in the year 2013. The
design incorporates total privacy, vitality, and only the finest
comforts with its contemporary style complemented with a lap
pool, clubhouse, and gym that promote fitness and wellness.
It is where a luxuriously relaxing retreat need not be a rare
occasion but lived out as a gratifying and inspiring lifestyle.
Charlton Residences also offers excellent space and efficient
unit layout for generally bigger families. Fitted with high
quality contemporary interior finishes with branded fittings,
it provides dwellers with maximum style and convenience.
The development is only a 5 min walk to Kovan MRT,
Heartland Mall and Kovan City and a 15 min drive to Orchard
shopping belt and the CBD (central business district) area. Its
accessibility to major expressways, the vicinity it shares with
various amenities, and its privacy and comfort make it an ideal
residence of choice for families. All these positively indicate
the development’s high potential for good rental yield and
capital appreciation.
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Singapore Developments:
SingXpress Mansions
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K EZE - SingXpress Mansions

SingXpress Mansions breathes city living. Located at 235
Balestier Road, the old Waldorf Mansions was completed in
1991 as an 11-floor apartment. This residential property is
soon to be redeveloped into a modern 20-storey, 50 freehold-
apartment edifice nestled within the vicinity of convenience,
pleasure, and necessities. As it is in close proximity to 2 major
expressways — PIE and CTE - with neighbouring amenities
like shopping centres, supermarkets, food and entertainment
establishments, as well as prestigious schools such as Hong
Wen School, St Joseph’s Institution (junior) and Bendemeer
Secondary School, SingXpress Mansions brings people to
optimum city living and beyond.

A 20-storey luxurious condominium project to be built in
excess of 50 apartments.

SingXpress Mansions {iZ 2 235 Balestier Road + IR it i B R
—MN—F%K BRIIEBNABEERE - LEXEEREL
BERR—EES20E - HESOEKAEREMNRRIICDE
R o SingXpress Mansionsth & 7| - UK & B # & HE 3L 7 R
R ESAMAEESERE - PIERCTE » AT RENEY T
O BRETE  EBRMIRESH—EER - TREEEXER - St
Joseph’s Institution (junior) &z Bendemeer Secondary School % £
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Artist's Impression

Concept Designer: Chan Heng Fai

Architect: Design Metabolists Chartered Architects
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Singapore Developments:
Design, Build & Sell Scheme / DBSS

FANIRESE : %&t - BEMHEREIEE

“we recently won the bid at appoximately S5123.9M for a DBSS project to be developed on a
16.,388.2 sq. m. site in Pasir Ris Central with a maximum permissible Gross Floor Area (GFA)
of 40,970.5 sq. m. (2.5 times plot ratio), targeted to be comprised of 454 apartments.”

MHMIRITRS4123,900,000F M0 T 2 5851 ~ BEMHEFTEIAR @ 518X Pasir Ris

Central 15i116,388.2%F75K « REFIEZEEER40,970.5F7K (25[FMEER) it
£+ EEALAEEELL -
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Concept Designer: Chan Heng Fai BERERETRD « FRIEHE
Architect: AGA Architects Pte Ltd AR © AGA Architects Pte Ltd
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Design, Build & Sell Scheme / DBSS

FANKESE
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DBSS homes are offered for sale under similar eligibility rules
as new HDB (Housing & Development Board) homes. These
conditions include citizenship, age, family nucleus, income
ceiling and past or current ownership in other public or private
property. First-time buyers who are eligible receive cash and
financing subsidies and are allowed to utilize their pension
scheme to assist with their equity payments. Demand is often
based on an individual’s timing with respect to meeting the
criteria, and property locations are often driven by personal
circumstances and distance to the MRT. As a result HDB flats
have been in some cases up to 10 times “oversubscribed” in the
past and selection goes to a ballot draw.

SingXpress embarked on this venture with success as we
recently won the bid at S$123.9m for a DBSS project to be
developed in a 16,388.2 sq. m. site in Pasir Ris Central with
a maximum permissible Gross Floor Area (GFA) of 40,970.5
sq. m. (2.5 times plot ratio), targeted to be comprised of 454
apartments. The proposed development is a 5 block, 14 storey
DBSS project with 3R, 4R, and 5R unit types inclusive of a
child care centre, car park, and all facilities ancillary to the
development. Project completion period is 48 months with a
lease term of 103 years. The development site is at the heart
of the Pasir Ris town centre with various amenities within its
vicinity including the Pasir Ris Town Park, shopping centres,
prestigious primary and higher level schools, as well as the
Pasir Ris MRT station, the Pasir Ris Bus Interchange, and major
expressways.
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Singapore Investments:

Southbank SOHO
K EZE - Southbank SOHO

Completed in 2009, Southbank — a 99-year leasehold
condominium located at 881-883 North Bridge Road
Singapore — is a place where the serene nature, the sparkling
city, and the culture hub converge. Southbank comprises of
1, 2 & 3 bedrooms and 3 penthouses in a 197-unit residential
block and a separate 60-unit SOHO block. The SOHO units
come in single-storey high ceiling unit or a duplex. As SOHO
units allow dual uses, they are designed with versatility where
the owner has the freedom of styling it for home or work or
both. Its MRT and inner-city location with seamless connection
to Marina Promenade and Kallang River, its breathtaking views
of river to the sea, and its place in a district filled with arts,
academic, sports and cultural richness make it a convenient
lifestyle and nature-based residence for Singaporeans.

RZZTZNFEK - FAE H 994 A Southbank A 5 A4 S5 72 %7 1
# North Bridge Road 881-8835% — —{EB) &5 & BE M) S (b /M@ o
Southbankf —1E{F EAE K —ESOHOKEMEM : FEXREHR
B197MEEN - BE—F  MER=FEMUR=FEEEFEF ;
SOHO A HBGOEEN - SOHOBE M BIEEESEEIER
BAL o ARSOHOERMAIAFLMA « iERETEE - BdEZ « %
FrERAEEMMERRES R AT =4 A — ° Southbank#}
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Singapore Investments:
Properties
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Dakota Residences
Singapore
Dakota Residences
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Arcadia Gardens Textile Centre
Singapore Singapore
Arcadia Gardens Textile Centre
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Business Structure

E S

Property
Development
YRR
[ J
([ [
Real Estate Real Estate
Investment Co-Investing
BHERE BHESERE
[ J [ J
Hospitality Real Estate
S E R Management Services
P53 A B3R AR TS
aN ﬁlg
AN
[ J [
Property Treasury
Trading Investment
YMEEE HERE
Xpress Group will continue to expand its seven BEREEKERBAH AR OELD L
core business divisions:
Property Development MEER
Real Estate Investment EHERE
Real Estate Co-Investing BHEAERE
Hospitality B JE A
Property Trading MEEE
Real Estate Management Services B EE IR RS

Treasury Investment MERE
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BA (AS), MArch, HKIA, RA Authorized Person (Architect)

NEBREE
RER

BSc (Hons) Building Surveying, RICS UK, ABEng, HKIS,
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Our Group’s vision is to build premium designer homes that are synonvmous
with distinctive and exceptional design, quality, and service set to create a
new benchmark in the industry.

FEEZBEBRAEVERRRABSR  RERBRBR-SH
REKE » BOITETERHER -

Chan Heng Fai
Managing Chairman
BRIENE
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Chairman’s Message
ERHS

I am pleased to present to Shareholders our annual report for
the financial year ended 31 March 2011 and the unveiling
of our new vision focusing on property development and
investments.

The Group recorded a net profit attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$45.4 million, compared
to HK$191.0 million for 2010. As at 31 March 2011, the
total equity of the Group was approximately HK$902.4
million, representing an increase of 17% from approximately
HK$772.7 million for the previous year. The net asset value
per share was HK$0.342, an increase of 17% over 31 March
2010 (HK$0.293 per share).

During the year under review, SingXpress Land Ltd (formerly
known as SingXpress Ltd), enhanced its capital base for
its increasing business activities and raised approximately
S$15.8 million through a rights issue of convertible bonds in
November 2010, fully supported by the Group. Following
the conversion of S$3 million convertible bonds by the
Group, the Group increase its equity interest of SingXpress
to approximately 63%. As a result, SingXpress has been
reclassified from an associate to a subsidiary of the Company.

SingXpress has embarked on three development projects in
Singapore, two are freehold properties which were purchased
under a collective (en bloc) sales and the third project is a
major public housing project under the Singapore Housing
Development Board’s (“HDB”) Design, Build and Sell Scheme
(“DBSS”) for the 176,400 sq. ft. of the land.

The first is a site on Charlton Road purchased for S$21.4
million in mid-2010 through Charlton Residences Pte Ltd,
a joint-venture in which SingXpress holds 80% and ACT
Holdings Pte Ltd the remaining 20%. The site of the 21
walk-up apartments will be redeveloped into 21 luxury
quality three-storey houses with lap pool, club house and gym
and underground carpark for estimated completion in 2013.
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Investment Commitment by SingXpress Land Ltd

HK$2.06 billion

(approximately S$332.2 million)

million (S$)

® Other Property Investments

Total Investment

Commitment

HK$2.06 billion

(approximately S$332.2 million)

250 -
225 :
200 [~ !
| HONG KONG | SINGAPORE | SINGAPORE i SINGAPORE
175 — | 30 Apartments | Acquired | Acquired | Secured HDB
1 | One Charlton Road | Waldorf Mansions, | DBSS Project *
150 — | Total: S$7.7 mil | Land: S$21.4 mil | Land: S$21 mil | (Pasir Ris Central)
| (approximately HK$48.5 mil) | Construction: S$14.8 mil | Construction: $$11 mil 3 Land: S$123.9 mil
125 — | | Soft Cost: S$4.7 mil | Soft Cost: S$7.6 mil ! Construction: S$80.15 mil
: | | ! Soft Cost: $$39.95 mil
100 | | Total: S$40.9 mil | Total: $$39.6 mil I
i | (approximately HK$258 mil) | (approximately HK$250 mil)  Total: S$244 mil
75 - | 3 3 (approximately HK$1.5 billion)
50 - ; ‘ ‘
25 |
° O °
0 \ \ \ \
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter 1st Quarter
Jan- Mar 2010 Apr-Jun 2010 Jul-Sep 2010 Oct-Dec 2010 Jan-Mar 2011

* DBSS Project (Pasir Ris Central) was secured on 3 June 2011, after the end of the financial year.
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Chairman’s Message
ERHS

The second site in Balestier was purchased for S$21 million
in November 2010. Formerly known as Waldorf Mansions,
the old tower block will be redeveloped in 2013 into a 20
floor new condominium block of 54 apartments for estimated
completion by 2014.

In early June 2011, SingXpress announced its third site.
SingXpress successfully bid for a major public housing project
under the Singapore HDB’s DBSS. SingXpress’ winning
bid was approximately S$123.9 million (approximately
HK$780.6 million) for the 176,400 sq. ft. site near the Pasir
Ris MRT station and White Sands Shopping Centre at Pasir
Ris Central/ Pasir Ris Drive 1. With a maximum allowable
gross floor area of approximately 441,000 sq. ft., it is intended
to build up to 454 units Designers Home for HDB with a
child care centre, car parks and ancillary.

Our Group'’s vision is to build premium designer homes that
are synonymous with distinctive and exceptional design,
quality, and service set to create a new benchmark in the
industry.

CHAN HENG FAI
Managing Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2011
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Managing Director &
Chief Investment Officer’s Message

ESREE NI REERGE

“I say it’s about precise vision and
sound foresight combined with

making the right decisions and
taking the right actions that leads a
: company to the right course.”
[BRRBREESBERCFIRREE - N EEMATEASTH
- TS E—BARLRKIANERR - |

Chan Tong Wan fR#t:E
Managing Director 2 % 42438

“We are committed to delivering
superior asset growth by making
optimal investment decisions
through rigorous planning, research
and analvsis, whilst always keeping
prudent risk management as an
overriding priority.”

[BIEBERNNE  FRARSMELRERE - —HIMAE
MERERAEEEY BN BEEAEEHEEEE - |

Chan Tung Moe FR#TE
Chief Investment Officer &4 4285
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEIEE &

Financial Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$75.3
million for the year ended 31 March 2011, representing a
decrease of approximately 2.2% as compared to the year
ended 31 March 2010. The decrease in turnover was mainly
due to the net effect of the decrease of the turnover of the
hotels and hospitality division and the increase in rental
income during the year. The profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 was
approximately HK$45.4 million as compared to HK$191.0
million in 2010.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK1.72 cents
when compared with HK8.62 cents in the previous year.

(a) Hotels and Hospitality Division
The turnover of the hotels and hospitality division in
2011 was approximately HK$40.4 million, representing
a decrease of 10.2% from last year. The segment loss
was approximately HK$3.3 million, down 22.7% from
last year.

(b) Securities Trading

Notwithstanding that the investment environment
has begun to improve since 2009, the global financial
markets remained volatile in 2010. The Group was
able to capture the rebound of the market during the
year even though there was a consolidation of the
stock market towards the end of the year. The Group’s
securities business contributed a profit of approximately
HK$15.9 million for 2011 compared to HK$35.8
million for 2010.

(c) Property Investments and Trading

The residential property market in Hong Kong and
Singapore picked up steam in last year. This division
contributed revenues of approximately HK$25.0 million
and net profit of approximately HK$170.8 million to
the Group, including a fair value gain on revaluation
of investment properties of approximately HK$146.7
million compared to HK$190.1 million in 2010.

(d) Other Investments

During the year under review, the Group increased its
equity interest in SingXpress Land Ltd (formerly known
as SingXpress Ltd) (“SingXpress”) from approximately
33% to 63%. SingXpress has been reclassified from
an associate to a subsidiary of the Group. During the
year, the Group share of loss of approximately HK$2.4
million from SingXpress before it was consolidated in
the financial statements of the Group.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group held approximately
30% in RSI International Systems Inc. (“RSI”), a Canada
listed associate of the Group. During the year, the
Group shared a loss of approximately HK$0.1 million
from RSIL.

g dE)=
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FABREABFRL. 728 - EFR8.627(l -

(@) EERRFIH
RZF——F  JBERRFD B2 & EEEL 540,400,000
BT BEFRAD10.2% ° 5 S8E18%) 43,300,000/ 7T
BEFRD22.7% °

(b) HFEH
BEREARRA _TTNFHANS T —TFN2
REMTIBEADE - FA - MEREMSRBRIFLE
KRERS  AEBEDRLEEMSEATRE R_T——
F o AREE 2 BEBHFEBHEFENA15,900,00087T © —F
—ZF R A35,800,0007 7T ©

(00 YEREREH
EBLHIMFE 2 EEMETEREFRLT KD PRANE
B 5 Bt Uk 25 4925,000,0005% 7T K& 4L A %9170,800,00078 7T *
BIEEHREYENFEWZRL146,700,0008 7T ©» —F—
T4 B 4190,100,00078 7T °

(@ HfwkE
REBEER - 2N5&E % H R SingXpress Land Ltd ( A 18
SingXpress Ltd) ([ SingXpress |) Z [ AN # 55 + R 4I33% 3%
JNZE63% © SingXpressE B A S [E —FHEE AR EHHER
BB A R] o 7ESingXpressZ Bk B 4R & 5T ARSE 2 B 5 R F
Al ANEBERF N B SingXpress 2 2 E51E492,400,0007%

cll =

RZZE——F=A=+—0  AKREREINS R EHHE
‘A A)RSI International Systems Inc. ([ RSI ) / #930% #&
& o AEERFRBRSIN G ZEEAI100,00078 7T



Xpress Group Limited $FHREBEBRAE]

28

Management Discussion & Analysis
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding 172,000,000 unlisted warrants. Exercise in full
of such warrants would result in the issue of 172,000,000
additional shares of HK$0.01 each.

As at 31 March 2011, the total equity of the Group was
increased to approximately HK$902.4 million (31 March
2010: HK$772.7 million).

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had bank balances and
cash and pledged bank deposits amounted to approximately
HK$192.6 million (31 March 2010: HK$137.3 million)
mainly dominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars,
Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen. The Group had total
borrowings (including bank overdraft, borrowings, liability
components of convertible bonds and non-convertible
bonds) of approximately HK$736.5 million (31 March 2010:
HK$183.8 million) mainly dominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen. As at 31 March 2011,
the Group’s current ratio was 1.5 (31 March 2010: 1.2) and
had a gearing ratio of 30.3% (31 March 2010: 4.1%), defined as
the ratio of total borrowings less bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits to total assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals for Material Investments

() During the year, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose a property situated in
Canada for a consideration of C$3 million.

(b) During the year, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreements to acquire 8 properties situated
in Singapore for an aggregate consideration of
approximately S$15.9 million.

() During the year, the Group increased its equity interest
in SingXpress Land Ltd (formerly known as SingXpress
Ltd) (“SingXpress”) from approximately 33% to 63%
and SingXpress has been reclassified from an associate
to a subsidiary of the Company.

(d) During the year, the Group via a subsidiary of
SingXpress, entered into sale and purchase agreements
to acquire 6 properties situated in Singapore for an
aggregate consideration of approximately S$10.1
million.

() During the year, the Group via subsidiaries of
SingXpress, entered into sales and purchase agreements
to acquire 41 properties and dispose 7 properties
situated in Hong Kong. The Group retained 34
properties situated in Hong Kong as at 31 March
2011, the consideration for that 34 properties are
approximately HK$55.8 million.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had made capital
commitments of approximately HK$116.6 million (31 March
2010: Nil) for acquisition of properties under development
for sale in Singapore contracted for but not provided in the
financial statements. The Group did not make any capital
commitment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
authorised but not contracted for as at 31 March 2011.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Substantially all the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Canadian
dollars, Japanese Yen and Singapore dollars. Due to the
currency peg of the Hong Kong dollar to the US dollar, the
exchange rate between these two currencies has remained
stable and thus no hedging or other alternatives have been
implemented by the Group. Going forward, the Group may
formulate a foreign currency hedging policy to provide a
reasonable margin of safety in our exposure in Japanese Yen
and Singapore dollars transactions, assets and liabilities.

Human Resources

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis
based on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.
Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance
and performance related bonus. At the end of the reporting
period, there were approximately 110 employees employed
by the Group. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees and persons of the Group.

Pledge of Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s borrowings
of approximately HK$544.0 million were mainly secured by
the investment properties, land and buildings, prepaid lease
payments, properties under development for sale, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and bank deposits of
the Group with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$1,508.2 million.

Scope of Work of Auditors

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position, consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the
related notes for the year ended 31 March 2011 as set out
in the preliminary announcement have been agreed by the
Group’s auditors, Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited,
to the amounts set out in the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011.
The works performed by Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company
Limited in this respect did not constitute an assurance
engagement in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
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Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review Engagements
or Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and consequently no assurance has been expressed by Lo
and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited on the preliminary
announcement.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices of the Listing Rules

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2011 with the Code of
Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
Mr. Da Roza, an independent non-executive director of the
Company, passed away on 16 May 2011. Following Mr.
Da Roza’s demise, the Company has two independent non-
executive directors, which falls below the minimum number
of independent non-executive directors required under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. The Company will use its best
endeavour to appoint a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy
as soon as practicable and will announce the appointment of
a new independent non-executive director as soon as possible
and in any event within the time period set forth in Rule 3.11
of the Listing Rules. Further announcement will be made by
the Company in relation to such appointment in accordance
with the Listing Rules requirements.

Public Float

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

Publication of Results Announcement

The information as required by Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules will be published on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkex.com.hk) and of
the Company (www.xpressgroup.com) in due course.

By Order of the Board
Xpress Group Limited
Chan Tong Wan
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2011

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of the executive
directors Mr. Chan Heng Fai, Mr. Chan Tong Wan, Ms. Chan
Yoke Keow and non-executive director Mr. Fong Kwok Jen as
well as independent non-executive directors Mr. Wong Dor Luk,
Peter and Mr. Wong Tat Keung.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Heng Fai, aged 66, is the Managing Chairman of
the Company. He has been a director of the Company since
September 1992. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall
business development of the Group. His experience and
expertise are in the finance and banking sectors. Since taking
over as Managing Chairman, he has grown the Net Asset
Value of the Group to approximately HK$902 million. Mr.
Chan is the Executive Chairman of SingXpress Land Ltd,
a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chan was formerly (i) the Executive Chairman of China
Gas Holdings Limited (www.chinagasholdings.com.hk),
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited which under Mr. Chan’s guidance and direction, was
restructured from a formerly failing fashion retail company
to become one of a few large participants in the investment,
operation and management of city gas pipeline infrastructure,
distribution of natural gas and LPG to residential, commercial
and industrial users in China; The shares have traded from a
low of HK$0.25 to its current value of HK$3.05 as at June
27,2011 on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; (ii) a director of
Global Med Technologies, Inc (www.globalmedtech.com), a
medical company listed on NASDAQ which engaged in the
design, develop, market and support information management
software products for blood banks, hospitals, centralized
transfusion centers and other healthcare related facilities; (iii)
a director of Skywest Ltd (www.skywest.com.au), a Australia
listed airline company; and (iv) the Chairman and Director
of American Pacific Bank, a commercial bank publicly
listed on NASDAQ from 1988 to 2005. In 1987 Mr. Chan
acquired American Pacific Bank, a US full service commercial
bank, out of bankruptcy. He recapitalized, refocused and
grew the bank’s operations. Under his guidance it became
a US NASDAQ high asset quality bank, with zero loan
losses for over 5 years consecutively before it was ultimately
bought and merged into Riverview Bancorp Inc. Prior to
its acquisition and merger it was ranked #13 by the Seattle
Times “Annual Northwest’s Top 100 Public Companies”,
ranked #6 in Oregon state, and ranking ahead of names such as
Nike, Microsoft, Costco, AT&T Wireless and Amazon.com.
Mr. Chan had restructured over 35 companies in different
industries and countries in the past 40 years. He is the spouse
of Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.
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Mr. Chan Tong Wan, Tony, aged 36, is the Managing
Director of the Company. Mr. Chan is an executive director
of SingXpress Land Ltd. He has over 15 years experience in
investment banking related vocations. Mr. Chan specialized
in Asian equity financial products for two international
investment banking firms, originating and dealing in listed
and over-the-counter structured products. Mr. Chan has also
acted as a securities’ principal in a NASD licensed brokerage
house. Mr. Chan joined the Group as a non-executive
director in January 2000, was appointed as an executive
director in September 2002 and was appointed as Managing
Director in August 2003. As the Managing Director of
Xpress Group Limited, Mr. Chan’s duties include overseeing
Xpress Group Limited group’s principal strategic investments
activities in both publicly listed and private companies. Mr.
Chan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree with honours,
with a Finance specialization, from the University of British
Columbia. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms.
Chan Yoke Keow and the brother of Mr. Chan Tung Moe.

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, aged 62, has been a director of the
Company since January 1992. Ms. Chan is a non-executive
director of SingXpress Land Ltd. She is responsible for the
general administration and financial planning of the Group.
She has over 25 years’ experience in financial management
and administration. Ms. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. She is the spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai.

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, aged 62. Mr. Fong is a director of
Fong Law Corporation, a legal practice. Mr. Fong graduated
from the University of Singapore with a LL.B. (Honours).
In 1976/77 he was awarded the Colombo Plan Award
to attend the Government Legal Officer’s Course in the
United Kingdom. In 1986, he attended the NITA Advocacy
Programme at Harvard Law School. He was appointed to the
Board in 1995. He served as Chairman of the Disciplinary
Committee of SGX-ST from 1995 to 2007 and was member
of the Securities Industry Council between 1992 and
2003. He was also a Council Member of the Law Society
of Singapore from 1990 to 1992. He is a director of several
publicly listed companies.

RGELEE  RFE=T "5 BALRRESHLE -REEAR
SingXpress Land Ltd 2 F1TEE « IR E RITIERE T(E 7 B
BE+RAFLR - MEEEMEBRIEERITARER - EMA
EEMzBRASRIER  FREREE LRSI ZEBIEE
mh o BRI A TNEANASDEHEE S TTERESFEEA » RAER
—EETF—AMAREELEIRTESE R _FNA
BZARNTEE  WRZZE=—F ) \AEZEAESHLIE -
EERRERARARZESALE RAEZBEBRERER
REBERARNAHA LT RMARR Z EEHAILEED) o R
S HE A B 55 K& University of British Columbiaf & (482 )&+
BA - FEoR - BFAREBSERREBL LT 2R TFUERS
RAEEZ LR -

RERZL  BFEAS+TI BE- MW ZF—AREERRFIE
£ o fRZ 1A SingXpress Land LtdZ IEHITES - R T BEAX
EEAFTHEVERE - KaB —+HF 2 HHERRTH
KE - RMATRESESFFEZGCEE - RIREREEZE
18-

BEEEE - BFEN T 5% o BS54 AFong Law Corporation
EMBEBACES - BEEEZRIINKE KRS - EHER
B(EE)BL BN - R—NER/ELF - %S Colombo
Plan Award 2| R BUE BT AEA BRE o BR—N/URE @ &
7 Harvard Law School # {& NITA (National Institute of Trial
Advocates) JEERERIE c BN —NNAFEZENMAERS -
BR—NMNAFE_STHFHENINEI SR GMLELZES
ZERRR—NAN_FE_ZZ=FHEFINRESFETZES
8 o BN —NNEFE—NNZ=F BLaw Society of Singapore
ZEE - WIRBE LA AR ZES -



—H R

Annual Report 2011

33

Directors & Management Profile

EFENEBASEN

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter, aged 69, has over 32 years
experience in the fashion industry including distribution,
sourcing, overseeing manufacturing and exporting to
international clients in France, the United Kingdom, Germany
and the United States. Mr. Wong was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in September 1998.

Mr. Wong Tat Keung, aged 40, has more than 15 years of
audit, taxation, accounting and business advisory experience.
Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in December 2009. Mr. Wong is an
independent non-executive director of SingXpress Land Ltd.
From 2006 to February 2010, he was the proprietor of Aston
Wong & Co., Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong
Kong. Since January 2010, he has been a director of his own
corporate practice namely Aston Wong CPA Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Tung Moe, aged 33, the Chief Investment Officer
of the Company, is responsible for the overall management
of the Investment Division of the Group. Mr. Chan is a non-
executive director of SingXpress Land Ltd. Previously, Mr.
Chan was an Executive Director of the Company and the
Chief Executive Officer of Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress
Finance”), Xpress Group’s credit card business and also
has experience in technical and business development in
the finance and technology industries. He holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration with honours, a Master’s
Degree in Electro-Mechanical Engineering with honours and
a Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Science with honours. Mr.
Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke
Keow and the brother of Mr. Chan Tong Wan.

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann, aged 40, is an Executive of the
Group. Ms. Chan is involved with the securities operations.
Ms. Chan was an Executive Director of the Company and has
previous experience with one of the leading banks in Hong
Kong where she was involved in sales and marketing as well
as relationship management for the Regional Securities office.
Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms.
Chan Yoke Keow.
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Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 40, is the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group and responsible for the financial and
management reporting of the Group, including internal
control and policy review, taxation, audit, legal and regulatory
affairs. Mr. Wong is the Chief Financial Officer of SingXpress
Land Ltd, the shares of which are listed on the Singapore
Exchange. He has over 15 years in public accounting,
taxation, and financial consultancy and management in Hong
Kong. He worked with an international accounting firm prior
to joining the Group in 2001. He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Business Administration and is currently practicing as a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute.

Mr. Yuen Ping Man, aged 47, is the joint Company Secretary
and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group and responsible
for the corporate secretarial function and business operations.
Previously, Mr. Yuen was the Chief Operating Officer of
Xpress Finance responsible for compliance, human resource,
operations, sales & marketing, customer service and general
administration of Xpress Finance. Mr. Yuen has over 15
years’ managerial experience in corporate secretarial, business
development, human resources and general administration.
Prior to joining Xpress Finance in June 1997, Mr. Yuen
worked in two listed groups and a financial institution. Mr.
Yuen holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He
is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (UK) and of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, a senior member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Marketing, a professional member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Human Resource Management, a member
of the Hong Kong Securities Institute, the Chartered Institute
of Marketing (UK), the Hong Kong Institute of Purchasing
& Supply and Society of Registered Financial Planners. Mr.
Yuen is also a certified risk planner and a licensed estate
agent.

Mr. Lui Wai Leung, Alan, aged 40, is the Senior Accounting
Manager of the Group. He is responsible for the financial
reporting of the Group and focus on the financing operations,
securities & treasury investment. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration and he joined the Group
in 1997.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates
are set out in Notes 19 and 20 respectively to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 53.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Notes 16 and 18 to the financial
statements, respectively.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Details of movements in the properties under development
for sale of the Group during the year are set out in Note 26 to
the financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 31 March
2011 are set out on page 193.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company
are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves of the
Company are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Chan Heng Fai
Chan Tong Wan
Chan Yoke Keow

Non-Executive Directors:
Fong Kwok Jen

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Da Roza Joao Paulo (demised on 16 May 2011)
Wong Tat Keung

Alternate Director:
Wooldridge Mark Dean (alternate to Fong Kwok Jen)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Fong Kwok Jen retires by rotation
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. Mr. Wong
Dor Luk, Peter will hold office until the 2011 AGM, and
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election. The term
of office of each Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Director is the period up to his retirement
by rotation and each one of them can be re-appointed in
accordance with the above articles.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions

B
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#E

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (a)

AREBREMEIBTZERBR

Number Percentage of
of issued the issued
ordinary share capital
Name of Director Capacity shares held  of the Company %
e 81T EARARE BT
EEpE 55 ZERHE RAEBDHE
Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner 1,043,225,486 39.51
FrRiEME BEmEAA
Held by controlled corporation (Note 1) 18,000,000 0.68
e PANCIES T =N =),
1,061,225,486 40.19
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner 133,950,093 5.07
PREE BEmEAA
Held by controlled corporation (Note 2) 585,800,065 22.18
Pzl N ERA (Hat2)
719,750,158 27.25
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner 7,333,600 0.28
BB 18 EmfEAA
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner 11,325,522 0.43
BR&TE BEmREAA
Wong Dor Luk, Peter Beneficial owner 280,000 0.01
TEK% BEmEAA
Da Roza Joao Paulo Beneficial owner (Note 4) 4,800 0
BEma AMT4)
Held by spouse (Note 3) 360,000 0.01
mBCBRA (A1713)
364,800 0.01
1,800,279,566 68.17
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(@

Share options

Name of Director

EEHR

Chan Heng Fai
BRiENE

Chan Yoke Keow
PR E1E

Chan Tong Wan

Fong Kwok Jen
BPEd1E

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
TEH

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Warrants

Name of Director

EEMR

Chan Heng Fai
BRiENE

Date granted

RHRBH

11.15.2004
5.22.2006
8.6.2010
11.1.2004
11.15.2004
2.18.2009

11.15.2004
5.22.2006

11.15.2004

11.15.2004

5.27.2005

Capacity
%)

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

(b) B
Exercise
price
Exercisable period per share
AT EEHABR BRITEE
HKS$
ABIT
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1583
5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013 0.1534
8.6.2010 -5.8.2013 0.1340
11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1567
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1583
2.18.2009 - 5.8.2013 0.0684
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1583
5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013 0.1534
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1583
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013 0.1583
5.28.2005 - 5.8.2013 0.1469
(o) REESE

Number of

warrants held

iR IR =

gA

172,000,000

Number of
share options
outstanding at

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of

31.3.2011 the Company %
R-ZF——%F
=B=t+—H LR NN
i RATREZ ERITRAE
BRERE ADLt
123,885,800 4.69
49,008,000 1.85
400,000,000 15.15
15,313,500 0.58
35,731,500 1.35
18,376,200 0.70
15,313,500 0.58
5,104,500 0.19
4,594,050 0.17
3,062,700 0.12
2,041,800 0.08
672,431,550 25.46
Percentage of
Number of Issued share
underlying Capital of
shares the Company %
HER 5 EARARE BT
HE BABDE
172,000,000 6.51
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Bonds of HK$100 each of the Company (d A2RAESHEELIBTZES
Percentage of the
Number of issued bond of
Name of Director Capacity issued bond held  the Company %
EARRH
e T BRTES
EEpR %) BEH8E Bok
Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner 403,410 38.19
BRiENE BEanlEBA
Held by controlled corporation (Note 1) 7,200 0.68
Pzl 2 A E1RE (M)
410,610 38.87
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner 134,217 12.71
PREE BREAA
Held by controlled corporation (Note 2) 234,319 22.18
Pzl 2 R E1RE (f522)
368,536 34.89
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner 1,680 0.16
BEPEd1E BmREAA
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner 4,528 0.43
BRATIE BmREAA
Da Roza Joao Paulo Held by spouse (Note 3) 80 0.00
mBECBRA (A173)
785,434 74.35

These shares/bonds are owned by Heng Fai Holdings Limited, in
which Mr. Chan has 100% equity interests.

These shares/bonds are owned by Prime Star Group Co. Ltd., in
which Ms. Chan has 100% equity interests.

These shares/bonds are owned by Ms. Josephina B. Ozorio, the
spouse of Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo.

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo demised on 16 May 2011.

HERAD (EFH BIR S £ A 2 5% 2 Heng Fai Holdings Limited#
5 -

ZERAD (B PR 1A 2 EBA%HE 2 Prime Star Group Co. Ltd. %
5 -

ZER /EFHHEDa Roza Joao Paulo?t 4t 2 BitfBJosephina B. Ozorio
LR °

Da Roza Joao Paulost R = F ——F 1 At/ HEHE -
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Options

Particulars of the Company’s and subsidiary’s share option

schemes are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share

options in issue during the year:

Name of Director

EEpg

Category 1: Directors
£—H EE

Chan Heng Fai
(SRR

Chan Yoke Keow
BREE

Chan Tong Wan
BR&TE

Fong Kwok Jen
EElia

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
&%

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Total for Directors
EEMLEE

Category 2: Employees
and others

FH EEREBAL

Total for employees and others

EENMEMALMIEEE

Total for all categories

B SRR ARG

Date granted

R AH

11.15.2004
5.22.2006
8.6.2010

11.1.2004
11.15.2004
2.18.2009

11.15.2004
5.22.2006

11.15.2004
11.15.2004

5.27.2005

11.15.2004
5.22.2006
4.18.2007
9.14.2010
3.25.2011

Exercisable period

TR

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013
8.6.2010-5.8.2013

11.1.2004 - 5.8.2013
11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
2.18.2009 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013

5.28.2005 - 5.8.2013

11.20.2004 - 5.8.2013
5.22.2006 - 5.8.2013
4.18.2007 -5.8.2013
9.14.2010-9.13.2016
4.1.2012-5.1.2016

BRE

AR N HE AR B B IS BN M TS R M 36

TREBARRNEAZ D BHITHBEMEFS

Exercise
price
per share

BRITEE
HKS$
BT

0.1583
0.1534
0.1340

0.1567
0.1583
0.0684

0.1583
0.1534

0.1583

0.1583

0.1469

0.1583
0.1534
0.2841
0.1400
0.1410

Exercise/

Cancelled/
Outstanding Granted lapse  Outstanding
at during during at
4.1.2010 the year theyear  3.31.2011
R=Z-2F R=Z——§
mA—H FRTE,/ ZA=t-8
W RITE ERBE  FHAX i RITE
123,885,800 - - 123,885,800
49,008,000 - - 49,008,000
- 400,000,000 - 400,000,000
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
35,731,500 - - 35,731,500
18,376,200 - - 18,376,200
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
5,104,500 - - 5,104,500
4,594,050 - - 4,594,050
3,062,700 - - 3,062,700
2,041,800 - - 2,041,800
272,431,550 400,000,000 - 672,431,550
21,336,810 - (81,672) 21,255,138
10,209,000 - - 10,209,000
1,531,350 - (1,531,350) -
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
- 7,500,000 - 7,500,000
33,077,160 10,500,000  (1,613,022) 41,964,138
305,508,710 410,500,000  (1,613,022) 714,395,688
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At 31 March 2011, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 714,395,688, representing 27.05%
of the share of the Company in issue at that date.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those set out in Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2011, according to the register of interest in
shares and underlying shares and short positions kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as
is known to or can be ascertained after reasonable enquiries
by the Directors, the persons (other than the Directors of the
Company or their respective associate) who were interested in
5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company are as

follows:
Name Nature of interest
=t REmHE

Beneficial owner

BEamEAA

Prime Star Group Co., Ltd.

s
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, no person other
than the Directors of the Company whose interests are set
out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief executives’
interests in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the
Company, and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares that was required to be recorded in the register of
interest pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers respectively accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total turnover and purchases.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period are set
out in Note 47 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2011 with the Code
of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). Detailed information
on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 44 to
49 of the Annual Report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
to re-appoint Messrs. Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company

Limited as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN TONG WAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

29 June 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and strives to continually improve on its
governance processes as articulated in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out by the Stock Exchange.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is presently composed
of six members, comprising three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors. The Directors are, collectively and individually,
aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders. The
Directors’ profile are set out on page 31 to 33 of this Annual
Report. The relationship among members of the Board are
also disclosed.

The Board members as at 31 March 2011 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai (Managing Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tong Wan (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”)
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza (demised on 16 May 2011)
Mr. Wong Tat Keung

The Board is responsible for directing the Group to success
and enhancing shareholders’ value by formulating the Group’s
overall strategy, key objectives and policies. The Board
monitors and oversees the operating and financial performance
of the Group pursuant to these objectives.

ERER|E
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R-ZT——FZA=+—8 EFEeXEFINNT :

BITES
BRIEELL(ITER)
BRSERL (BEFRKE)
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To assist the Board in its functions, the Board established and
delegated specific responsibilities to two Board Committees,
namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. The respective roles and responsibilities of each
Board committee, their work and activities are included in this
Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
Following Mr. Da Roza’s demise, the Company has two
independent non-executive directors, which falls below the
minimum number of independent non-executive directors
required under the Listing. The Company will use its best
endeavour to appoint a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy
as soon as practicable within the time period set forth in the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experience and
independent judgment to the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflicts of interest and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive directors
make positive contributions to the orderly management and
effective operation of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s business to the management team.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are segregated
and their positions held by different individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility.
The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to and
overseeing the function of the Board while the Managing
Director is responsible for implementing the Board’s strategy
and managing the Group’s business and operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently one non-executive director and two
independent non-executive directors on the Board. They have
been appointed for a specific term and subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association and thus submit themselves, on a rotation basis,
for re-election by shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 February 1995
and the composition during the year and up to the date of
report is set out as follows:

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza (Chairman) (demised on 16 May 2011)
Mr. Wong Tat Keung

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
formulated in accordance with the requirements of the new
Code on Corporate Governance Practices. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include the review of financial
information, overseeing the financial reporting system and
internal control procedures as well as maintaining a working
relationship with the external auditors.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Audit Committee
met 2 times to review, consider and discuss: the appointment,
scope, plan and fee of the external auditors; the external
auditors’ audit findings covering internal control and risk
management issues; the interim and annual financial results
and statements and other financial reporting matters.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30
September 2005 and the composition during the year and up
to the date of report is set out as follows:

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo

(Chairman) (demised on 16 May 2011)
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
was formulated in accordance with the requirements of the
new Code on Corporate Governance Practices. The primary
objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his associates will participate in
deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the
Chairman and/or the Managing Director/Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during
the year to review matters mainly concerning a review on
remuneration and performance of executive directors and
senior management of the Company, as well as directors’ fees.

FMEES

FHZEERN =

) ZERFNAA=TBEMRL FARBEARSEHR
HALEPR B &S

ZE
@ -

Da Roza Joao Paulost 4
(XE)(RZE——FHAT/SHEH)

FEREE

PR EIE 221

YFNEZB e BAERECDRBENTEEE AT TR ZHES
o HMEZE e AR AR EFMBREABARESER
BREEB2HMEN  UHRUHRHEEER - HFMEZEETA
BERUSBARNEFERABFIBRLARE  BRUEES
HEMEBBALTH2EREREEE 2HM - BREFMESE
EARBRARRREARTZEG FRREE - ANERBE
BEREREEANEREE YRLEBERTHMEZESE
JB o ¥ % 8 & L7 BE B EUR R 2R 8 DA K 3 MR M e 2 i R
ARBEFER, JERREIR TR -

FARTZ-AFHNEZEGERTIERTARFANTEZLSR
BEEENFHERRBENLEEES



Xpress Group Limited FPREBEFRAE

48

Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE EZERZEESRZLETH
MEETINGS

The Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Audit FRN FEEREELLH  BERZEShFHZESgz 2L
Committee and Remuneration Committee meetings during JEIEREHTIOT -
the year are set out below:

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held
HEESBRRE BTEERRE

Audit  Remuneration

Directors Board Committee Committee

= By EREEEY FHESS

Mr. Chan Heng Fai FRIBHE L A 3/3 N/A N/A
TEMA TEA

Mr. Chan Tong Wan PR iB S A 3/3 N/A N/A
TEMA TEA

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow PR EIE 4+ 3/3 N/A 1/1
TEMA

Non-Executive Director FEHITES

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BRI S 3/3 N/A N/A
TEMA TEA

Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHITES

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter Tt 3/3 2/2 1/1
Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Rozaft 4

(demised on 16 May 2011) (RZE——F A A+/NHEHT) 3/3 2/2 1/1
Mr. Wong Tat Keung FEREE(RZZENE

(appointed on 7 December 2009) +-A+tBEZEE) 3/3 2/2 N/A

TEA

Number of meeting held during the year FRETEZRE 3 2 1
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BEECEERS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions ANAFERBFHETESF X HRM—IBFA([H#EF=FRI]) - ElF
by directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less T EMRBIMERI0MAE EMBEITAZZETES X HHNETAE
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for =FRI([1R4ESFA]) SR EIRLETSR ©

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry, all directors have confirmed #/{ELEAEBENE @ 2RESHER  BEREE=T—F=H

compliance with the Code of Conduct throughout the year =+—BIEFERN—EF&EFRF<PH] -
ended 31 March 2011.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries, which has covered major and material
controls in areas of financial, operations, compliance and risk
management of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the accounts of the Group and that the
accounts are issued in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the external auditors
provided the following services to the Group:

EXCHARRREMBARZ AREERR 2B RIEEITFE
e BEBRARRANE X5 ARKREREESTHZE
BREAREE -

EERREZBEEM

EEMANERAELAKBRBEZEE  YERBEEREER
SEHERITIERR -

BB AT &

BEZ——F=-A=+—"BIFE IERBEMCAREER
B ARTS -

HK$’000
FHET
Audit services ZERTE 600
Non-audit services IEZE RS
— Other professional services — HMHZERS 30
Total BET 630
RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS BEALRS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “related parties” under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of these transactions are set out in Note 43
to the financial statements.

AEEBREFTONA N2 A TR WA S ERETTENR T 2B
BAERS | ZEZSFHIBEEANMIEHRRMZE43 -
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B A BE R

EBSMEHBEMBIRAE

LO AND KWONG C.P.A. COMPANY LIMITED

AUDIT + TAX * BUSINESS ADVISORY
To the Members of XPRESS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xpress Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out in pages 52
to 191, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

}REEEERLAAZERE
(EBBEMEL 2HBRQH)
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ESHMBBRARENEME
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B A BE R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2011, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Chi Kei, Ronald

Practising Certificate Number: P04255

Suites 216-218, 2/F., Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong

29 June 2011

BRSRATEFAEREBYBREABSBNREEHNE
TR o FmEERFIORNZBEI N AL - 2R EERREFR
HRMERP B REFAEANFERRAN RS - £ FEZERR
B ZBENEEBEZARRELREEM AR MR EHRRAEH
RRBBES] - ARFHEE NBEZIER - BXIFE R RAFEHFD
BRERKRER BN EEFEEFTMRASTERNGE T
RAEHEFHEETE IR - URFHES IR BRIIHITH -

BPEE  BRAIFESELEEARAEEHNARMNEZESR
REER -

=R

BMRE  GAVBRERCREBBVEREENETEMA A
R ERARIM BEBR - ZT——F=ZA=+—HHESHRR
&k BXEEHEZBIEFEMNSANRSRE  YEEBEEA
AHERDR R ER L RS -

ERSMEEMERAR
BEDEED

[e3=E

HEEBEER © P04255

BE
VET 238 6-85
W DO218216-218F

—E——%7~A=TNR



Xpress Group Limited FPREBEFRAE

52

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2011

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties, net

Administrative expenses

Gain on remeasurement of previously
held interest upon step acquisition of
subsidiaries

Profit from operations
Finance costs
Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

2011 2010
—2——F —E-BF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEE FHxT THET
U zs 5 75,321 77,013
SHE RN (8,052) (9,022)
E7 67,269 67,991
HAb Bl A 5 4,842 22,832
HERAFEF AR
SEEEZ Was 17,660 21,552
BEAFEFABRZEHEEZ
NFEWEE 327 15,193
EHEREMEZ A EKEFE
146,667 190,083
1TERF S (160,846) (88,650)
EFIEZSRENBARE
B AT R 2 W
10,869 -
BERA 86,788 229,001
B A AR 7 (6,405) (4,431)
PaR Nl E (2,498) (2,047)
BRETS B AR 8 77,885 222,523
PSR i 9 (26,603) (31,549)
FERF 51,282 190,974
FEAS -
ViN/NETE 2SN 10 45,417 191,005
FEER R 5,865 (31
51,282 190,974
BRER 11
AR 1.72 cents &1l 8.62 cents Bl

e 1.71 cents 7&1l

8.59 cents /&Il
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2011

e EH SR

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange fluctuation reserve:
Exchange differences arising on
translating of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive income of
associates
Share of reserve of an associate
Realisation of reserves of an associate upon
step acquisition

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FREERA
Hitb 2 EKA
P SR B A
R EGIN R MAEL 2 E X Z5
DIEBE R B R EERA
DME—HEE AR R
FEAWBRER —EH A R R HiE

FEHMEEBA

FESHBARE

S EEmEA (BIR) 48 -

RRABHEBA
FRIE R

2011 2010
—g——% —g-%F
HKS$'000 HKS$’000
FHExT FHET
51,282 190,974
49,863 24,974
529 2,140

3 —
(16,431) -
33,964 27,114
85,246 218,088
78,350 218,119
6,896 (31)
85,246 218,088
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BAEE IR DL 2R

RZE——F=A=+—H

Group Company
PN N
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
22— ZE-Ef ZETAF
=A=+-A =A=+-H mE—H Z—B-—-f <"—B-Bf
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wit THER TER TER TET TER
(Restated)  (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets kRBERE
Property, plant and equipment WE  BERR 16 59,930 52,081 61,783 1,016 1,193
Prepaid lease payments BREERE 17 22,430 22,907 19,162 - -
Investment properties REME 18 1,159,931 742,501 250,506 1,050 1,050
Interests in subsidiaries AIB ARz 19 - - - 4,647 4,647
Interests in associates REE AR ZER 20 2,248 9,110 8,306 - -
Long term deposits Rk - - 14,095 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets EHESREE 21 1,464 1,462 12,178 - -
Goodwill [EES 22 10,544 10,544 10,544 - -
Loan receivables FEER - - 736 - -
1256547 838605 377310 6,713 6,890
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 25 388 409 491 - -
Properties under development for ~ #HEHRFENE
sale 26 138,403 - - - -
Trade and other receivables, B o REMBYEIE - 1
deposits and prepayments EaSSENNE 27 32,742 15,979 22,426 1,257 1,909
Loan receivables FEMER 23 635 926 6,511 - -
Financial assets at fair value through %A EAER
profit or loss LEREE 28 175,417 136,117 102,885 163,649 96,753
Amounts due from subsidiaries MBARIRR 19 - - - 613,730 492,417
Amounts due from associates A UNETYE 20 172 9,528 7,648 - 2,052
Pledged bank deposits BIRRRITFR 24 7,492 3,413 3,973 1,531 -
Bank balances and cash RTEHREES 24 185,071 133,846 56,828 107,330 60,383
540320 300218 200,762 887,497 653,514
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RZE——F=A=+—H

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
and accruals

Bank overdraft

Borrowings

Tax payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to associates

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred taxation
Convertible bonds
Non-convertible bonds

Net assets

RBAE

B REMENFIRAR

EFtER
RITEX
EL
ERTIR
BRIBRRIFIA
FEREE R AR

RBEERE

EERERRBAE

FREBEE
EL
EREBIR
AR ES
AR ES

BEFE
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Group Company
r5E N
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
22— ZE-Ef CZETAF
=A=t—-RA =A=t-H mA-B =B-—F% ZF-%F
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wit TER TER TER TERT TER
(Restated)  (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
29 42,083 101,160 38,514 3,151 2,088
24 86,486 8,274 - 86,273 -
30 216,763 128,457 39,047 62,535 31,029
20,370 18,838 15,421 - -
19 - - - 297,992 273,089
20 515 10 1,387 - -
366,217 256,739 94,369 449,951 306,206
174,103 43,479 106,393 437,546 347,308
1,430,650 882,084 483,703 444,259 354,198
30 327,279 47,105 35,013 - -
33 95,071 62,300 20,955 224 224
31 293 - - - .
32 105,633 - - 105,633 -
528,276 109,405 55,968 105,857 224
902,374 772,679 427,735 338,402 353,974
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BAEE IR DL 2R

RZE——F=A=+—H

Group Company
r5E AN
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010

—2-—-f CB-2f C"EBEAF
=A=+-A =A=+-H mE—H Z—B-—f <"-B-Ef
Notes ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$'000

Wit TER TER TER TERT TER
(Restated)  (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR G
Share capital P AR 35 26,408 26,408 18,371 26,408 26,408
Reserves e 37 843,197 746,271 409,333 311,994 327,566
Equity attributable to Vi UNCIE 2PN
owners of the Company LR 869,605 772,679 427,704 338,402 353,974
Non-controlling interests FERER 32,769 - 31 - -
Total equity k] 902,374 772,679 427,735 338,402 353,974

The financial statements on pages 52 to 191 were approved #52Z 1918 VY EHKEDN —E——F A -+HBEHRESS
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June #i) RISHET|Z: - W T EBREEE .
2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Heng Fai Chan Tong Wan
BRiEE BR e E
Managing Chairman Managing Director

BiTLE EFEsE
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At 1 April 2009

Share of other comprehensive
income of associates

Exchange differences arising
on translating of foreign
operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Open offer (Note 35(b))

Issue of consideration shares
(Note 35(c))

Exercise of 2009 Warrants
subscription rights

(Note 35(a))

Exercise of share options
(Note 35)

Transfer to reserves upon
exercise of share options

Transfer to reserves upon
cancellation of
share options

Share of reserve of
an associate

Employee share-based
compensation expenses
recognised

Arising from reclassification
of property, plant and
equipment to investment
properties

At31 March 2010
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° ° °
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ALARAAELER
Employee
Assets share-based ~ Convertible Non-
Share Share  Warrant ~ revaluation Other  Translation ~compensation bonds  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
ARER BEEfR EERS  WER
ka  Ribag i i EtEE AERE RERR EHEE  ZHER B FERER RRER
HK$000  HKS$'000 HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HKS$'000
TEn TR TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  TER  TER TR TEx  TEn  TEn
RIETNENA-B 183711 731346 5,160 20,805 - 23814 4219 - (376,011) 427704 31 R173%
DHERERTRY
£ ON - - - - - 2140 - - - 2,140 - 2,140
RAZENRE
MELZER
] - - - - - MM - - - Mo - Mo
ERALZANA
- - - - - 27,114 - - - 27,114 - 27,114
EREA - - - - - - - - 191005 191,005 (1) 190974
EEEENAEE
- - - - - 27,114 - - 191005 218119 (B1) 218088
DEREWESm) 367 14607 - - - - - - - 183 - 1837
SRERD
(h35) 3015 3768 - - - - - - - 40,700 - 40,700
R-EENFIR
R TR
(l335a) 14 115 - - - - - - - 129 - 129
fTiERiE
(Hit33) 1334 17,743 - - - - - - - 19,077 - 19,077
RiEEREEEE
i - 1814 - - - - (1819 - - - - -
RisRREEEE
&
- - - - - - (329 - 329 - - -
HE-EEE LA
ik - - - - - - 1 - - 1 - 7l
BEREEROAE
FX
- - - - - - 303 - - 303 - 303
REHAENE BR
JEGE EE
&k
- - - 48,205 - - - - - 48,205 - 48,205
Ro2-Ff
=A=t-H 26,408 803,400 5,160 69,010 - 50,928 2450 - (184677) 772,679 - TN619
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2011

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARAERARLER
Employee
Assets share-based ~ Convertible Non-
Share Share  Warrant ~ revaluation Other  Translation ~compensation bonds  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
AMEE  EEER Eekft  WER
BE  RHEE fife fife EtRE HBERE RERE GB5RE  R0EE A FERER BHAD
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TEn  TER  TER  TER  TEn  TEn  THEn TR TEm  TER  TER  TER
At1 Aprl 2010 A-E-TEMA- 26408 8340 5160 69010 SoNms 240 S sE) T B T
Share of other comprehensive Z{5EEATEH
income of associates 2EHA - - - - - 529 - - - 529 - 529
Exchange differences arising ~ [F#E 590 £
on translating of foreign [il:¥d3:)
operations ] - - - - - 48332 - - - 48,832 1,031 49,863
Share of reserve of an HME-EBERA
associate i - - - - - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Realisation of reserves of B FUWEEER
an associate upon step —REELARE
acquistion - : - - - (1646 15 : - (64 -84
Other comprehensive income FF 2 EHA
for the year - - - - - 3915 18 - - 3933 1,031 33,964
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - Y VA ¥V 5865 518
Total comprehensive income  FE2 A5
for the year - - - - - 3915 18 - 547 78350 6,896 85,246
Step acquisition of BHNEHELA
subsidiaries (Note 31) (Hi31) - - - - - - - 190 - 90 41 368
Adjustments arising on WEHBATEN
acquisition of additional ~ EREL 7 E
interests in subsidiaries - - - - (434) - - - - @4 6618 (709
Transfer to reservesupon ~~ REREXHNERE
lapse of share options ] - - - - - - 1 - 207 - - -
Employee share-based Bz ESRA
compensation expenses BEFY
recognised - - - - - - 18,820 - - 18,820 - 18,820
At 31 March 2011 R-B--F
=B=1-8 WA SBA0 5160 69010 (3 Sy 207 190 (139043 869605 RT60 902374
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2011
s =1
HEHERER
BE_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHERT
Cash flows from operating activities REREEK - BERE
Profit for the year before income tax R TS B BT 6F s F 77,885 222,523
Adjustments for: KRR IEFREE
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment BHREME 2 N TER T8
properties, net (146,667) (190,083)
Gain on bargain purchase BB B (839) (18,138)
Gain on remeasurement of previously BT EZRSWEIBARIE
held interest upon step acquisition of BT PR 2 e
subsidiaries (10,869) -
Depreciation e 4,046 4,506
Interest income LA (5,101) (14,735)
Interest expenses FEMAX 6,405 4,431
Share of results of associates Pak e NI E 2,498 2,047
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEfTTRERIEE 8 477 477
Write off the property, plant and equipment #5413 - B= KRR E - 177
Bad debts recovery on loan receivables R E IR (B (45) -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and ﬁ%%% B Rtz
equipment &8 (Mas ) 2 (290)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HERATES ABRZZ
value through profit or loss eREE W (17,660) (21,552)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYE 2 W (451) -
Impairment loss on B TFIEE 2 RESE
— financial assets of fair value through —BRATEFAEGZSREE
rofit or loss 734 -
— loan receivables —ERE K = 266
— trade receivables — B IR 23 21
— other receivables — H fth FEYRIE 1,678 1,538
Employee share-based compensation EERHAERYZ
Reversal of impairment loss on trade Z 5 REWGIE 2 R E R 1B
receivables (21) -
Operating loss before working capital changes &E &4 & ] 2 K2 EE (69,085) (8,509)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRERG AR
through profit or loss TEIEEEN (22,866) (12,152)
Decrease in inventories FERD 21 82
Increase in properties under development for  ZER P iFEY LN
sale (8,476) -
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B REMBEWFIE - Ee Rk
receivables, deposits and prepayments i} H%'UE( aﬂﬂ)ﬂi’“ (5,961) 4,835
Decrease in loan receivables FEE R 315 6,055
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from Bt AN RIRFOR A (8 0)
associates 9,356 (1,880)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 N F A FERT FRIA A K
payables and accruals e B (/ﬁid )3 N (70,919) 43,455
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to FEREE N B FRIBIE O )
associates 505 (1,377)
Cash (used in) generated from operations R EB(FTR) SRS (167,110) 30,509
Tax refund REIHIE 7,700 4,160
Net cash flows (used in) generated from operating AF& X7 (Fi /) priz iz i %
activities JEEE (159,410) 34,669
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2011

|V_ ’éiﬁvﬁiﬁéﬁ

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHERT
Cash flows from investing activities BRETEZEESRE
(Increase) decrease in available-for-sale A E SRS E (BN R
financial assets (2 10,724
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WREFEB AT 2B LR A EEE 47,360 18,927
(Increase) decrease in pledged bank deposits =3RRI TR (S HN0) 3R 2> (4,079) 560
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYE BB MR E (2,441) (5,191
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BATENBEEHRIE - (23,861)
Purchase of investment properties BAREYE (161,358) (116,618)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and  H&E¥ZE - ﬁ B X
equipment Fig s - 543
Proceeds from disposal of investment ﬁﬁ&é%%ﬁﬁ 15508
properties 27,251 -
Purchase of additional shares in an associate A — = QA %ﬁﬁl\ﬂx - (639)
Purchase of additional interests in subsidiaries & AFftB A T5BIMERS (7,052) -
Interest received 2T B 5,101 14,735
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZE AR EF5E (95,220) (100,820)
Cash flows from financing activities METH2HERE
Repayment of borrowings BeEg (123,119) (12,313)
New borrowings raised %ﬁ;\_{ﬁg 348,313 108,625
Proceeds from open offer NHABERBHIE - 18,371
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of K771 B I K2 32 fo””(
share options and warrants a7 PTG R0IA - 19,206
Interest paid BEASFLE (6,405) (4,431)
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible bonds ﬁ;llE—HﬁHx{ SAEFE A 105,633 -
Purchase of convertible bonds of an associate ﬁ% B — e A A Z_H%HXL# (87,236) -
Net cash flows generated from financing activities FiZ ZEBSHE ¢ 75 E F5E 237,186 129,458
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash ReRBEEEEE (R BMFHE
equivalents (17,444) 63,307
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REDzEERRLEEEE
of the year 125,572 56,828
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INESE LT (9,543) 5,437
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERZESRESEZEER
of the year 98,585 125,572
Analysis of the balances of cash and REeERESESEEBEEHRIN
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEBEIRS 185,071 133,846
Bank overdraft RITEX (86,486) (8,274)
98,585 125,572
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011

BA R AR B E

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xpress Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. The address of the Company’s registered
office and principal place of business is 24th Floor,
Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street, Central,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
include investment holding, property investment
and trading, hotel operations, securities trading and
investment, treasury investment, property development
and financing business.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2011 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 29 June 2011.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations applied
in the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based
(Amendment) Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (as Business Combinations
revised in 2008)

HKAS 27 (as Consolidated and Separate Financial
revised in 2008)  Statements

HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
(Amendment)

HKAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items
(Amendment)

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in

(Amendments) 2009

—REHR

FEREEARAR(ARAE ) REEBEMRLILIAETE
Rz BRARF - ARB ZEMPHFER T ELEM
BN E BT IREMAT40-445F ERAEP L2418 - KR
AIRMNEEEBBME R HPAAR AR (BT ) £ e

ARRIREMBRR (S AKE )2 TBEBRRER
B MEREREE  BEXR  EFEERKRE  ME
BE  MBEERIBEES -

HE-_Z——F=-A-+—HULFEZHERRENR_Z
——FRAZTNBEESSHERT -

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(FEMBREE
EUH))

REFEREAFETRAEIETTER R 2

AEERAFECRATIHEESHMAS([HEEF
BhAE )P 2 3R] RSB RTERI R 2R

BAMBREERFE2S KSERSBEEURNDAERZ
(1EETA) NHZ5

BRMBMEEREIR EBAH
(R—ZTNFLIERT)

AR GRTEAIE275%
(R_ZTNFLERT)

fra MBIk

BB GRTEAIE325% A8
(1EETA)

AR ERTEAIE395% BERHMIEE
(1EETA)

BN BRELER R-_ZZNFROEEEMS
(1BETA) WEER 2 g
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
(Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2008
HK(IFRIC) Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
—Int 17 Owners
HK - Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements

— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised Standards and Interpretations in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported
in these financial statements and/or disclosures set out
in these financial statements.

HKAS 27 (Revised) — “Consolidated and separate
financial statements”

HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business Combinations’, and
consequential amendments to HKAS 27, ‘Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements’, and HKAS 28,
‘Investments in Associates’ are effective prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
A1) (A7)

BRI RELE] R \FROEEEMG
(1EETA) WEERNESTRZIEFTAER
HEBUBRSEANBELZ
— &7
AR (ERVBHRERE REEADKFRESEE

MBHRERZ 25— BRAY
B ERIGER 2 ERERD
L2

BT CFratsh - MANFERNFTET RIS FTLE R R e iy
ZEVBRERABELER  AETHARREERLES

2/ 48
-2

BEBETER|FE 279 (FI55T) — [ G RBE L B#HE ]

BAMBHRERFIFRRER [ ZHE M RYFEET
HRIFE275R[ 476 RIBIL I TEHRE | R BB G ERIFE 285
[REBE AR ZRE |2 HRETHERERRRR -_FFT N
FLA-AzZMnz BEFERSHEMBH RN
EBATER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised) — “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” (continued)

The revised Standard continues to apply the acquisition
method to business combinations but with some
significant changes compared with HKFRS 3. For
example, all payments to purchase a business are
recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with
contingent payments classified as debt subsequently
re-measured through the statement of comprehensive
income. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related costs are
expensed.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interest to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control and
these transactions with no longer result in goodwill
or gains and losses. The standard also specifies the
accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest
in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss. The revised Standard
was applied to all acquisitions during the year. For step
acquisition of SingXpress Land Ltd, it requires goodwill
to be determined only at the date control is obtained
rather than at the previous stages. The determination of
goodwill includes the previously held equity interest to
be adjusted to fair value, with any gain or loss recorded
in the consolidated income statement, which previously
would have been included in the consideration for
the business combination. The Group has chosen
to recognize the non-controlling interest at the
proportionate share of fair value of SingXpress Land
Ltd and its subsidiaries. Previously, only proportionate
share of net assets is allowed.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
A1) (A7)

BBETERFE27H (BIEFT) [ 5ERBLABHRZE ]
(4&)

WIRERTEREENRB A HERBEL  BREFBME
WELAEIRLE - BETEAER - fIm - WEEBD
P B s BRI B IR R FERCE: - Mo BREBD
SENKERAEEEWRRENTE - ARWEEER
TREEES R - AR A FESIZ IR G m A B
TREENLD - SHERKETIFEHIEES - AR
FEARRAR ARSI SH ©

BAGEHERIF275 (CIER] AT - WiEFlET BmEFH R
FERERRHGTIBEENEI M= REE  BIZERS
R EREmANTEE o ZERITMEE —BREEHIER 2
A - EAEBAZHRTERENAZZATE - MK
@B BAIRNIBRATRER - £ LEFTEAE AR
BUEE - LR UIESingXpress Land Ltdifi 5 @ HLIBIER]
AERIRE PR R BeEBUS IE 6 B B 3E 2 AIPE EREETE ©
HENEEREZNFANRIER - REFE WaiRkaD 8
ZEARESIBR 2 A TERAR - LTS AEBEH2
REEF - AEBEDEZFILFTESingXpress Land Ltd & H
MR RN TE 2 L OIRIF R o AT EEG AT
BEFAELOIVELRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HK Interpretation 5: Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

HK Interpretation 5 requires that a loan that contains
a clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to
call the loan at any time shall be classified in total by
the borrower as current in the statement of financial
position. This is irrespective of whether a default event
has occurred and notwithstanding any other terms and
maturity stated in the loan agreement.

Prior to the adoption of this interpretation, the term
loans of the Group were classified in the statements
of financial position, respectively, separately as to the
current and non-current liability portions based on the
maturity dates of repayment. Upon the adoption of
the interpretation, part of the term loans have been
reclassified as current liabilities. The interpretation
has been applied by the Group retrospectively and
comparative amounts have been restated. In addition,
as a result of this change and as required by HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements, these financial
statements also include statements of financial position
as at 1 April 2009.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
A1) (A7)

BBRBEESH - MBI EZ 2T - EHAL B RS
ZEHEHTHE

BAERBESTRTE  BEABREMBAH BRI G4
FTERANBEGAERN AR Z2REEERGETNERD R
BRBEE - WD RAELTELERNOEN T THERD
PR B AR R R B A -

E%iﬁlﬁtﬁﬁﬁf $SEK.ZEHE TR IS AR R A
E'Jf’ﬁﬁ/}\bgﬂ&#mb@]af LU EIEH AEXEER
iﬁ ERMZERE ’\Hﬁﬁﬁ% REMERAREE
° $E.EL/}”)§JE)EHJKE§$$ WEFILLRET © LN -

EEEAJitIE ') R BB R ERIE R FHELZ 252

RE - ZEMBEBRETRE_SZNFNA—HB 2%

SRR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

The above change has had no effect on the reported
profit or loss, total comprehensive income or equity
of the Group for any period presented. The effect on
the statements of financial position at 31 March is
summarised as follows:

Group NEH

Current liabilities REBEE
Increase in borrowings BEgm
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Decrease in borrowings BEFOR L

There was no impact on the net assets of the Group.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
A1) (A7)

P BBYENMEA2BREEAEEZERE 2BH -
PEBRAGEIESEREE - IR =_A=1t—A2Z/M%
ARRRER 2 F BRI T -

At 1 April

2009

2011 2010 —ZEThE
—E——fF —E-EF mA—A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHER
121,911 40,496 27,929
(121,911) (40,496) (27,929)

MEEAREE 2 EEFEBKTE
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised Standards and Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs 2010!
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
(Amendments)  Assets?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
(Amendments)  Underlying Assets*

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures®
(Revised)

HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
—Int 14 Requirement®
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
—Int 19 with Equity Instruments®

HKFRS 1 Limited Exemptions from
Amendment Comparative HKFRS 7

Disclosures for First-Time
Adopters®

HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal

Amendments of Fixed Dates for First-Time

Adopters?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010 and 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE

A1) (A7)

B 1R {E 5 RAE 3K 2 F 7] RASIEET BRI R 2 FE

AREE W EEFEA T SBEMEERERZ AT HLE

RIERIRRRE

BRMBRELER
(1BETA)

BRMBREER BT
(1BETA)

BB B LRI
EBGIERE 125

(BETA)
BB GRIERIE245%
(#&{E3T)

AR (BRI BHRERE
ZBg)-REE14%R
(1BETA)

AR (ERTBHRERE
ZBg)-REE19%

BAMBREER B
(1BFTA)

BAMBREER B
(1BFTA)

H_T-TFEEBUBHRS
R BUE!
BE —EReREE

eEITAS
EAERIR - YRR E A

AT REHE R A E

BRERERBBM B RESE
AIE7RZ LB REEZE
PR &R R0

BEBRN;IUEEIRNE
Z [E5E B 82

! RIE-—ZFLA-BR-_T——F-A—-BU@ER) 2k

Fa 2 4 B AR o

2 R-T——F LB — AR KRR FE IR -

3 RZFB—=F—A— AR RABZFEREER -

¢ RSB F— A AR B EEERIAR -

s RZFB——F—A— AR RABZFEREER -

o R-T—2F LA — AR KRR FEHREAER -
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in
November 2009) introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKEFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in November
2010) adds requirements for financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
A1) (A7)

EEMBRELENFZOR2HTAR_ETNF+—AE
m))SIANEREENBRFEZHRE - BEMBHREE
AEIR2HMTA(R_FT—FF+—AREDENERS
BEBERKIERZRE -

REBEBEEMFRELREN - AE B SRR FEINREH
TA : BRRAZBENER ZPAA S REE LR ERE
HRASAFEFE - HRIZ - BENRERBRAHNASRE
ZEBBRANMTAZBEBRERMABE/INAS - AR
RAEEXRSZMNEMEBEENRESREZEBRE - — K
RERSTTHREE BIREHKAE - TAEBERK
BERBARERERETHREERERANFERFE -

RERMBEMNS @ ZENZEREHHABEERRAF
Bt ABZZERAE - FHRREEEMEREERF
5 MEEARAFEFABRZERAENS - ZTR
BEAFEEFZER AN EEARES A EREM
RABAZY  BIFEEMEABAZIZEEZERER
REHTE SEHRBABRE L2 GFHE - SREE
FERABREHZAFEZHERTEENHOBERE ° It
Bl - RIBEEGFERIE3 - BEREATEFAER
ZEMABZAFEEZSH2HEENBEEANZT) -

BEMBRELNFEIFRN _T—=F— A — Az &M%
ZEEHREAER - WEERATER
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be
adopted in the Group’s financial statements for financial
year ending 31 March 2014 and that the application of
HKFRS 9 will have no material impact on the amount
of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new or revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the financial statements.

FERFIRKETEBUBREEN(EEMBREE
A1) (A7)

EEXRY AEEBEREBE_Z-NF=A=+—HI1¥
BEE M ERERAEBVHHRELREN - BAEE
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosure
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

3.1  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company
and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2

3.3

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less identified impairment loss. Income from
investments in subsidiaries is accounted for on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.4

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised
in the statements of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates. When the Group'’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.4

Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

From 1 April 2010 onwards, upon disposal of
an associate that results in the Group losing
significant influence over that associate, any
retained investment is measured at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition as a financial asset
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the previous carrying amount of the
associate attributable to the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence
over that associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.4

3.5

Investments in associates (continued)

Where a group entity transacts with an associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.5

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of
goods, rendering of services, the use by others
of the Group’s assets yielding interest, royalties
and dividends, net of rebates and discounts.
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)  Sale of goods is recognised upon transfer
of the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to customer. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

(b)  Sale of hotel accommodation is recognised
upon issuance of the hotel vouchers.

()  License fees are recognised over the license
period.

(d) Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

() Rental income, including rentals invoiced
in advance from properties under operating
leases, is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

()  Revenue from hotel operation is
recognised upon provision of services.

(g) Interestincome from credit card receivables
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement on an accrual basis, except where
a debt becomes doubtful, in which case,
recognition of interest income is suspended
until it is realised on a cash basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.6

3.7

3.8

Revenue recognition (continued)

(h)  Other interest income is recognised on a
time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.8

3.9

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land
and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss of the consolidated
income statement.

3.10 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and / or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their
fair values using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.10 Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.12 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.12 Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent of allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTESBER(A)

(continued)

3.13 Financial instruments 313 £@MTAH

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument; or

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the three categories, including FVTPL,
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets, and
loans and receivables. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of
which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading
and those designated as of FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;
or

. the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or

J it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, deposits,
loan receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
amounts due from associates, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

. it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss.

3

3.13

ERBE(E)

@ TAE)

TRMEEHE)

EEEEZBE ()

RESEYIAI  ESREEZRERBIESE
BEREREEZREETIR - MEARAESER
BBRELIR - BRERZREEZEHNBRE
R o WE B REEFORER A EERD - AR B ER
WsH o HRUEBE S MEE 2 SR AR ©

RIRBHEKATEZERMEEMS - HAEBES
BENERBEAMRD - MARRDZE L EER
MEBEBRELEZEHAR  AILRCHERZBE
BEGEBBRERO - EZEENRERELEE A
ZIREE TS IBARHERRE R < B A o

A ERAESREBR TR ERMMAERR
BEm o R EFEE A TEZ E NN A i 2K
ABERER YRR EEGRRER - HAIHEBE
BEBHREMS @ WIRE AT EZIEINETEH _LENE
RMERIRRELE 2 EMHER - MERERRED
REREE



T/ ——FFR  Annual Report 2011

89

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011

B R AR B E

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group's financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis of which the interest expense is
included in net gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and
other payables and accruals, bank overdraft,
borrowings, amounts due to subsidiaries,
amounts due to associates, convertible bonds
and non-convertible bonds are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTESHBERA)

(continued)
3.13 Financial instruments (continued) 3.13 =HITAE)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments cHEERREAIAE)
(continued)
Equity instruments BRATA
Equity instruments issued by the Company are RATBITZRAT ARG FIE (MR EREE
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct IR ABE o

issue costs.

Derecognition FIRTER

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights EEEEESRORENER EERERMERE
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, RASECEEZEEMBE BRI B &E
the financial assets are transferred and the Group Wy - SRMEEBSHIBRER -

has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in RIBREREMBERBEER - ZHEEREERE
its entirety, the difference between the L B FE MR AB R P Eo At 2 T A FERR I A W 2 R 5T
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the 225 BEME 2 EESREEER -

consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the REBGRENEMEHNETEEERR - sTiH%
obligation specified in the relevant contract is [Em - TESIRERERAE KikERZS
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference BAEEROEHEENRENREME 22BN ER
between the carrying amount of the financial TR o

liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.14

3.15

3.16

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development, which are
intended to be held for sale, are measured
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes costs of land, development
expenditure incurred, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy and other direct costs attributable to such
properties. These assets are recorded as current
assets as they are expected to be realised in, or
are intended for sale within the Group’s normal
operating cycle. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all anticipated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing and selling. Upon completion, the
assets are recorded as properties held for sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.17 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group'’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

TEETBRRA)

317 #HE(E)

3.17 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less.

3.19 Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

(@) Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are
provided through defined contribution
plans. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity.
Payments to the defined contribution plan
are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
operate in Singapore and Japan is required
to participate in the defined contribution
plans regulated and managed by the local
government. The contributions to the
defined contribution plans are charged
to the consolidated income statement in
period to which the contributions relate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.19 Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits (continued)

(b)  Short-term employee benefits
Employees’ entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they are accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

3.20 Share-based payment transactions

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their values are appraised at the grant
date and exclude the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.20 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding credit
to share option reserve. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, if
there is any indication that the number of share
options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. No adjustment to expense recognised
in prior periods is made if fewer share options
ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs up to the nominal value of the
shares issued are reallocated to share capital with
any excess being recorded as share premium.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect is material).

3.22 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of:
(i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.

3

3.21

3.22

ERBE(E)

B

EAKERBEEHARERBEEAEIEERE
MAKERAEASBEREL - BIHERERE - &
BRI REEEAE 2 RER I AR ER - RA
REHEEE A EFRAREZREGLFTHER
E-WEAESREEAZHARSRENERB
i ERHEEAZEReRECRENMTZEBEX
&) e

HBERERN

MBEREO/EBTERBRBEFTARER
RIEBZ G ARXRFEEBARBH A REER
FIAMAX NS ERBAHESOFAERRZE
KEO—IAGH - MAKBEETMIEREERIZAFE
SPABHENMBERAL - RERERRFUERF
BERBEEABETUBERELMSI B Z R ZEAT
BR - RUIPRERR - ARBR()RESZESTER
FE37 RIEXHRBERIAREE + (i) VFHER
ZeRBER)REFESHERES FEZ
Rt (ARSERE)FFEMBEREL -



Xpress Group Limited FHREEFRAHE

98

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011

B RS AR BT E

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.23 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

Q)

(g)

the party, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives its significant influence
over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group or its
parent;

the party is a close member of the family
of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2011, the net carrying
amount of goodwill is approximately HK$10,544,000.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in Note 22.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimate the fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of the Group’s
investment properties is current prices in an active
market for similar properties. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within
a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making
its judgment, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources including:

1) current prices in an active market for properties
of different natures, conditions or locations (or
subject to different leases or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences;

(ii)  recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(iii) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing leases and other
contracts, and (where possible) from external
evidences such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties
under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. The net realisable
value is the estimated selling price (based on the direct
comparison method) less estimated selling expenses
and estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are determined based on best available information.
Any loss will be recognised on the properties under
development for sale in the consolidated income
statement.

Fair value assessment of previously held interests of
SingXpress Group and its fair value at the acquisition
date

During the year, the Group acquired control on
SingXpress Land Ltd through step acquisition and in
accordance with HKFRS 3 (revised), the previously held
interests in SingXpress Land Ltd and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as “SingXpress Group”) is deemed
to be disposed of at its fair value and it is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date. The fair value of
the previously held interests and its fair value at the
acquisition date are determined by the directors.

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, the directors have made
in the process of applying the entity’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgment is
required when determining whether a decline in fair
value has been significant and/or prolonged. In making
this judgment, the historical data on market volatility
as well as the price of the specific investment are taken
into account. The Group also takes into account other
factors, such as industry and sector performance and
financial information regarding the issuer/investee.

Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgment, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets
used in production or supply of goods or services.

Some properties comprise of a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use for administrative purposes.
If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out
separately under finance lease), the Group accounts
for these portions separately. If the portions cannot
be sold separately, the property is accounted for as an
investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use for administrative purposes. Judgment
is applied in determining whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify
as investment property. The Group considers each
property separately in making its judgment.
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5. Wi R H R WA
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents Wk (IR EEE %) ATt EE YRS ZRE MR HA
total invoiced value of goods supplied and income from BZWA o FRIER 2 Wamin T
provision of services. Revenue recognised during the
year is as follows:
2011 2010
—B——F —E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET THET
Financial interest and service income ERIEEFE R ARFEBA 658 1,206
Dividend income &% B U A 4,091 1,006
Other interest income H bR B U A 5,101 14,735
Rental income HEWA 25,045 15,023
Income from hotel operations NiEE PN 40,426 45,043
75,321 77,013
Other operating income HAZE WA
2011 2010
—B2——F —E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHERT THERT
Other income E bl A 3,486 4,608
Gain on bargain purchase AEREY 839 18,138
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 f& Wk T8 5 (B 5 18 B 0] 21 -
Bad debt recovery on loan receivables R E IR Y] 45 -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HERE Y 2 WS 451 -
Exchange gain, net B 3 W s T R - 86
4,842 22,832
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E-F——4=A=—AILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s reportable segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of the other reportable segments. Details of

the reportable segments are summarised as follows:

- provide financing to
individuals and acquiring
services for members

— trading of securities

Financing operations

Securities trading and
investment

Treasury investment - asset management and cash

operations
Property investment ~ — letting properties and trading
and trading of properties

Hotel operations — hotel operations in Japan
Property development — redevelopment of properties

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker considers the
business from both product and geographic perspective.
From a product perspective, the chief operating
decision maker assesses the performance of (i) financing
operations (ii) securities trading and investment
(iii) treasury investment (iv) property investment
and trading (v) hotel operations and (vi) property
development. For the year ended 31 March 2011,
there is one new reportable segment regarding property
development. In addition, the chief operating decision
maker further evaluated the result on a geographical
basis (Hong Kong, North America, Singapore and
Japan).

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
prices.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
as described in Note 3. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue, contribution to the results from operations for
the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010 and certain
assets, liabilities and expenditure information regarding
reportable segments is as follows:
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 31 March 2011

Revenue
- External sales
- Inter-segment sales

Total
Segment results

Unallocated corporate revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses

Finance costs

Unallocated share of results of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Segment assets
Unallocated associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
Unallocated capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure

Depreciation
Unallocated depreciation

Total depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Impairment loss on financial assets at
air value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of investment
properties

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
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6. DEER (E)
DEM 2 REAE
BE-ZE——F=A=+—-HLFE
Securities
trading Property
Financing and  Treasury  investment Hotel ~ Property

operations investment  investment and trading  operations development  Elimination Total
SISk Ml %%EE o ) %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Ml Al &
REEH kR ek EEER  UEER baf - fazt
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS' 0()0 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR TEn TR TEn TR TiEn TR TiEn
658 4001 5,101 25,045 40,426 - - 75321
- - 9,236 - - - (9,236) -
658 4,091 14,337 25,045 40,426 - (9,236) 75,321
(836) 15,932 5,101 170,797 (3,263) (101) - 187,610
16,464
(117,280)
(6,403)
(249)
77,885
(26,603)
51,282
213 176,381 6,845 1,160,166 53,867 155,273 - 153275
2248
241,344
1,796,867
(144) (350)  (48470)  (493506)  (16276)  (106213) - (664939)
(534
(894,493)
- - - 163,333 305 - - 163,638
161
163,799
(37) - (321) (1,746) (1,759) - - (3,863)
s
(4,046)
- - - 4 - - - (47
- 327 - - - - - 327
- 17,660 - - - - - 17,660
- (734) - - - - - (734)
- - - 451 - - - 451
N
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Revenue
- External sales
- Inter-segment sales

Total

Segment results

Unallocated corporate revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses

Finance costs

Unallocated share of results of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Segment assets
Unallocated associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure

Unallocated capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure

Depreciation

LNl e
*ﬂ@i 55
BEARL

N N+

BHERAER
i

EREA
pRE

g
RAMBELT

ALEE

AESE

pELL
AERE

afeE

ERRX
RORERFEX

AXFERER
e

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ({7 E3E 7%

Fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Impairment loss on loan receivables

Gain on disposal of property, plantand  HENZ « FERRE Wi

equipment

RAVESABEZ SHARY

ATEYE

HERNPEFARG ERAR

L §:
EWEH ZAERR

6. oHERGE)
DB R EAE ()
BE-Z-Z2E=-A=+—-HLEFE
Securities
trading Property
Financing and Treasury  investment Hotel
operations  investment investment and trading operations  Elimination Total
#58E NERER
BEXH kR#& HERE RE EEXH B &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TR Thn TR TR TR TEn
1,206 1,006 14,735 15,03 45,043 - 77013
- - 8,659 435 - (9,094) -
1,206 1,006 23394 15,438 45,043 (9,094) 77013
(2,744) 353811 14,735 204,271 (4,220) - 247853
24,605
#3457)
(4431)
2,047)
m53
(31,549)
190,974
1431 137,579 6,255 742,736 47 444 - 935,445
9,110
194,268
1,138,823
(247) (336) (9,628) (287,879) (14921) - (313,031)
o 3I)
(366,144)
- - - 158,952 549 - 159,501
264
139,765
(613) - (388) (1,619) (1,884) - (4,506)
- - - (477) - - (477)
- 15,193 - - - - 15,193
- 21,532 - - - - 21,532
(266) - - - - - (266)
29 - - - - - 290




T/ ——FFR  Annual Report 2011

107
L] L]
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2011
B % Rk B =
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEER (&)
Geographical information HEER
The Group’s operations are located in four (2010: four) NEFMERETERANE(-CZ—ZF : E)HE - K
main geographical areas. The following table provides REREEZRMETSD R WEDT - MG RER
an analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical BR7S 2 IREEHD, ©
market, irrespective of the origin of the goods and
services.
2011 2010
—2——F —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THERT
Hong Kong a5 15,615 16,443
North America JEZEM 4,160 6,759
Singapore Frons 15,120 8,768
Japan HZ 40,426 45,043
75,321 77,013
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of UTROSBEERMERERFZIREEMEEIEL 2
segment assets and capital expenditure, analysed by the DHT ©
geographical areas in which the assets are located.
Segment assets DEEE
2011 2010
=B —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FTHET
Hong Kong BE 682,784 436,894
North America EZEM 10,524 30,249
Singapore N 967,701 547,390
Japan SFN 135,858 124,290

1,796,867 1,138,823
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HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEER (&)
Capital expenditure §—Zy-53
2011 2010
—B——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THERT
Hong Kong a8 18,270 59,472
North America JbZEM - -
Singapore Frons 145,224 99,743
Japan AA 305 550
163,799 159,765
Information about major customers BHEEEFZEN
For the year ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, the BHE_Z——FR_Z-ZTF=A=+—HILFE &%
aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the .357(%}5?15@”51me$’$.£@% 230%AF ©
Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of the Group's total revenue.
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RE R A
2011 2010
—E——F —Z=-ZF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FTHERT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts wholly  ZBRAEF RN EEE 2 R1T
repayable within five years BERREX 2R 2,530 2,406
Interest on bank loans not wholly repayable ~ HERAFRNZEEE Z IR1T
within five years EFz e 2,993 2,025
Effective interest expense on convertible bonds T?ﬁ;ﬁxﬁ%} ZEBRF BN
(Note 31) (K17331) 14 -
Interest expense on non-convertible bonds JERT AR E S 2 FI B
(Note 32) (K17332) 868 -

6,405 4,431
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HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Operating lease charges on land and buildings
Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
(included in administrative expenses)

Impairment loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Impairment loss on loan receivables
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Impairment loss on other receivables

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Auditor’s remuneration

Staff costs including directors’ remuneration

(Note 12)

Exchange loss, net

Rental income from investment properties
less outgoings of HK$2,552,000
(2010: HK$1,376,000)

8.  ERATISBLATEF

BRPTSBATSFE HIER (FTA)
ATNIR

THRETFEREHERMS
e

AATBRX 2 BNEEREZ

BAFEFAERZ
EREERERE

KRBT E R
B 5 R IE 2R ERR
Hitb YR IR 2 R E 1R

HEME - BELREZ
&8 (M)

22 Gliln

BERA(BEREEHE)
(Hrat12)

PE S B 1E AR
KREMEESRNRZ H

2,552,000 7T
(ZZ—ZF : 1,376,000/ T)

—H R

2011

e
HK$’000
F

1,166

4,046

477

734

23

1,678

600

100,230

5,837

(22,493)
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2010
—s-%f
HK$’000
FHR

2,072

4,506

477

266
21

1,538

(290)

600

37,998

(13,647)




Xpress Group Limited FPREBEFRAE

110

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011

B RS AR BT E

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Current tax
— Hong Kong
— Overseas
Deferred taxation (Note 33)

9. FABBixH

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FTHET
REATRIA
— &5 38 (909)
—3g4h 1,412 166
IRIEIE (H7233) 25,153 32,292
26,603 31,549

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the entity
operates.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated income

B FE 2 BENE TR RRTUEF16.5%T 5 -

BHOMIER IR FEAGHERGE N REREEMERR
ZBITHEGHE

FRBIAS h B S Wbk 2 BRATS B AR A SR T

statement as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Under (over) provision in respect of
prior years

Tax effect of share of losses of associates

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Effect of tax exception granted to Singapore
subsidiaries

Income tax expenses for the year

2011 2010
—E——f —E—%f
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
PR ETS B AT 77,885 222,523
EEBNEHEE6.5%
(ZZ—ZF : 16.5%):t& >
R 12,851 36,716
AR 2 B s
16,158 20,577
BEZRHRBRAZHISFE
(34,426) (45,840)
AHERAENARIEEIE 2 B2 9,491 2,793
BRBERER HIESE
(903) (301)
B FEBET R GRERE)
687 (229)
DMEBEABBBZ R E 412 338
FEH A B A AR B 2 T A A
MERR 2 FE 22,547 17,494
KB A RERBR R R
za (214) -
FRFERS S 26,603 31,549
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BHE

10.

11.

—E-—HZA=+—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$45,417,000 (2010: HK$191,005,000), a loss
of approximately HK$34,175,000 (2010: loss of
approximately HK$65,884,000) has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$45,417,000 (2010:
HK$191,005,000) and on the weighted average number
of approximately 2,640,836,000 (2010: 2,215,439,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$45,417,000 (2010:
HK$191,005,000) and on the weighted average number
of approximately 2,661,814,000 (2010: 2,222,382,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

10.

11.

FABEE A FRETF

A RHEA AEIEFRNEREE ML B45,417,0008 T (ZF
—Z4 1 191,005,000 7T) 2 H  AEAI34,175,000 T
ZEBE(ZZE—ZF : FE465,884,000/8 L) EEAR QT
2 BRI o

BREF

BEREARBADERADEHEE AEEF RGN
45 417,000/8 7L ( —Z—Z4F : 191,005,000/ 7T) READ
BATE DAY 2 INFEF I E#92,640,836,0000% ( =T — T4
2,215,439,0008) st & -

EREBERFNDRARABEABEERNEFND
45,417,000 7T ( —ZF—Z4 : 191,005,00057T) KL EAD
BT BRI DIREF988492,661,814,0000% (=T —Z 4
2,222,382,0000% )51 & -
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11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

11. SREFGE)

share attributable to owners of the Company is based

on the following data:

Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company, used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculation

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of the basic earnings
per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of diluted earnings
per share

ARBHE ANEIEFRER

ARG EERER
NESHERA

RHEE

SAHEESRERRNZ
Rl RSk

BEEEERRIYE
B

STEESREERNZ
BB e T8

AT ARSI EA K58 AR T A T e 5

2011 2010
& —g-%%
HK$'000 HK$'000

T T

45,417 191,005

2011 2010
—g——# —g-%F

000 000

T’ FR
2,640,836 2,215,439

20,978 6,943
2,661,814 2,222,382
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12.

13.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (INCLUDING 12.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

Short term employment benefits

— Basic salaries
- Housing allowance

Share options granted to directors and

employees

Pension costs (refund) — defined contribution

plans

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The emoluments paid or payable to each of seven (2010:

ten) directors were as follow:

For the year ended

31 March 2011
Executive directors
Mr. Chan Heng Fai
Mr. Chan Tong Wan
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow

Non-executive director
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo

(Note i)
Mr. Wong Tat Keung

T ——FFR Annual Report 2011
113
EEME (BEEEFHMH)
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FB7 FB7
SEa Tt
—EXFH® 76,693 34,056
—REEER, 4,298 4,031
BTYTEEREEZ
AR A A 18,820 303
RIRAEFp AR GRFR)
et 419 (392)
100,230 37,998
13. EEHM

ENREMNTELR(CE-2F  +R)EFZHFHET -

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits  contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total
e - 2R HERAR
we REYWEF* srEIZHER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
BE=-Z2——F
ZA=+—-BLHFE
HITESE
[RIEHE S - 64,611** 6 64,617
PR #7838 o - 2,331 60 2,391
fR LB+ - 3,319 60 3,379
FHITESE
EPEI1E S 105 - - 105
BAFHTES
ot 105 - - 105
Da Roza Joao Pauloft 4
(Htati) 118 - - 118
HE®LE 164 - - 164
492 70,261 126 70,879
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

For the year ended BE-ET-2F
31 March 2010 ZAZ+—-HLEE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan Heng Fai BRI L
Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRATESRE
Mr. Chan Tung Moe (Note ii) BRAER 55 £ (f7 i)
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow REBLL
Mrs. Chan Sook Jin, BRI S 22+ (i)
Mary-ann (Note ii)
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BElEEE
Independent non-executive directors B FHITES
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter IEHREE
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo (Note i) Da Roza Joao Paulot 4
(Hiti)
Mr. Wong Tat Keung (Note iii) EER KL (W)
Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy (Note iv) w—Frt(Mtiv)

Notes:

6] Demised on 16 May 2011

(i) Resigned on 23 October 2009
(iii)  Appointed on 7 December 2009
(iv)  Resigned on 7 December 2009

* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment transaction” that is attributable to
the directors.

sk

It includes share bared payments to the director, Mr. Chan
Heng Fai, amounted to approximately HK$18,480,000.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration in respect

of the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

13. EE=HME)
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total
E2a A= 1 ﬁigﬁfﬁ”‘
we REMEF* FHEIZ R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAERT FERT FTET TR
- 5,495 29 5,524
- 1,575 97 1,672
- 211 25 236
- 2,214 140 2,354
- 457 35 492
90 - - 90
90 - - 90
68 - - 68
44 - - 44
123 - - 123
415 9,952 326 10,693
Ktat

@ RoE-—ERATAAERE

* BERESR
AHEERRER

* BRERAEEREELEMIAUBRNDBER 2K

18,480,000/ 7T) °
BEZZT—F K=

TAFTAZT=RAEHE
ZNFT-ALREERE
“ETNF+ - AEHBHE
/’éﬁﬂ%iﬁiz&ﬁ‘J%ZsﬁfMfoﬁﬁ%ﬁ"ﬁZﬁ?ﬂi

$E§Z%iﬂfiﬁﬁl%&ﬁ@ﬂ%2;ﬂ3k

af:—iiig&— =

—TE-A=t+-RALEE #HEE

—EFE=A=+—RHIFE KxEH

WEMEENERMEERNBEAREERNBAREERR 2

REYABERAE(E -

(%
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14. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2010: three) were directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in Note 13 above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2010: two) highest paid non-director
employees during the two years ended 31 March 2011
and 2010 were as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind*
Contributions to defined contribution plans

The emoluments of the remaining two (2010: two)
highest paid individual fell within the following bands:

14.

¥ 2R REYREN
+&Z

HEBRHSE

BERBHFAL

ANEBRLZSHFATBEE=Z4(ZT—ZF : ZZ)ARQ
RIEE  EWMeFBRBEN EXHFIBRSNNZHEEN -
HE-Z——FR-_—ZF=-A=+—HIMEFE -
BN TFESHRA(ZZ—Z2F  MA)RaFfEEREEY
[ UM

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

2,647 1,744

R 24 49
2,671 1,793

BTRA(ZT—2F  MR)BEFALZHEN FT5
e

Number of individuals

AE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
Emolument bands < & E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7t 2 1,500,0007% 7T 2 1
* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2 * BERBEBMBRELERE2R ARMDAER 2 NHZS ]

“Share-based payment transaction”.

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, no
emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

15. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended
31 March 2011, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2010: Nil).

15.

82 HE

BE_Z——Hh_T-TF-A=1+—HLEE *&
EfENAEREHFALTIMNEMNHSIERMBRERRK
INERAN SR B 2 22D Sk BB 1S

:
s

E-—F=ZRA=+—BEFEHERRNILEREK
BENHSEAARTERREARE(ZF—F
Yo

E

mﬁu

foom B R

7
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. #%¥ - BERRE
Group rEH
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold motor
buildings  improvements vehicles Total
Titr HE B KB
REF MELE R”E et
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR TR
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFMA—H
Cost BXAR 54,463 12,045 25,326 91,834
Accumulated depreciation and 2T E RRE

impairment (3,026) (4,874) (22,151) (30,051)
Carrying values IRAEME 51,437 7,171 3,175 61,783
Year ended 31 March 2010 Hz—Z2—ZF

ZA=t—HLFE
Opening carrying values FYREE 51,437 7,171 3,175 61,783
Additions NE 2,523 2,157 511 5,191
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEEHEYE

(Note 18) (H#18) (10,042) - - (10,042)
Written off s - (32) (145) (177)
Disposals HE - (217) (36) (253)
Depreciation e (1,050) (2,244) (1,212) (4,506)
Exchange realignment I % (249) 476 (142) 85
Closing carrying values FLREEEE 42,619 7,311 2,151 52,081
At 31 March 2010 RZE—EF=A=+—H
Cost P 46,797 14,024 6,989 67.810
Accumulated depreciation and ZFHTE MRE

impairment (4,178) (6,713) (4,838) (15,729)
Carrying values ARE(E 42,619 7,311 2,151 52,081
Year ended 31 March 2011 BE-Z——&

ZRA=t—HLEFE
Opening carrying values FEYRHEE 42,619 7,311 2,151 52,081
Additions =Y - 1,245 1,196 2,441
Step acquisition of subsidiaries BB E R 7]

(Note 42) (H#42) - 164 117 281
Disposals e - - 2 2
Depreciation e (1,129) (2,127) (790) (4,046)
Exchange realignment I 5, A 8,171 784 220 9,175
Closing carrying values FARREE 49,661 7,377 2,892 59,930
At 31 March 2011 R-E——F=A=+—H
Cost BN 55,370 17,258 8,929 81,557
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTEMRIE

impairment (5,709) (9,881) (6,037) (21,627)
Carrying values BREE 49,661 7,377 2,892 59,930
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. ¥% - W= Rk (4&)
The carrying values of land and buildings held by the AEERFE 2 L REFZREESTIT
Group are analysed as follows:
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHER
In Hong Kong, held under REERE Z REAMEY
long-term leases 2,421 2,472
In Japan, freehold RERZ KA ERE 47,240 40,147
49,661 42,619
At 31 March 2011, certain of the Group’s land and RZZE——F=ZA=+—H  AEERBEEX49,563,000
buildings with a carrying values of approximately BT (ZZE—T4F : 42,619,000 7)) 7 EF M REFE
HK$49,563,000 (2010: HK$42,619,000) has been AR A VE A R B 2 (B (H3E30) ©

pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 30).
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. W%  MERSHE(E)

Company

At 1 April 2009
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Carrying values

Year ended 31 March 2010
Opening carrying values
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Closing carrying values

At 31 March 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Carrying values

Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening carrying values
Additions

Depreciation

Closing carrying values
At 31 March 2011
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Carrying values

AT

R-EZNFHA—H
DN
REHE

fRmEE

HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HIFE
FHRmEE

NE

HE

e

R

L S LER:
R

Bt E

FRE(E

BE-—Z——F=A=1+—HLEE
FYREE
NE

18
FRREE
R-Z——%=A=+—8
s

ZEHTE

AREE

Furniture,
fixtures and
motor vehicles
& RE
kRARE
HK$’000
FERT

4,243
(2,651)

1,592

1,592
19

(30)

(388)

1,193

3,920
(2,727)

1,193

1,193
144
(321)

1,016

4,064
(3,048)

1,016
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BHE

16.

17.

ZE-—F=ZA=+t—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the lease term or
2% on straight-line method

Over the term of the lease or 6.67%
-20% on straight-line method,
whichever is the shorter

20% - 25% on reducing balance

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and

motor vehicles method
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
Group

The Group’s prepaid lease payments and their carrying
values are analysed as follows:

16.

17.

W - BN REH)
Lt - BERRERBRATERTE

25 BB BREE AR 2% A
B)

MEMERE  WEOSHRREREZ6.67% - 20%
(AESEE B

B % 20% - 25% + FEAHBEA L H

e
ATRENE
A%E

AEBZANBEFRREREEATET

2011 2010

—B——F —EB-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FTHER

Long-term leases held in Hong Kong REBARFE 2 REAMELD 22,907 23,384
Opening carrying values FREE 23,384 19,692
Additions NE - 23,861
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TETH EFIEE (477) (477)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) — B Z=IREME(Hi£18) - (19,692)
Closing carrying values FRIEEE 22,907 23,384

Prepaid lease payments EREERE

— Non-current portion —FEmBE D 22,430 22,907

— Current portion (Note) —mEVE D (HfEE) 477 477
22,907 23,384

Note:

The current portion of prepaid lease payments included
in trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments
(Note 27).

At 31 March 2011, the Group’s prepaid lease
payments of approximately HK$21,833,000 (2010:
HK$23,384,000) have been pledged to secure the
Group’s borrowings (Note 30).

Ber - BNAERAZRPHBOEHAESREMENE - HERE

MRAEME27)A -

RZE——F=ZA=+—H A£EBEMFHAEFEY
21,833,000/ 7T (ZZ—Z 4 : 23,384,000/ 7T ) B #H 17 LAER
BAREEZEE(ME30) °
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18.

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured at fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment

REME

AEEFRENEEREL 56 ARBE S HEE N IEE
REZYEEREZARTFEENGE  XOBRRKREME
N

properties.
Group
rEEH
2011 2010
—B——F —EB-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTHERT
Fair value NEE
At 1 April KU A—H 742,501 250,506
Additions NE 161,358 130,713
Disposals k= (26,800) -
Step acquisition/acquisition of EASUWEE, MBI E A A
subsidiaries (Note 42) (Ht5t42) 63,620 65,523
Transfer from prepaid lease payments EEAENEERIE
(Note 17) (W2#17) - 19,692
Revaluation surplus upon transfer from BWE - BERREEREE
property, plant and equipment to wEWMEZ EfhAER
investment properties - 48,205
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EE B Y% - BEMEE
(Note 16) (B1at16) - 10,042
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment — EfHI&EWE 2 AFEUWS
properties, net pk) 146,667 190,083
Exchange realignment HE 5 R B 72,585 27,737
At 31 March R=ZA=+—8 1,159,931 742,501
The Group’s interests in investment properties are held REFRE AL EHE A 2 ISR
under the following lease terms:
2011 2010
—B——F —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT THET
Long-term leases in Hong Kong BB Z KA 44,017 32,720
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong BB Z P HEITEL 176,828 120,550
Short-term leases in Hong Kong BB Z RHIEL 30,676 -
Long-term leases outside Hong Kong BN KEAFAAY 808,495 482,811
Medium-term leases outside Hong Kong BB AN R EAREAY 24,129 16,317
Freehold outside Hong Kong BBAINZ KA ZERE 75,786 90,103
1,159,931 742,501
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18.

—E-—HZA=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

AT

Fair value
At 1 April and 31 March

The Company’s interests in investment properties are
held under the following lease term:

Medium-term leases in Hong Kong

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
(“Properties”) at 31 March 2011 has been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date
by Messrs. Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. Avista Valuation Advisory Limited has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The Group’s Properties have been valued on market
value basis, which conforms to Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to comparable
market transactions for similar properties.

Rental income earned by the Group from its investment
properties, which are leased out under operating leases,
amounted to approximately HK$25,045,000 (2010:
HK$15,023,000).

18.

POA—BR=A=+—H

BB 2 HALY

T ——FFR Annual Report 2011
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REMEE)
Company
AKATF

2011 2010

—E——F —E-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FERT

1,050 1,050

RARRE TIROFIISE 2 REY Sk

2011 2010
—E——F —Z=-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,050 1,050

AEBEZEREDE(MEDR-_F——F=A=+—HZ
RNEDEREREEN BEE 7B A BEREEMERD
NEEHAERAR A RN Z A HIAMETT A EER - XE
SEEFHERAERAREEEEER  YHEARHRMLI D
RBUMEETEHEEZER - ARBEZYRIVEWER
B FEABAEMBEMEMEER - HETISEHRE
WEZ AL BEMISRHEN -

AEEMEREYEMEIZHe R AL A25,045,0007%
TT(ZZF—Z4 1 15,023,000/ 70) * mAE BREYE TR
LEHEAOMEL -
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18.

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

No income or direct operating expenses were
recognised during the year for investment properties
that was unlet during the year (2010: Nil).

As at 31 March 2011, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying values of approximately
HKS$1,139,920,000 (2010: HK$731,376,000) have
been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note
30).

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES

Investments at cost
Unlisted shares
Less : Provision for impairment

Amounts due from subsidiaries

—ENE
within one year
Interest bearing at 2% per annum R =
(2010: 2%) (==
Non-interest bearing BB

Less : Provision for impairment

Amounts due to subsidiaries within one year

19.

K& AR
JE LR
R RE R

wORER R

—FRERHTB A BIRIE

BREWEH)
FAMER 2T BREL 2 REMEEREARARER

REAX(ZE—TF  |)

R-DTE——F=ZA=Z+—H AEEBEREAEHY
1,139,920,00058 7. ( —Z —Z4F : 731,376,000/ 7T) 2 &
TREYED T - WERAEEZEE(HIEE30) ©

R B QR s WEARRR (ERKEDRNE)

Company
AT

2011 2010

—B2——F —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET THET

73,184 73,184
(68,537) (68,537)

4,647 4,647

%

2[E)EtE 527,798 435,030
516,891 510,049

1,044,689 945,079

(430,959) (452,662)

613,730 492,417

(297,992) (273,089)
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19. RHEBATZER MBATXK (LXHEBARFKE)
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March RZTE——F=A=+—HZEXEZWBREERMT :

2011 are as follows:

Place/country of Particulars of
incorporation/operation issued share capital/
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
ELEAVE ES 7 BRIRA/
8 BXRAEERER Bilus-) FERRRLAl TEEY
Group's
effective Held by Held by
interest the Company  subsidiaries
r£@ RARE  HNEAR
B gL BB BE
% % %
Charlton Residences Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD1,000,000 50.1 - 80  Property development
company 1,000,000% 105 7 NEERE
A - BRAR
China Credit Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD13,417,282 100 100 - Investment holding
company 13,417, 28237 1% T REARR
- BRARH
China Xpress Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD5,670,002 988 - 98.8  Investment holding
company 5,670,0025 i3 T RERR
Mg - BRAR
Corporate Residence Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD1,000,000 100 - 100 Property development
company 1,000,000%7 105 7T NEER
Mg BRAR
eBanker USA.com, Inc. United States of America, Common stock 81.8 - 81.8  Financial investment
limited liability company USD115,487 ERRE
EFZERE  BROA One Series A
preferred stock
EiBR115 4875 T
—RAZSIERR
Expats Residences Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD25,002 100 - 100 Property investment
company 25,0023 g 7 NERE
Mg - BRAR
Global Growth Management, Inc. Canada, limited liability USD1,000 100 - 100 Property investment
company 1,000%7T MERE

meX - BRAR
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19. RHEBATZER MBATXK (LXHEBARFKE)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)
Place/country of Particulars of
incorporation/operation issued share capital/
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
ELEAVE ESE 7 BRIRA/
8 BXRAEERER Bilus-:) FrERRRLAl TEEY
Group's
effective Held by Held by
interest the Company  subsidiaries
r£E RARE  HNEAR
B gL BB ®BE
% % %
Heng Fung Capital Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability HKS$2 100 100 — Securities investment
BEBERARAF company 28T BHIRE
&% BBRAR
Heng Fung Capital (Canada) Inc. Canada, limited liability CADI1 100 100 - Property investment
company 1mgAn NERZ
MEX - BRAF
Heng Fung Underwriter Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$2 100 100 - Securities trading
company 2EL E5EE
% BRATF
Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Limited Japan, limited liability JPY60,000,000 81.8 - 100 Hotel operating
company 60,000,000A BEEE
AR BRATF
Ichi Ni San Enterprises Company Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 100 100 - Property holding
Limited company 10,000% 7 nERE
% BRAF
Japan Xpress Hospitality Limited Japan, limited liability JPY495,000,000 81.8 - 100 Investment holding
company 495,000,0008 REER
AR BRAF
Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya Japan, limited liability JPY30,000,000 81.8 - 100 Hotel holding
company 30,000,000A BEER
AR BRARA
Keng Fong Foreign Investment Co. Ltd  United States of America, USD250,000 100 - 100 Property investment
limited liability company 250,000% 7t and development

KNELRE BRAF NERERER
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19. RHEBATZER MBATXK (LXHEBARFKE)

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) (#&)
Place/country of Particulars of
incorporation/operation issued share capital/
Name and kind of legal entity registered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
HMA L e/ BRIRE/
8 ERRAEERER aMERER gt 4 5] TEER
Group's
effective Held by Held by
interest the Company  subsidiaries
LS L] HALE  HNEAR
BREL BE BE
% % %
Sansui Resorts Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 62.7 - 100 Property investment
WKERNBRAE] company 10,000% 7 I ESA
% BRATA
Sapporo Holdings Inc. Japan, limited liability JPY3,000,000 81.8 - 100 Hotel holding
company 3,000,008 EERR
AR BRAF
Singapore Service Residence Pte Ltd  Singapore, limited liability SGD1,250,000 100 - 100 Property holding
company 1,250,0005 M4 7T ESSE
g - BRAR
SingXpress Capital Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD650,200 62.7 - 100 Property holding
company ordinary shares WERE
A - BRAR SGD1,675,000
preference shares
650,200 103 7T
EBR
1,675,00057 1035
BER
SingXpress Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1,250,000 62.7 - 100 Property investment
company ordinary shares NERE
B8 ARAF 1,250,000/ T & @ik
SingXpress Investment Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD800,000 988 - 100 Investment holding
company 800,000 M T REARR
g BRAR
SingXpress International Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability SGD2 100 - 100 Property holding
company 2T NERE

g - BRAE
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19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 19.

FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/operation
Name and kind of legal entity
HMA L e/
8 FREEERER
SingXpress Land Ltd Singapore, limited liability
(formerly known as SingXpress Ltd) company
SingXpress Land Ltd Mg ARAT
(A& SingXpress Ltd)

Wai Kin Investment Company Limited Hong Kong, limited liability
REEZARAR company
% BRAA

Xpress Credit Limited
BREEARAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&E ARAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&% BRAF

Xpress Finance Limited

EFHMHARAA

RIBLAR ZERE WELRXR (ERKEQTHRE)

(#4)
Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
BRITRE/
aMERER gt 4 5] TEER
Group's
effective Held by Held by
interest the Company  subsidiaries
LS L] HALE  HNEAR
BREL BE BE
% % %
SGD24,974,437 62.7 - 62.7 Property development,
Publicly traded in property investment,
Singapore properties trading and
24 974 4373 IETC investment holding
RITMEAREE NEER  MERE
NEEERRERR
HK$600,000 100 100 — Investment holding
600,000/ RARR
HKS$1,260,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
1,260,000/ RERR
HK$133,866,230 72 - 72 Financing services
133,866,305 7 SBRK

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

There were four (2010: twelve) subsidiaries of the
Company, which were incorporated in Japan (2010:
in Hong Kong), were inactive and have completed the
procedure of deregistration during the year.

R EERA/EIBFEARBAFEREABRAE
E@BARHDEEFEZARBMBEAR - EERE - H&F
PIEACI B R R AR SRR RBNILE

ARARENE(—F—FE  +—MEAK(ZF—F
7 BB EMA TN EA D ARET - LERERTH
BRI -
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE 20. RE&QATZER BEQITIXR (& EARMIE)
FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES
Group Company
rEE ENE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB——F —EB-2F —EB——F —E-EF
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FTHEx TiER iR TR
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMREG - RAE 3 - 5,385 5,385
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 1,293 8,158 - -
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEE 2 HE 4,552 4,552 - -
5,848 12,710 5,385 5,385
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (3,600) (3,600) (5,385) (5,385)
2,248 9,110 - -
Amounts due from associates  HBf& QAR
within one year (—FREH) 172 9,528 - 2,052
Amounts due to associates YN NCIE G
within one year (—FRE| ,Hﬂ) (515) (10) - -
As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, amounts due from (to) RETE——FR-_T-—TF=F=+—H B/ ﬁjﬁ%’\
associates are unsecured, interest free and repayable on (EREEE N EIFIR) TR - 2R RARERER

demand.
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20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE  20.

FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates at 31 March 2011
and 2010 are as follows:

REE DR 2 EE BEQRARR(ERBEQARE)
(&)

R —FR-F-FF=A=+ - AZEEREAA
AR -

Country of
Name Particulars of issued shares held incorporation  Percentage of interest held
=z FRFEBRITROZER EES i A= FiERE ot
2011 2010
—EB——-F ZEB-2F
SingXpress Land Ltd (formerly Ordinary share of no par value Singapore - 33.3%
known as SingXpress Ltd) (Note) EME{E 2 LB F N
(AT#8SingXpress Ltd) (#717%)
SingXpress Realtors Pte Ltd Ordinary share of no par value Singapore 49% -
EEE B AN
RSI International Systems Inc. Ordinary share of no par value Canada 29.8% 29.8%
(“RSI) EEE LR IIEWN

SingXpress Realtors Pte Ltd is unlisted, the cost of
investment in the associate as at 31 March 2011 is
approximately HK$3,000 (2010: N/A).

RSI is listed in Canada, the market value of the listed
shares held by the Group as at 31 March 2011 is
approximately HK$1,102,000 (2010: HK$1,402,000).
At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of interests in associates, since
RSI generates profit throughout the year; the Directors
of Company determined that no impairment is needed.

Note: In August 2010, the Group has undertaken to make
applications in excess of its pro rata entitlement to the
convertible bonds under the rights issue of SingXpress
Land Ltd (“Rights Issue”) and pay for not less than SGD7
million in aggregate principle amount of the convertible
bonds provisionally allotted to the Group of which the
Group has undertaken to take up. The Rights Issue
was completed on 9 November 2010 and the Group
has subscribed for approximately SGD16.2 million in
aggregate principle amount of the convertible bonds. On
15 November 2010, the Group converted SGD3 million
of the convertible bonds into 100,000,000 new shares of
SingXpress Land Ltd and the shareholding interests has
been increased from approximately 33.3% to 51.4% and
SingXpress Land Ltd became a subsidiary of the Company
thereafter.

SingXpress Realtors Pte Ltd A3 LM - RZZT——F =
=T —HREEQF 2 RERARLR3,0008T(ZF—F
F:NEA) -

RSIAMEX LT AEEMFBE LTROR =T —F
—A=+—HZmEHNAELI02,0008T(ZF—FTF
1,402,000/ 70) - RIREEEAEE R - RERBFERE 2
NRZ R ZAIRE £ - HRRSIRFRELERT - A
NRAEEFRBLEREFTE -

Wit RZZT—ZFNA - AEEDEAFEBRBBELERSingXpress
Land Ltd $A& ([ 48R )18 TR L BIES 2 AR EHACRE - I
PAEEEE CREMAEED AmAE 2 TRRES I AR
EHFETDRT7,000,000FT NI - HRER =T —TF+—A
NEZTK - AEBEERBEAREEFX16,200,000% 113 T2 7
BRES - R-_T—TF+—A+HB - KEEH3,000,000
N 7T 2 AT HARR (& %5 52 45100,000,000% Sing X press Land
Ltd3T & fn - EARER433.3%18E51.4% + E#%SingXpress
Land Ltd K BAR A ZHEAF]
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20.

ZE-—F=ZA=+t—HIFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group’s
associates extracted from their annual reports are as

follows:

Assets BE
Liabilities afiE
Revenues &

Profit (loss) for the year ended

The associates of the Group listed above, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other associates would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

SingXpress Realtors Pte Ltd has a financial year end
date on 31 March, which is conterminous with the
Group.

RSI has a financial year end date on 31 December,
which is not conterminous with the Group. For the
purpose of applying the equity method of accounting,
the financial statements of RSI for the year ended 31
December 2010 (2010: 31 December 2009) have been
used as the Group considers that it is impracticable for
RSI to prepare a separate set of financial statements as
of 31 March. Appropriate adjustments have been made
accordingly for the effects of significant transactions
between 31 December 2010 and 31 March 2011 (2010:
between 31 December 2009 and 31 March 2010).

FREN (E18)

REE DR 2 EE BEQRARR(ERBEQARE)
(&)

HWHREAEERE QR FR VM BENIENT

2011 2010
—E——f t B .3
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FERT
4,125 44,509
(4,101) (24,410)
10,868 21,338
191 (6,387)

ERIFEETRAEIBYEARBAFEREABRAE
B@EAHMOEEFEZASREBZLNR - EFERA - W
PR AR S R R E RS ERIEANITE

SingXpress Realtors Pte Ltd 2 BB FEHEE R A=A
=t+—H BAREE-H-

RSIZEBRFEZERAT-_A=+—0 BRHRAEER -
AR AEERARSISITHREEEZE= A=+ —AZHBWRE
WAAFT  BRSIEFEHZEZE T —ZTF+_-_A=+—H
(ZE—ZF : ZETNF+ A=+ LFEZHB
mERAEZeHE YER-_T—ZF+_A=+—8H
E-TFZA=TRCEE T ZFTAF T
B=t—HE-_ZT-—ZF=-F=+—RB)fETEAR S Z
FEENEERAE -
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21, TAHHESREE
Group EE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET THERT
Non-current SERE
Equity securities MR E 55

Unlisted, at cost JEET - IRAANE 39 37
Debt securities, at cost (Note) ESES - R ARNEHZ)

Unlisted in Hong Kong REABIELET 1,425 1,425
Total #sEt 1,464 1,462
Note: The debt securities represent club membership which is Wit EBHBAETERMS CWETISRERE A FEREEM

stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss as they do FIEZEEE  DIRRARRTOREEBIE -

not have a quoted market price in an active market and fair
value cannot be reliably measured.
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22. GOODWILL 22, HE
Group REE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHER
Gross and net carrying values FHEABEKREE
At 1 April and 31 March RUA—HE=A=+—H 10,544 10,544
The carrying values of goodwill are allocated to the EFERENSD  BEZREECSEZUTESES
following cash generating unit in the annual impairment B
test:
2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-Z2F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHERT

Hotel operations in Japan AR S %5 10,544 10,544
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22.

GOODWILL (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of goodwill, and determined
that no impairment associated with cash generating
unit. The recoverable amounts for the cash generating
unit given above were determined based on value-in-
use calculations, covering a detailed five (2010: five)
years budget plan, followed by an extrapolation of
expected cash flows at the growth rates stated below.
The growth rates reflect the long-term average growth
rates for the respective business operations:

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are:

Growth rate e R
Discount rate ALI8 &

The management made key assumptions for the Group
have been determined based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent with
the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant segments.

Apart from the considerations described in determining
the value-in-use of the cash generating unit above, the
Group’s management is not currently aware of any
other probable changes that would necessitate changes
in its key estimates.

22.

BE )

REeEHEEER  AREFERE2IROSHE  BE
EYEERGELFUMEBIRE - LARSELENZ
AREeEREAEETE  BEFANEF(ZT-F
FRF)EHENE  HREBUTERRERERRSR -
BREXRBRABERBHREFIEREE

ERBEFEMAZEZRR

Hotel operations

BEER
2011 2010
—ET——F —E-EF
6% 5%
5% - 10% 5% — 10%

AEEZTERTAEEERRBERANANZMIHH
RBEMERE - A ZIEFHIEREBERBENE 2
TR —B e PTAZBEIR BT AR K R ER B B 275 0 &
HEZ S ERE

BT LG A B B AR AT EE S -
785 B TR 3 07 7 ] A AT Bt A0 i
DA S B Y B A B -
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23.

—E-—HZA=+—HILFE

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Group

Term loans — secured
Mortgage loans — secured
Installment loans — unsecured

Net carrying value
Less: Provisions

The mortgage loans bear interest at 0.5% (2010: 0.5%)
over prime interest rate in Hong Kong per annum and
are repayable by installments up to year 2012. The
loans are secured by mortgages over properties placed
by the borrowers. The mortgage loans are repayable
on demand due to the default on repayment by the
borrowers.

The installment loans bear interest ranging from 20%
to 40% per annum (2010: 20% to 40% per annum).
The repayment terms of the loans are negotiated on an
individual basis.

BEHER—HER
ZIBE R —HER
7 BB — E A

AREVFE
B

T ——FFR Annual Report 2011
133
ElER
AEE
2011 2010
—ET——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT
1,266 1,266
4,791 4,791
1,466 1,802
7,523 7,859
(6,888) (6,933)
635 926

RIBEFTREEREENEMOSE(ZT—FF 1 0.5F)
BEHE  WEARZZE——FaoHER - ZZEFIIA
ERAMEHZ MERBEERR - ARERABRIER - &
RIBEFRIRBENREE -

SEE R EREN F20EE40E (ZF—FF : FF
£ F20EF408) i 8 « HFHHZ ERPRERIEA
AT -
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 23.
Note:
(a) The aging analysis of loan receivables that are not impaired

is as follows:

Within one year —5FRX

More than one year but not exceeding BiB—EE DR
two years

More than two years SR

()] The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
values of loan receivables approximate to their fair values.

(© The Group has provided fully for all loan receivables that
are determined not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there
had not been a significant change in credit quality and
the Group has hold collaterals over these balances. The
movement in the provision of loan receivables is as follows:

At 1 April HEA—H
Bad debts recovery AR
Written off Higs

Impairment loss and allowances charged
to the consolidated income statement

At 31 March

k=

P& ()
Hrat -

(@  FRRE ERERER AT

2011 2010
—B——% —E-%5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHRE
21 -

- 312

614 614

635 926

(b) ARFEFRABRETREEEEAFERS -

(o) AEEREEEATAKREZAERKEREBIELEE - &
EEREBELRRA  ANEEERUERLENEAED
BAKERZEERFTEENR - NELBRARIELRER
1 o B RBHEZEMT

PR e W IR 2R EE R KA

2011 2010
e —B-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
6,933 11,961
(45) -
- (5,294)
- 266

6,888 6,933
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BHE

24.

—E-—HZA=+—HILFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES
AND CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cash and cash equivalents include the following
components:

Cash at banks and on hand RITHE RFHERE
Short-term bank deposits FEERIRITIE K

Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEARITER

Bank balances and cash B ESARLERZR F
as stated in the statements RITEBR LIRS
of financial position

Bank overdraft RITEX

FAERERERMIIRE
MR e EEAR

Cash and cash equivalents
as stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

Cash at banks carry interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Short-term bank deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
month depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term bank deposits at fixed rates ranging from 0.01%
to 3.29% (2010: 0.05% to 3.29%) per annum. The
carrying amounts of the pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash and bank overdraft approximate to
their fair values.

BEMARTENR RTEHKRBASUARBITEX

RekReHEBAREATEE

Group Company
REE AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF —E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTHET THERT THERT
48,156 65,983 13,564 13,219
144,407 71,276 95,297 47,164
192,563 137,259 108,861 60,383
(7,492) (3,413) (1,531) -
185,071 133,846 107,330 60,383
(86,486) (8,274) (86,273) -
98,585 125,572 21,057 60,383

RITRSBEERRTERNTRIUFTBAE - RFARE
EHR TR oMM E - BHRRTHFERE—B R —E
AHRAE - WU Bl REUS IR B IRTTF S3Z N F0.01 2
E329B(-F—Z%F : 0.05FE3.29F) Z BElFE F =5t
BZHE - DEMRITER - RITHEH LIRS ARIRITE
X2 REERE S A FERE
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24.

25.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES
AND CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT (continued)

Included in bank balances of the Group is approximately
HK$5,707,000 (2010: HK$31,109,000) of bank balances
denominated in US dollars (“USD”) placed with banks
in Hong Kong, US and Singapore, approximately
HK$35,077,000 (2010: HK$67,443,000) of bank
balances denominated in Singapore dollars (“SGD”) placed
with banks in Hong Kong and Singapore, approximately
HK$1,893,000 (2010: HK$3,390,000) of bank balances
denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY”) placed with banks
in Hong Kong and Japan, approximately HK$14,802,000
(2010: HK$114,000) of bank balances denominated in
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) placed with banks in Hong
Kong and Canada.

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, the pledged bank deposits
placed as securities for the borrowings.

Cash and cash equivalents mainly include the following
foreign currencies:

USD e
SGD T
JPY =
CAD hnc
INVENTORIES

Group

The amounts represent food and beverage and other
consumables for hotel operations.

24, BEHETER RTESKRESURRBTEX(H)
FFARSEE BRI BIRITA#RL5,707,0008 L (= F —
T4 1 31,109,000 70) + EL(ETDFHELF RN E
75 EBRITINGE ZRIT 5 SRITHERRY935,077,0007 70(=
T—2F 1 67,443,000 7T) + TN T (TR TT 1)t
EWFRAES LN 2817 + $R1T7452491,893,00078
TL(ZZF—FF : 3,390,000 70) - #HHE(THE DEHEL
TFRREBNRBARZIRTT » IRITE#%114,802,00078 (=
T 1 114,000%70) AT ) EHE @ 3
FRREBRINERZIRIT -
RIB——FER-_T-TFE=A=+—H " 2EDEFR
IEFEEEAERRITMR
ReNREEEER ETBEIEATIMNE

Group Company

KEE AN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E2——F —E-FF
000 000 000 000
Fx Fx Fx Fx
707 2,164 92 1,474
4,718 3,188 9 62
20,223 40,815 - 10,976
1,847 15 - _

25. RE
TEE

ZABIEEE RS R 2 ERREMEER o
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26. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 26. BEPLSEME
The Group’s carrying amounts of properties held for REFEZHRPEEMEZREERNT -
sale comprise:
Group
AEEH
2011 2010
—B2——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THERT
Step acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 42) BB AR (M at42) 129,927 -
Additions NE 8,476 -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 138,403 -
Properties under development for sales is held under BB TIENFEZERDHEYE
the following lease term:
2011 2010
—2——F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THERT
Freehold outside Hong Kong BBAINZ KA FERE 138,403 -
Analysed as: DA
At cost AW 138,403 -

At 31 March 2011, the Group’s properties under
development for sale with a carrying value of
approximately HK$138,403,000 (2010: Nil) has been
pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 30).

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

5 AR
B RERER

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful

debts
Other receivables, deposits HibpEWE - Ee Rk
and prepayments FEfTRRIA

Prepaid lease payments (Note 17) FBNHERIE(H:7F17)

R-ZFE——F=A=+—0 ' RE({EA)138,403,000/8 T
(ZT—FF : @) AREZERPFEN RS EF ARG
AEEEFR(EE30) ©

27. EBHREMEWNE - RERBENTR

Group Company
rEE NN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF —E2——F —E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHERT FTHERT FHET
17,679 17,794 - -
(10,023) (10,021) - -
7,656 7,773 - -
24,609 7,729 1,257 1,909
477 477 - -
32,742 15,979 1,257 1,909
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27.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Directors of the Company considered that the fair
values of trade and other receivables are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because these
amounts have short maturity period on their inception.

The average credit terms granted by the Group to its
trade customers are as follows:

Hotel operations
ELE S
Financing operations

An aging analysis of the trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period is as follow:

0 - 60 days 0£260H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H LA L

27.

ESRAMEYRRIE  RERFENTRE)

ARREERRE S REMBYGIAZ A FEERREE
TEEAZR HAZRFENELRBEEEIMA -

AEBGTHEZEPZFHEEHRNT

60 days
60H
30 days
30H
EZRIGRIEN RS HREE R 2R T
Group
KEE
2011 2010
—B——F —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTERT
1,582 2,250
91 89
5,983 5,434
7,656 7773
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BHE

27.

ZE-—F=ZA=+t—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are past
due but are not considered impaired at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

61%90H
90R LA £

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default. Trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a customer with long business relationship. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
additional provision for impairment is necessary as
there is no significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered to be fully recoverable.

ESRAMEYRRIE  RERFENTRE)

RIS R H A MBI AT R E Y B SRR
2 BRI -

Group

AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET THERT
91 89
5,983 5,434
6,074 5,523

DRBHREREEZEBFATBRARLILEIE
Rz BF  CBHERBEZESRUGKARBN —
HEAEBERPARBEBEREIETS - RIENELR - B2
BHRETHIELBEINRERR  AEEERRBEAEE
BRREHKE A 2HKE -
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27.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
determined not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances were considered fully recoverable.

At 1 April
Impairment loss

BIEEE

Reversal of impairment loss
At 31 March

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
trade receivables were individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties.
Consequently, specific impairment provision was
recognised. The Group has hold collaterals over these
balances.

REA—H

27.

BB

R=ZR=+—H

ESRAMEYRRIE  RERFENTRE)

AREE RO EE RN AW E 2 BB FE R TA 2 B B
B BEERBAELRRAS ANEREHRZEEER
WEEMNEREBMAERTR R 2BKE - BELRIE
HRE R -

2011 2010
—E——f —E-TfF
HK$'000 HKS$’000
FH&xT FH&T
10,021 10,000

23 21

(21) -
10,023 10,021

RBEHREER - AEEZ B ZRUGRED S ERIEE
RRME - AR ERYRIBER DR RN 2 EFHRA -
At - ARRBEBBCDERER - AREREXSHEBNE
Han e
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28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 28. BRATETABHZZSHMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Group Company
REE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——F C—B-BF —¥--% "B-%F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

FHET FTHET THERT THERT
Listed securities held for trading #{EE& 2 FH&EH
Equity securities — in Hong Kong & A& %A —&FH 122,340 115,179 115,628 80,828
Equity securities — outside Hong A% — & IASN
Kong 43,661 17,177 40,242 12,164
Market value of listed securities %52 H{E 166,001 132,356 155,870 92,992
Financial assets designated at fair ZAF(EFAEZRZZ
value through profit or loss TRBE
— Equity-linked products — IRAREMAE @ 7,779 3,761 7,779 3,761
— Dual currency notes —EEERRE 1,637 - - -

Total fast 175,417 136,117 163,649 96,753
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28.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The listed securities are held for trading purpose.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as
part of changes in working capital in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. At 31 March 2011, there
are approximately HK$151,000,000 listed securities
secured for providing banking facilities to the Group
(2010: HK$34,527,000).

Equity-linked products are designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition as it contains embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract to be
designed as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Terms of the equity-linked products as at 31
March 2011 are as follows:

Principal amount

&

USD1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,779,000)
1,000,000 7T (& 77,779,000 7T)

The equity-linked products are subject to mandatory
redemption clauses at maturity date depending on
the market prices of a United States of America listed
securities underlying the equity-linked products. The
equity-linked products will be redeemed based on the
original principal amounts. The equity-linked products
are interest bearing.

At maturity date, if the equity-linked products,
depending on the market prices of the underlying
equity securities and certain predetermined price levels,
are still outstanding, the equity-linked products will
be redeemed by the issuer at the principal amounts in
cash or shares which may be lower than the principal
amounts.

As at 31 March 2010, the equity-linked products are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Their fair values are determined based on
the valuation provided by the counterparty financial
institutions at the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, there is approximately HK$121,000
change on equity-linked products recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2010.

28.

BRAVEFABRZERMEE(F)

MEFFIEEERS - %ﬁ/‘ifﬁﬁr)@amzi@ﬂéfk
%« BEOBIMERARERERAZEBEES T D
“@b F_fffi_ﬂ_waEl AR E B EIRRT
FEEIF 2 T EZE4151,000,0008 T (ZF —ZF

34,527,000787T) °

HRRAHBERBERAXITETR - AFBGER
FIFEFKE2HAHANEER/RATFEFARGEZE
BMEE  BEAHBERBR VT ERR I ERIZAF
Bt \ERZeREE -HE-_T—F=A=1+—8"
PRAEMAE 2 SFHIAT

Maturity
E#HE

22 September 2011

—E——FNAA=+=H

A B E /AR SF R AR 2 R BI M E ERK - AR

HLR AR EMNEE IR AERE 2 EB FTES M EME o RAE
HERGRIBERTACTHED - RABNDER BT ERE

REIEA - WA ER (R ERRARESHENRET
FEE 2 BRKFEME) HARTTE - RARBERSHETA

BASBUBSSBRMER - BRE 2B RnEER
KEFE o
HE-_ZT-ZTFE=A=+—08  BRAEHEERD RS HE

HEBZRAYEE c HAFEDRER SEF U HikE
RERRERHEE R ZHEMERT - Bitt - RARBE
?’7121000;%7EEA@ —E-EF=RA=+—HItFEZ
,ﬁ? Ui 5 BR P AR
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. EZFHMENMKEURESER

Group Company

REE PN

2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——F C—B-BF —¥--% "B-%F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

FHET FTHET THERT THERT
Trade payables B S e 980 740 - -
Other payables and accrued HEMENSRIERETER
expenses 41,103 100,420 3,151 2,088
42,083 101,160 3,151 2,088
The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods REBZHERRTAEE 2 RERNTI0E608(=F
ranging from 30 to 60 days (2010: 30 to 60 days). —ZF :305E60H) - BHENFIBRRE HRELEE B IRE
An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end of BEAMZRESTTAT
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:
Group Company
REE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —B-=F —2——F —EB-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT THET THERT
0 - 60 days 0260H 761 737 - -
61 - 90 days 61290H - - - -
Over 90 days 90H AL 219 3 - -

980 740 - -
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30. BORROWINGS

Non-current
Bank borrowings
Mortgage loans

Current
Bank borrowings
Mortgage loans

Total borrowings

Secured
Unsecured

Total borrowings

FRE
RITEE
BIBEN

TE
RITEE
ZIBE R

B
EIH

RiEE

30. fBE
Group Company
REE AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF —E——fF —E-FfF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FTHET THERT THERT
98,739 - - -
228,540 47,105 - _
327,279 47,105 - -
81,153 95,177 62,535 31,029
135,610 33,280 - -
216,763 128,457 62,535 31,029
544,042 175,562 62,535 31,029
544,042 174,003 62,535 31,029
- 1,559 - -
544,042 175,562 62,535 31,029
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30. BORROWINGS (continued) 30. fBE(#E)
At the end of the reporting period, the above RIBEHREEE - S EEIRA T ESES
borrowings were repayable as follows:
Group Company
rEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——F C—B-BF -¥-—-% "B-%F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FERT
On demand or within one year JZ&skak—F R 216,763 128,457 62,535 31,029
More than one year but not BB —FENEAMF
exceeding two years 17,363 6,540 - -
More than two years but not BEMEETHEBEAF
exceeding five years 150,627 14,465 - -
More than five years HBiRRE 159,289 26,100 - -
544,042 175,562 62,535 31,029
Less: Amount due within one & : REIEEBET—5RW
year shown under EIH 2 FRIR
current liabilities (216,763) (128,457) (62,535) (31,029)
Amount due after one year kARBEET —F#
shown under non-current BH 2 FIE
liabilities 327,279 47,105 - -
Note: As further explained in Note 2 and Note 44 to the financial Bist : BNBATSERR M2 R T 443 — SRt - BN AEEEAS
statements, due to the adoption of HK Interpretation ERBESYE  AEEETWARMKZZEBRETHES
5 in the current year, certain borrowings of the Group REBEE -

containing an on-demand clause have been reclassified as
current liabilities.
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30. BORROWINGS (continued) 30. fBE(#E)
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also EHEYERMNESEE(JHEERB TN FZR)NT

equal to contracted interest rates) on the borrowings
are as follows:

Group NEEF
2011
—B—-F
Fixed Rate Floating Rate
L 28
Bank borrowings 3.075% to 3.175% 1.25% over Bank'’s
RITEE 3.075E%3.1752 SWAP Offer rate

ST EA 5| (AR & 1. 252

0.75% over

Bank’s cost of funds
RITESKAN0.75E

Mortgage loans N/A 2.75% below Prime rate,
BEER TEf HIBOR (1 month) + 0.7%,
HIBOR (1 month) + 0.8%
HIBOR (1 month) + 1%,
HIBOR (1 month) + 1.5%,
HIBOR (3 month) + 1.25%,
1.4% over Bank s cost of funds,
1.65% over Bank s cost of funds,
1.75% over Bank s cost of funds,
SIBOR + 1.88%,
1.35% over Bank's SWAP Offer rate,
0.75% over the Commercial
Financing rate,
EEENEH2T5E -
ERRTAERE A)mo.7E -
ERRTAERE A)mo.sE -
BESTRAZERE(—EA)ME
BRROTAFFA(—EAMSE -
BRRTAZERE(ZEA)ML25E -
RITESHAMAR -
RITESMANLSE -
RITESHAMLISE -
HBEERTTIRI 7 20188 -
SRATIRES| BAZ 1 35 -
AERENEM.75E

(1
(1

= =

Fixed Rate
-\

3.08% to 3.20%
3.08EE320E

5.93% to 7.14%
S.O3EETI4E

2010

—E-BF

Floating Rate
28

0.75% over the

Bank’s cost of funds
RITESKAN0.75E

Prime rate in Hong Kong
+0.5%, HIBOR (1 month)
+ 1%, HIBOR (3 months)
+1.25%, 0.75% over the
Commercial Financing
Rate, 0.25% above
prevailing Enterprise
Financing Rate, 1.75%
over the Bank’s cost of
funds or 1.75% over the
Bank’s SWAP Offer rate
BEREENEMO.SE -
ERBRIRZERE(—ER)
ME - FEFTRERE
(@A) m.25E -
ERBENEMO.75E -
BRMERENEM.25E -
RITESRAMLTSRH
RITIE ES R 1752



T ——FFER Annual Report 2011
147
L] L]
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2011
B R 5 55 B2
HE-T——F=A=1+—HIEFE
30. BORROWINGS (continued) 30. fEE#E)
Company PN
2011 2010
—E-——F —E-ZF
Fixed Rate Floating Rate Fixed Rate Floating Rate
T8 2L L8 2L
Bank borrowings N/A 0.75% over the Bank’s N/A 0.75% over the Bank’s
RITEE TiEB cost of fund g cost of fund
RITESKANMO.75E RITESKANO.75E
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are BEZREEN TGS HERL -
denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
KEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——F —B-FF —B2——F —EB-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FER FTHERT
HK$ BT 121,655 75,160 28,853 25,130
CAD T - 7,600 - -
SGD FrngoT 370,087 64,025 - -
JPY H 18,618 22,878 - -
USD =57 16,156 4,652 16,156 4,652
CHF B+ SHRD 17,526 1,247 17,526 1,247
544,042 175,562 62,535 31,029
The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate BEZREESEE N FERS -

to their fair values.
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31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS 3. mHERES
Group rEE
Prior to the step acquisition as stated in Note 42 AT SRR I 5T 42 P 2 B AP W BB HEFT AT » SingXpress
to the financial statements, SingXpress Land Ltd Land Ltd([SingXpress DER =T —FF+— AN AT
(“SingXpress”) has issued convertible bonds on 9 PHREES - THRERES 2 TR2ERAT
November 2010. The principal terms of the convertible
bonds are as follows:
Date of issue 9 November 2010 BITHE —ZE-TF+—-ANA
Aggregate principal SGD16,320,240 FNC L 16,320,240%7 hnsg 7T
amount
Issue price 97 percent of the principal BTE REFE297%
amount
Interest rate Nil Bx i
Maturity date 4 years from the date of issue )= BITH AR 45
Conversion price SGDO0.03 (subject to RiaE 0.03% N3 7T
adjustments under certain (REFIER TR FHAR)
circumstances)
SingXpress has SGD13,320,240 outstanding convertible RZZE——F=F=+—H ' SingXpressi#H13,320,240
bonds as at 31 March 2011, in which SGD13,239,677 TN TT 2 AR E S B ARTITE - A 13,239,677 1 41
are held by a subsidiary of the Company, Xpress Credit BThARAMBARNREEERAG(IFREER])
Limited (“Xpress Credit”). The outstanding convertible F¥B 13,239,677 MK T 2 RATE AT REH AT B %
bonds of SGD13,239,677 can be converted into TERAEZFT—NF+—A/\BHEAANHERLRE
444,008,000 shares of SingXpress at any time from the 444,008,000/%SingXpressi% {7 °
date of issue to 8 November 2014.
After elimination of these convertible bonds which BEHBTTRREEZZEARRESR R - PHRKRES
issued to Xpress Credit, the movement of liability and ZEERERYEEAT
equity components of convertible bonds are as follow:
Liability component Equity component Total
aERD BRI et
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
B ZEB-Bf CZEB--§ ZEBE-Bf "EB--§ CZE-Ef
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT TERT FTHERT THERT THERT
Step acquisition of BHYENERR
subsidiaries 279 - 190 - 469 -
Effective interest expense EIH|SF% 14 - - - 14 -
At 31 March R=A=+-H 293 - 190 - 483 -
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

Conversion period

The convertible bonds may be converted at the prevailing
conversion price into validly issued, fully-paid and
unencumbered conversion shares, at the option of the
bondholder, at any time after the date of issue of the
convertible bonds up to the maturity date, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds.
The conversion shares will, upon allotment and issue, rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing shares, save for
any dividends, rights, allotments or other distributions,
the record rate for which precedes the date of issue of the
conversion shares.

If the convertible bonds are not converted on or before
its maturity, bondholder shall have rights to request
SingXpress to redeem all (but not less than all) of those
bondholders’ convertible bonds on the maturity date at
100 percent of the unpaid principal amount on maturity
date.

Valuation of liability component

At the date of issue, the convertible bonds were valued by
Messrs. Avista Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer, not connected with the
Group. The fair value of liability component was estimated
as the present value of a contractually determined stream of
future cash flows, upon maturity redemption, discounted
at the market yield of bonds with similar credit status and
taking into consideration the country risk premium and
illiquidity risk premium adjustments if appropriate. In
subsequent periods, the liability component is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 15.1% per annum.

AR RES ()
Hrat -
(a)  ¥H

(b)

RIBEATRE S 2 R RAGIE - BESRFE ATRER T ERE
FETAHZRETH A ILAREN - BER AR ES R E A
ZHBBRBBERET BRBRKRBERBEZ LR
Do RBEMEREERBETRARERNESTEZERS
ML - MR BARCER B B R AR B 9T A HIRT 2 AR -
F -~ DECREM D IRERSD ©

WA Rl 2 AT MR IR AR RE S - BAREABARE
SkSingXpressiA B HI H IR E B 2 RENASFH100%E % EE
FRAAZ 2R (IR ) ATHRAR E 5 o

BEHD 2 fhE

RETEE > TRREFHEAREYEFECBALAERE
EAEMLFEBTEBAERATETHE - Bt AEFS 2
RFERENEEZARKRBRSREIUE - WHNE HHE EIRRIR
EEFR 2 H SRR - RS ABRRE RS EMRE
TrRBEaERE(INEE) - g BESOREHEKANE
A SETIER - BER D 2 ERFEN XN SHRR1S1E ©
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32.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Group and Company

Pursuant to the prospectus of the Company dated 17
February 2011, the Company issued non-convertible
bonds with a principal amount of approximately
HK$105,633,000 on 11 March 2011. The principal
terms of the non-convertible bonds are as follows:

11 March 2011
HK$105,633,000

Date of issue
Aggregate principal
amount
Denomination in HK$100
multiple of
Interest rate 15% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears
10 March 2016

The Company may redeem

Maturity date
Redemption at the
option of the all or some only of the
Company non-convertible bonds
from the first anniversary
to the maturity date,
subject to giving no less
than 30 or more than 60
days of advance notice, at
101% of their principal
amount, together with

accrued interest

32.

FEABR AR ES

AEERARDQT

RZZE——F=A+—8  REXQARAHA-ZT——F
ZATEBHZEESE  ANAREITASEL05,633,000
PETLZ IEMTHARRE S o IERTIRREF 2 E BT ¢

BITAM —E——%=A+—H
REEE 105,633,00078 7T

gl 1007 7T 2 58K

Bx FFI5E » BEFRE—X
2EHE —E-RF=A+H
BAQATREED ARR A HAEERT A5

BIEEEAEA - B DR
30H =T ZR60H L imA
T BREASEZ101%(GE
B & FE)ER 225 (&
B ) FERRRRE S o



Z®/——FFR  Annual Report 2011

151
[ [
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2011
B3R R M
HE-T——F=A=1+—HIEFE
32. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 32. ERERES(HF)
The movement of the liability component of non- A MRESF BERDFEESHOT ¢
convertible bonds for the year is as follow:
2011 2010
—B——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THERT
Issuance on 11 March R=A+—H31T 105,633 -
Interest expense for the period HRFE X H 868 -
At 31 March W=A=+—H 106,501 -
Non-convertible bonds AR ES
2011 2010
—B2——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Non-current portion ERENE D 105,633 -
Current portion (Note) wEE D (H1Et) 868 -
106,501 -
Note: The current portion of non-convertible bonds included in Mt . SERTRIRE R 2 RENE D FTAE 5 K E AL FE FRIE A R EFT B

trade and other payables and accruals (Note 29). A(KE29) -
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33. EEBLEA
Group EE
The movements on the major deferred tax liabilities AEBERAZTERELERBEGEZEHWNT ¢

recognised by Group are as follows:

Fair value
gain on Other
revaluation taxable
of investment  Revaluation temporary
properties  of properties differences Total
BERREWE HAbfERT
2 AR ER R Bt HRFER et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHERT FHER
At 1 April 2009 RZZETNFMHA—H 18,754 1,705 496 20,955
Exchange realignment B 34, e 2,632 - - 2,632
Arising from acquisition H U B —EMT B AT M
of a subsidiary B4 6,421 - - 6,421
Charged (credited) to Hna G EEZE R
consolidated income (K1529)
statement (Note 9) 32,511 - (219) 32,292
At 31 March 2010 and RZE—FF=H
1 April 2010 =t+—Ak=ZT—ZF
mA—A 60,318 1,705 277 62,300
Exchange realignment B 3 SRR 7,231 - - 7,231
Step acquisition of subsidiaries & AU EEHT B A 7 387 - - 387
Charged to consolidated mnawma
income statement (Note 9) Wik (f7779) 25,153 - - 25,153
At 31 March 2011 R-—B——F=A1
=+-Am 93,089 1,705 277 95,071
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RBERHEAER  AEBERFRBAREBEEEYD
has estimated unused tax losses of approximately 208,734,000/ 70( = ZF —ZF : 217,334,000 7C) - AR
HK$208,734,000 (2010: HK$217,334,000). No REETER B & E M SR - R R B S B R RIRE IR
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of BE - EHABERIEERLBEE A EIR L o

these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit stream. The whole amount of estimated unused
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 33.

Company
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities
recognised by the Company are as follows:

IEERE ()
b N
RRRERZEERIBEE 2 EHOT

Fair value gain
on revaluation

of investment
properties
EMREYEZ
AR ERKE
HK$’000
FERT
At 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010, 1 April 2010 R=ZZEZTNFMWMA—HB - —ZZT—FF=F4
and 31 March 2011 Zt+—HERZZE-ZEFHNA—AK
—E——F=A=+—H 224
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EE#HERHA
Group rEE
As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s facilities RZZE——F=A=+—0  K~EERE 544,042,000

of approximately HK$544,042,000 (2010:
HK$174,003,000) are secured by:

- its land and buildings and prepaid lease payments
(Notes 16 and 17) with a total carrying value
of approximately HK$71,396,000 (2010:
HK$66,003,000);

- its investment properties (Note 18) with carrying
value of approximately HK$1,139,920,000
(2010: HK$731,376,000);

- its bank deposits (Note 24) of approximately
HK$7,492,000 (2010: HK$3,413,000);

- its properties under development for sale
(Note 26) with carrying value of approximately
HK$138,403,000 (2010: Nil);

- its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 28) with carrying value
of approximately HK$151,000,000 (2010:
HK$34,527,000).

TT(ZZF—F4F : 174,003,000 7T ) A T 5 T 2K -

- BR T 48 8 %49 71,396,000 T ( =& — & 4 -
66,003,00078 70) 2 £ REF A R FENTHEFHE
(516 %17)

— BE T 8 49 1,139,920,000 3 T ( —Z & — T &
731,376,000 7T ) 2 L E W2 (5E18)

- #4957,492,000/8 (= —ZF : 3,413,000/ 7T )

RITEAR(HRE24)

- BREIE47138,403,000/8 70 ( —E—Z4 :
FREEmE (KIRE26)

') 2ER

- 8k ™ 1& 49 151,000,000 & 7T ( — & —
34,527,000 7T ) 2 ¥ A FEFT AB I
(MF5E28) °

z
SHAE
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35. SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company

Authorised:
At 31 March 2011 and 2010

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 2009

Exercise of 2009 Warrants
subscription rights (Note a)

Exercise of share options (Note 36)

Open offer (Note b)

Issue of consideration shares

(Note c)

At 31 March 2010, 1 April 2010
and 31 March 2011

35. B&
REBRADH
Par value Number of
per share ordinary shares Amount
BREE EERYE <8
HKS$ HK$'000
BT TET
EERA
RIB2——FRZT-FF
=A=+—H 0.01  1,000,000,000,000 10,000,000
ERTRERRAE
RZZTNFMA—H 0.01 1,837,123,342 18,371
TE_ETNERIREE
RIEHE(Hf7ta) 0.01 1,430,359 14
1T RERRIE (M 5E36) 0.01 133,376,200 1,334
NGE A7) 0.01 367,424,668 3,674
BITREBRGR (Hitc)
0.01 301,481,481 3,015
R-E-ZF=A=+—-A8"
“E-ZEMA-AR
—E——f%=H=1+—-H 0.01 2,640,836,050 26,408
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

2009 Warrants

Pursuant to a written resolution of the board
of directors on 16 August 2004, the Company
approved a bonus issue of new warrants (“2009
Warrants”) to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on the register of
members on 5 November 2004 on the basis
of one 2009 Warrants for every ten shares
held by such shareholders. Pursuant to which
162,593,106 units of 2009 Warrants were issued
to the shareholders of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.09 per share as a
result of the bonus issue of new warrants.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, registered
holders of 2009 Warrants exercised their rights
to subscribe for 1,430,359 ordinary shares of the
Company at HK$0.09 per share.

The subscription period of 2009 Warrants has
already expired on 30 September 2009, the
outstanding 2009 Warrants of 100,989,556 units
were lapsed.

Pursuant to the circular dated 4 May 2009, the
Company made an open offer (the “Open Offer”)
of 367,424,668 offer shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.05 per offer share on the basis of
one offer share for every five existing shares. The
certificate for offer shares was dispatched on 27
May 2009 and commenced in dealing on 1 June
2009.

On 8 January 2010, the Group acquired 100%
of the share capital of Expats Residences Pte
Ltd (“Expats”) together with a loan due to Mr.
Chan Heng Fai (“Mr. Chan”) of approximately
SGD4.39 million from the vendor, Mr. Chan,
at a consideration of approximately HK$40.7
million. 301,481,481 shares were issued as the
consideration at a price of HK$0.135 per share.

MRA ()

(@)

(b)

(c)

ZEENEZREFE

BERZZZNFENA+TNAZESSEMRH
= AREHLERAR —ZTTNF+—ARBERZIE
REMZ AR RRRARBITHRARER (=T
NERBAEE]) BEABZERRESHETREN
AR T NFREEE o Bt AIRET
FTREFEERIZRFR0.09B T2 FREERAR
NEIREEREE1T162,593,106(0 —ZT N FRMAEE -

BHE_Z-ZF=A=+—HIFE —ZThF
REEBZECHBATEREZEN 28K
0.097 TR % 1,430,3598 AN A A ik ©

—ETNFRBEBZ2REHER_ZTNAFNIA
—+HJE® ' 100,989,556/ K EITF 2 — T NF
IR SRR -

BEAPA-_ZESAFRAWNB ZEEK AR
RERAARBEERMHAIERE —REERH 2
HAE - PEREERMH0.0SET REBRARAES
367,424,668 E RN ([ AFEE ) - BERHKHK
EER_EENFREA-T+THHEFE TR _ZZ
NENA—BRBES -

RZZE-—ZF-ANA  XEBUREYD
40,700,000/ T EHREELE & ([BRELE]) K
#EExpats Residences Pte Ltd([Expats])ZEBAEA
i3 A A R R 5 4 2 B 5 49.4,390,000 ¥ 1032 7T
301,481,481 s Ity E R R EM 1T - BRERE
0.135%87T °
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36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(@)

Company

On 9 May 2003, a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. The Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years
from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended. Eligible persons of the Share Option
Scheme include any employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries) and
any suppliers, consultants, agents, advisers,
shareholders, customers, partners or business
associates who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors of the Company, have contributed to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares
which, when aggregated with shares subject
to any other share option scheme(s), must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible person in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to the shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time and
with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

36.

F e B

(a)

¥ Y=

R-ZZEZ=FRANAB » "RAAIRMNERIEE
([FEAERTE]) - BRI SIS EMEANEBER
BELEFTERMZABRALTHL THEEINIEE - BRI
BEGEIHESER] - BRERE S A% AR—&
BEHIOF - BREAZZAERALBERARAE
EE2HERACHARNG R/ KEARANBEBARSE
FTERZ ARARSETMMBARZE[EES - 17
BABRSABE (BEAARNETAKBARZ
WITRIENTTES ) REMEER - FHEM - R
7B RE - BP - ABRAREBRBHSE -

REBEIE ) - AR th 2 BIE S I 2 B
B BEEFEOERESES R ZBROEMN &%
NEBBARIHEMEE D EITIRA 210% © ME
1218 A MERIEE R B REA 2 5RE
BALETZRMEE LR - UARBEMERD
FITRM1%RE - ERE— TR HBAZRE R
BRAFRRNBERAGHER - TRIEIT -

MARAESE « EBITHABKEBRERTHE
ErBEATRBBRE  HEIESARABEILIE
HITEE 2 BAME o 1O - TEEA 1218 A B8RS
fis [ AN R FMER £ BAR R s B FEMITE Bk (1]
FEZHEATRHTMBARA DM AIERE
BETR190.1% & 4B {E 3B 5,000,00078 7T (IR IEA A
AR AR BB 2 BAR ATt E ) 2 BENRAE - RIZBH
R R S LR - TR BT ©
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(@)

F=A=+—HILHFE

E OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Company (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determined by the
directors, and commences on a specified date and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of the offer of the share options
or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme,
whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors of the Company,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer of the grant, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.

Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the
exercise price per share over the nominal value
of the shares is recorded by the Company in the
share premium account. Options which lapse
or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

36.

B IR 8 ()

(@)

AR E(E)
RERHBRENNRE BRRER  ARAZAR
BRI EERESHRIET - ROBREZTR®
I HESET  miETRAHEETENEZER
B RS 10F SkiB ARt 81 2R B B LE (AR R fE
MERE)

Bl TREDAARARERET @ ETFER
UTEBEz&EE (AR ARNRIEZREHH
(BARXHB)IRBRMERRERMBUTE
MARBBRMNEERREREAHMNAEZSBR
B e B RERARFHRTE - R AR AR
fAEE

RIBREREITER - ARRERERUBITZRMNR
R EESIERRSMNEA - i RO E B2 B RAT
EERLARMDEBR - RITE B HIAT R MHEH
ZBEREE B R ARITRBAR R M AR o
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36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@)

Company (continued)

The following table discloses details of the
Company'’s share option in issue under the Share

Option Scheme during the year:

31 March 2011
—E——Ff=A=+—H

Name or category
of participant

Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai
Mr. Chan Tong Wan
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo

Sub-total

Employees and others
(Note 2)
In aggregate

Sub-total

Total

Weighted average exercise
prices of share options
(HKS)

SEATHEERER
=

REESLE
REELLE
BREBLL
R L e

TEREE
Da Roza Joao Paulot 4

Mt

EEREM(AZ =)

B EmE
FTEE
(&)

Share
option

type

BREER

2004(b)
2006(a)
2010(a)
2004(b)
2006(a)
2004(a)
2004(b)
2009(b)
2004(b)
2004(b)

2005

2004(b)
2006(2)

2007
2010(b)
2011(a)

36.

SEARAEC 8 ()

(a) FEREE)

44444

Number of share options

TREBEFARBBIRETEIAETZARABR

BREHE
Outstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding
at 1 April during during at 31 March
2010 the year the year 2011
(Note 1)
(Hat—)
R-2-2F R=2——F
mA—H =A=t+-H
i RITE FARH FRAKRK ESHN
123,885,800* - - 123,885,800*
49,008,000 - - 49,008,000
— 400,000,000 — 400,000,000
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
5,104,500 - - 5,104,500
15,313,500 - - 15,313,500
35,731,500* - - 35,731,500*
18,376,200 - - 18,376,200
4,594,050 - - 4,594,050
3,062,700 - - 3,062,700
2,041,800 - - 2,041,800%**
272,431,550 400,000,000 - 672,431,550
21,336,810 - (81,672) 21,255,138
10,209,000° - - 10,209,000°
1,531,350** - (1,531,350) —rx
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
- 7,500,000 - 7,500,000
33,077,160 10,500,000 (1,613,022) 41,964,138
305,508,710 410,500,000 (1,613,022) 714,395,688
0.1523 0.1342 0.2777 0.1450
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 36. FEMREREI(A)
Company (continued) (a) FEREE)
31 March 2010 " Number of shge options
ZE-ZE-A=T-H ERERE
Outstanding Adjustments” Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
Share option at 1 April during during during at 31 March
type 2009 the year the year the year 2010
RZEENE RZZ-25
Name or category of ZIELS mA-A . ) =A=+-18
participant BREN] BREER HAITHE FRFE FRHH @;}\V]ﬂﬁ% HARITEE
ote
(Hit=)
Directors £
Mr. Chan Heng Fai BiEBLE 2004 (a) 15,000,000 313,500 - (15,313,500) -
2004(b) 147,000,000* 3,072,300 - (26,186,500)  123,885,800*
2006(a) 120,000,000 2,508,000 ~ (73500000) 49,008,000
Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRoELE 2004(b) 15,000,000 313,500 - - 15,313,500
2006(a) 5,000,000 104,500 - - 5,104,500
2009(b) 18,000,000 376,200 - (18376,200) -
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow BEBTL 2004(a) 15,000,000 313,500 - - 15,313,500
2004(b) 35,000,000* 731,500 - - 35,731,500*
2009(b) 18,000,000 376,200 - ~ 18376200
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen WEEEE 2004(b) 4,500,000 94,050 - - 4,594,050
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter T%#5%4 2004(b) 3,000,000 62,700 - - 3,062,700
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo  DaRoza Joao Paulot 2005 2,000,000 41,800 - - 2,041,800
Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy ~ %-T4+ 2006(b) 2,000,000 41800 (2,041,800) - -
Sub-total 5 399,500,000 8,349,550 (2,041,800) (133,376,200) 272,431,550
Employees and others EEREM 2 -)
(Note 2)
In aggregate At 2004(b) 22,000,000 455,202 (1,118,392) - 21,336,810
2006(a) 10,000,000° 209,000 - - 10,209,000°
2007 1,500,000 31350 - - 1531350
Sub-total It 33,500,000 695552 (1,118392) - 33,077,160
Total @ 433,000,000 9,045,102 (3,160,192) (133,376,200) 305,508,710
Weighted average exercise fREME
prices of share options %ﬁ_ﬁfﬁﬁ
(HKS) (%) 0.1527 0.1495 0.1551 0.1430 0.1523

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Following the issue of the offer shares in
May 2009, the number of and the exercise
price of the outstanding share options were
adjusted in accordance with the requirements
of Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules and the
supplementary guidance issued by the Stock
Exchange on 5 September 2005.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, 81,672 and
1,531,350 share options are lapsed, amounted to
approximately HK$217,000 in total.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, Mr. Chan
Tung Moe and Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
were resigned as directors and their options were
reclassified from the directors category to other
category.

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise of share options during the year ended 31
March 2010 is HK$0.1430.

ESE

K= -

Mit= -

RZTTNFRABTEERGE  BARITEERE
Z BB RATHRERRR EM R RIS 17.03(13) 16 Bk A2
FR—TZTAFNAABEMZHITIES TIARE -

BE—T——

ZE2=F FZA=+T—BIEFE 81,6727 &
1,531,350 BE AR #E 2k R BRA $£49217,0008 7T ©

HME-T-PF=A=+ ALTE  RERKLR
BORA L GHEES - TS BRED SRS
EHSREL M -

HE-_Z-TFE=-A=+—RILFE  RITEHERE
B HIZ IR E R0.1430/8 7T
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)  Company (continued)

Details of the share options are as follows:

Share option

type Date of grant

BRERR RitiAH

2004 (a) 1 November 2004
—TENFE+-A-H

2004(b)* 15 November 2004
—TENF+-AtAA

2005 27 May 2005
“EFRFRA=TLA

2006(a)" 22 May 2006

“EEREFRA-TZH

2006(b) 21 December 2006
ZEERETAZT-H
2007 18 April 2007
—ZTLERATR
2009(b) 18 February 2009
—EENE-ATN\A
2010(a) 6 August 2010
“T-ZFN\ARAE
2010(b) 14 September 2010
“Z-ZENATEA
2011(a) 25 March 2011
—Z-—f=-A-taA

36. BRESEI(E)

(a) FEREE)

Btz FHIFIMT
2011 2010
Exercise Exercise
Exercisable period price price
—B—-F —B-BF
AfTERE TEE T6EE
1 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HKS$0.1567 HK$0.1567
“EENET-A-RAE-T-=FRANA 0.156778 7T 0.156787C
20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1583 HK$0.1583
“RENET-A-THE-Z-=FRA/\R 0.15838 7T 0.1583%7C
28 May 2005 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1469 HK$0.1469
ZEERFRAZTN\REZE—=5RAN\R 0.146978 7 0.14697% T
22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1534 HK$0.1534
ZEEAFRACTZRAECT-=FRANA 0.1534 7 0.153487T
30 January 2007 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1534 HK$0.1534
R E-A=tHE-E-=40ANA 0.15348 7T 015347
18 April 2007 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.2841 HK$0.2841
“ETHFENATN\BEZT-=FRA\H 0.284138 7% 0.2841%7T
18 February 2009 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.0684 HK$0.0684
ZETNFZATN\BEZT-=FhAN\H 0.0684i& 7 0.0684 77T
6 August 2010 to 8 May 2013 HK$0.1340 N/A
—E-2/\AABEZZ-=FRA/\R 0.1340% 7T NEH
14 September 2010 to 13 September 2016 HK$0.1400 N/A
“E-EEAATRRE-Z- R EAATZH 0.1400/& 7T NEH
1 April 2012 to 1 May 2016 HK$0.1410 N/A
ZE-ZFMA-AE-T—FRA-H 0.1410%8 1T ~am

The exercise of these options was subject to the
condition that the audited revenue of the Group
on any financial year during the life of the Share
Option Scheme was not less than HK$1 billion,
which is calculated based on the accounting
policies and presentation adopted by the Group
at the date of grant of option. Since the audited
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2008 was
over HK$1 billion, the above condition for the
share option granted on 15 November 2004 is
satisfied and those option is eligible to exercise.

* TR SHRE 2 ISR AN RERERET S
BENER M BFE 2 ERBZRETEPR10EE
T RBASERBRERIERMRAZE
ABRERENTAGFE - HREBEE_FTN\F=A
=t—REFEzE&EREEBRI0EET - LdR
TERENF+-ATHBERHE ZBREGEE SEK
BEBBER 7171 -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@)

Company (continued)
o The exercise of these options was subject to the
condition that the audited profit before income
tax of the certain subsidiaries/associates of the
Group for the financial year ended not less than
certain prescribed amounts. When it meets the
requirement, the share option will be exercised in
tranches of 20% per annum for each achieve year.

o On 16 May 2011, Mr Da Roza Joao Paulo is
demised.

The exercise of these options was according to the
following schedule:

a. 20% of the option shares be exercisable at
the date of acceptance; and

b. the balance will be exercisable in equal
yearly installments over 4 years with the
first installment commencing 1 January

2006.

The vesting period of other share options is
the period from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 676,331,388 (2010: 248,848,760) remaining
exercisable share options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of
the remaining exercisable share options were
represented to subscribe for 676,331,388 (2010:
248,848,760) ordinary shares in the Company at
HK$95,463,000 (2010: HK$35,417,000). The
weighted average remaining contractual life of
these outstanding share options is approximately
2 years (2010: 3 years).

No (2010: 133,376,200) share option were
exercised during the year.

SEARAEC 8 ()

AL E (&)

* TSRS G AAREZETHEB AR
SIE R RN REE 2 EEERAEHATRR TG
PRETEEDHE - BRRTAURE  BRESRES
EZEEFEAFF20% D HITHE

o R=ZZF——FAA+7XA ' Da Roza Joao Paulost A&
it o

* ZERBBAE TR TR RRTTE

a. HAR20%ERAERNENE BT - R

b. BN 2 BRI F RS FE D PG EITE
E—RITEHm—TTRF A A% -

HibfEiewE s BB iEm R B ETE RN
Eé:r?é HIEEFR o

REREEAEER - AR RIRIEEA T8I F17
ERARTITE Z BARESE £676,331,3881 (=&
—Z4F 1 248,848,76010 ) o BEITHEE T Al FIT(E
2B - B1ALA95,463,0008 T ( — T — T4 ¢
35,417,000/ 7T ) REEAN A R]676,331,388% (= F —
TAF ¢ 248,848, 7600% ) LB o ix M ARTTHFEERK
2 MEFIRTANBRORF(ZE—ZF : 3
F)o

FRIEEREETFE(ZZ—ZF : 133,376,200
) e
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36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 36.
(a)  Company (continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2011, the
estimated fair values of the options granted on
6 August 2010, 14 September 2010 and 25
March 2011 are approximately HK$18,480,000,
HK$294,000 and HK$592,000 respectively. The
inputs for calculating the fair value are shown as
follow:

13 February

Grant date 2009

—EEhF

R A ZAt=H

Calculation model FEER Black-

Scholes

ahz— & mEn

Exercise price 168 0.0680

Expected volatility BHERE 95.21%

Expected life (year) EHEH 4233

Risk-free rate 7 3 fa R =R 1.900%

Expected dividend yield BHRER 0%

Number of EREBREHA 18,000,000

share options granted
Fair value per share option SHEREZLATE 0.0500

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price
over the previous years.

Note:

(a) The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

b) The fair value of the share option is determined
by an independent professional qualified valuer,
Messrs. Avista Valuation Advisory Limited.
The risk-free interest rate was based on yield
of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note. Expected
volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of entities with the business in which
the Group is engaged. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

SEARAEC 8 ()

(@)

F 2 E] (&)

BE_T—F-A=-1+—HLFE BEEDR
“E-TFN\ARR  ZE-ZFAATOARS
T-—F-A-+AREL  BEREMGTAFED
5l #)7%18,480,0007% 7T~ 294,0007% 7T 12 592,000/
T ATEAFEZBABIIRAT

18 February 6 August 14 September 25 March
2009 2010 2010 2011
—2FhE -ER-BF  “F-%F C"F--F
—BtNH NRARH AB+MABE =BA=t+EH
(Note b) (Note a) (Note a)
(Hatb) (Hita) (Hiita)
Black- Binomial Trinomial Trinomial
Scholes —1E =1 =1
05— &R
0.0684 0.1340 0.1400 0.1410
95.21% 71.4% 81.8% 65.4%
4.233 2.753 6.002 4.233
1.900% 0.530% 1.855% 2.221%
0% 0% 0% 0%
36,000,000 400,000,000 3,000,000 7,500,000
0.0500 0.0462 0.0981 0.0790

BHRIETSRA R BRERFE 2 BERELKIEETE -

et

() HEBEATER AR EEBEAEE S B
HAiE - BREREREETEBBR TREY
M -

(b) WA TED AT B A AR E LR
HAAR AT « MEARFIEDAEBHERS
HAWE - BHRENRAREARTNLE, EBE
eREET - BEEEEREE TIRRR L TAL
B -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 36. FBRESTEI(E)

(a)  Company (continued) (a) FEREE)
In total, for the year ended 31 March 2011, GAFE BHE_T——F=-A=+—HULFE "
employee share-based compensation expenses R EIRMEEEI S 518,820,000 T (—E—FF :
amounted to HK$18,820,000 (2010: 303,000 70) * Bt ALZAEWEIRA - AMEARE
HK$303,000) has been included in the INEFER - R=ZE——F=A=+—8 5t AE
consolidated income statement which gave rise ERHEERED ZMRHEBREZ Gt AT EAS
to additional paid-in capital. As at 31 March 21,071,000/ T ( ZZF—Z4F : 2,450,000/ 7T) °
2011, the estimated fair value of the option
granted which was included in the employee
share-based compensation reserve, amounted to
HK$21,071,000 (2010: HK$2,450,000).
(b)  SingXpress Land Ltd (b) SingXpress Land Ltd

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the R ¥ SingXpress Land Ltd ( [ SingXpress | ) J& &
shareholders of SingXpress Land Ltd RZBEZE_FRNA-tTAARBZEBAZER
(“SingXpress”) passed on 26 June 2002, SingXpress £k # 7 5 8 i # 5t &l (Futuristic Share
SingXpress adopted the Futuristic Share Option Option Scheme) * EEEEEENEERES - &
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentive BRZ2MEREEMNEHEEREES © BISingXpress &
to directors and eligible employees. Eligible HEWNB AR ZHITESEHIERNITES - BRIEFME
participants include any confirmed employee, B RENIREAD LURZERF AL R RER
including executive directors and non-executive i E  BAZFEERN _E——FA=-+AH
directors of SingXpress and SingXpress’s 2 °

subsidiaries. The Futuristic Share Option Scheme
will expire on 25 June 2012, unless otherwise
terminated by the remuneration committee or by
resolution of Shareholders at a general meeting.
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36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

SingXpress Land Ltd (continued)

On 2 March 2011, a new share option scheme
(the “SingXpress Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by SingXpress and Futuristic Share
Option Scheme is cancelled.

The SingXpress Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from that date,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible
persons of this scheme include any employees,
executives or officers of the SingXpress or any of
its subsidiaries (including independent directors
and non-executive directors of the SingXpress or
any of its subsidiaries).

Pursuant to the SingXpress Share Option
Scheme, the aggregate number of shares over
which the committee may grant options on any
date, when added to the number of shares issued
and issuable in respect of all Options granted
under the scheme, shall not exceed 15% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the SingXpress on
the date preceding that date. During the entire
operation of the scheme, not more than 25% of
the total number of shares (including any shares
which may issued pursuant to adjustments, if
any, under the specific rule in respect of which
SingXpress may grant options under the scheme,
may be offered to any one participant).

The offer of the grant of an option under this
scheme must be accepted by the grantee within
30 days from the date of grant of that option and,
subject to such modification as the committee
may from time to time determine, accompanied
by payment of SGD1 as consideration.

The price of share options can be exercise at
market, and Market Price Option shall not vest
earlier than Ist anniversary of its date of grant.

36.

SEARAEC 8 ()

(b)

SingXpress Land Ltd (#&)

RZZE——F=F =8 - SingXpress £ 4937 88 I #E
T8 ([ SingXpressHE AR #ERT 8 1) - MR REBAMERT
E IRk s

ETWEHFIER B R T » SingXpressi I A5
ZIEEZERIOFNAER - WETElzEEB/AL
BIESingXpressS (T M EMBE AR 2 TAEES « 1T
B A Bk 8 T (8 FESingXpresssk LA/ E B A
RIZ B EBRIFNITES) ©

IR I& SingXpressFE IR IEET & - ZE FHMEM A BAA]
e BT SR BB - N ERETEITE T
Mz e BREMMSE BT RAEHITRMNEE - 5
2 B B 5 B 38 SingXpress R iZ HHiRI 2 B
BITEBRA15% - Rzt 8|2 EA A - £/
—R2NETSESRBBRHGBEH25% (BRI
1% B8 SingXpressfErZaT 3118 T A 6L T BB AR 7 2
FrEMRBIFTEL A2 - M e g 1T 2 ARG (0
) e

EEANBARR L EREE B30 B AR AL
FETREZBERERY IR ASRELE
BT AR R BRI RENRER ZIEAR -

BREZEBRANTISTE  EHERERETS
RERH BHE R —FRE -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 36. FBRESTEI(E)
(b)  SingXpress Land Ltd (continued) (b)  SingXpress Land Ltd (#&)
Besides, the price of share options can be exercise LN - BERRAE 2 BAR AT AT RRITE - TR B
at discount, and Discount Price Option shall not BENMSERER L AR MM TSRS -
vest earlier than 2nd anniversary of its date of
grant.
No share option was granted under the B SingXpressf& A A2 5T B RN ASK - BEER L
SingXpress Share Option Scheme since it has s
been adopted.
37. RESERVES 37. f#E
Group rEE
The amount of the Group’s reserves and the RAFERBEFE  AEEZFHECEREZEH 2N
movements therein for the current and prior year are R RANGEESERE -
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.
At 31 March 2011 and 2010, assets revaluation reserve RZZE——FR-_ZE—ZTFZA=+—H EEHHHFERE
represents change in carrying amount of owner- EEERAMERAEEATEYEZIREER ZEEE
occupied property when it becomes an investment BE o

property that will be carried at fair value.
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37.

RESERVES (continued)

Company

At 1 April 2009

Open offer (Note 35(b))

Exercise of 2009 Warrants
subscription rights

(Note 35 (a))

Exercise of share options

(Note 35)

[ssue of consideration shares
(Note 35 (c))

Employee share-based
compensation expenses
recognised

Transfer to reserves upon
exercise of share options

Transfer to reserves upon
cancellation of options

Loss for the year

At 31 March 2010 and
1 April 2010

Employee share-based
compensation expenses
recognised

Transfer to reserves upon
lapse of share options

Loss for the year

At 31 March 2011

RZZTHhEMA—A
REBE(W2350))
TE-ZTNFRR

TEE ZRERAE (H7235(a))
T ERARIE (A2235)
BITRERM (H77735(c))

EHERERRN
B
RITRERENEHE
1
S HRRENSRERE

FEBR

RRBERAMERERE
FEER

R-ZZ——F=ZA=1+-8

37. fREGAE)
NG|
Employee
share-based
Share  compensation Warrant  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
EERH
RADRE wERE FAREIRE RHER @t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET FET FET
731,346 4232 5,160 (417,831) 322,907
14,697 - - - 14,697
115 - - - 115
17,743 - - - 17,743
37,685 - - - 37,685
- 303 - - 303
1,814 (1,814) - - -
- (329 - 329 -
- - - (65,884) (65,884)
803,400 2,392 5,160 (483,386) 327,566
- 18,820 - - 18,820
- (217 - - (217
- - - (34,175) (34,175)
803,400 20,995 5,160 (517,561) 311,994
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38. OPERATING LEASES 38. R&EWEE
Group E
(a)  As lessee (@) ERBEARBEA

Minimum lease payments paid under operating
leases during the year:

HK$'000
FET

Premises LIES 1,166

Annual Report 2011

167

FR - REBEQERE 2 ENREBRENK

2010
g5
HK$’000
FT

2,072

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases W
which fall due as follows:

REMEEER - AEEREE N HEERZ
AR EEE AR B RN 2 REREHIE

2011 2010

—B——F —B-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FTHERT

Within one year —FR 816 496
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRAF(REEEMRTF) 320 757
1,136 1,253

The Group leases a number of rented premises
and property, plant and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of one to five years (2010: one to five
years). None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEERBEEHERRE THENEEDE B
BER&E - BONT /B —FERF(ZT—TF
—FERF) - IEEMENESHAER
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38.

OPERATING LEASES (continued) 38. KEHE(H)
Group (continued) REE ()
(b)  As lessor (b) 1EBHHEA
Property rental income earned during the year FAEMELZ MEHRS WA F25,045,0008 T (=F
was HK$25,045,000 (2010: HK$15,023,000) —Z4F 15,023,000/ 7T) ° BRME{E 4 140,630,000
Certain of the Group’s properties held for BLzETHAEEFEERERR ZYEENR
rental purposes, with a carrying amount of FHRAERLE -
HK$140,630,000, have been disposed of since
the end of the reporting period.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RREREAEER  AEEREBFPITENTHESR
had contracted with tenants for the following EREFA -
future minimum lease payments:
2011 2010
—B——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THERT
Within one year —FR 27,153 11,569
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEZERAF(BIEEEME) 18,310 7,462
45,463 19,031
The Group leases its investment properties (Note REERBEEHEELHBELAREY R (M
18) under operating lease arrangements which 18)  REMHN VL HAAMFERF(ZE—F
run for an initial period of two to five years (2010: F:RMFERF)  WHENEHER B AEEE
two to five years), with an option to renew FHFPHEERE s BERMEL - ZFHABEE S
the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as RS - AEFWEARAFERN2.2%(=F—
mutually agreed between the Group and the T 1 2.0%) 2 HE O
respective tenants. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals. The properties are expected
to generate rental yields of 2.2% (2010: 2.0%) on
an ongoing basis.
Company NG|

The Company does not have any significant operating

lease commitments or any future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at
31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010.

W-E——%=A=+-AR-T-TH=/=+—-H"
ARRIRE TR SRR R AEAZ GRS

N—"=

BiE-

TR R UL R 2 A7) R B ER0R -
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39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39.

Group
The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

BAERE

FEME
REENHREREET A2 ERAFENT

2011 2010
—ET——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FH&T
Contracted but not provided in BEETHB ARG B 5 i = B
the consolidated financial statements
— Properties under development for sale _BERIEEYE 116,636 -
Company ¥ NE

The Company does not have any significant
commitments at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010.

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40.

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
of the Group and the Company were as follows:

Guarantees given to financial RERTFHBRRZ
institutions in respect of banking ~ #R{TRLE M)
facilities granted to subsidiaries BB HER R AR

ARAIRZE——F=ZA=Z+—HEZZTE—ZTF=A
=+ — B E( T EAESE -

HREME

REFERARARBEREEER 2HABBEWT ¢

Group Company
PN 3L FAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®——§ C-®-%F -¥-——% CE-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET TERT THET
- - 323,280 251,539

The extent of the facilities utilised as at 31 March
2011 by the subsidiaries guaranteed by the Company
amounted to approximately HK$270,565,000 (2010:
HK$111,035,000).

RZZE——F=A=1+—H ARQRERZMBARE
B AEE%I270,565,000/%8 0 ( —F—=Z4F : 111,035,000/
TT) °
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41.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (“Defined Contribution Scheme”) for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong and Singapore.
The assets of the Defined Contribution Scheme of
Hong Kong are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of trustees. Where there
are employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions. The assets of the Defined Contribution
Scheme of Singapore is regulated and managed by the
Singapore Government.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the rate specified in
the rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect
of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available
to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from these schemes charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid or payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the schemes.

No contribution was forfeited during the year (2010:
Nil).

41.

RRBERGE

AEBEREBBEBRIINKABEREERHEERHIURK
BRI E(EREHE &) - BEERENFE 2 EER
XEARHYEAREEESFRE - WEENESE2H
HARATR H T8 RIFDRU KR B AURE A R B e
ZHER o FONBE BB AT B 2 EEBINRBUTEE &
BIE o

B-ZETTF+_A—BR AEEREBMAEERERM
st dl - BRI CRERIEDE ST BNED
A ATEEFEERBEM - BB B EERS
URFAARESTAEG I BAEEEEDRARKA - RIE
B EIZRA BERERSEARBRAEEZLLX
At BIHR - AEE GBS 82— R ERRZE
ZREMK o WED QUSRI A UBIE R K FERMNZ

R o

% EABIE L 2 RINEMET I H NS WERME - 1R
BEAKEERZETIRACHIEN TES 2HFEE -

FALBHEFBRIMW(ZZ—FF  8) -
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42.

—E-—HZA=+—HILFE

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

For the year ended 31 March 2011

Step acquisition of SingXpress Land Ltd (“SingXpress”)
In August 2010, the Group has undertaken to make
applications in excess of its pro rata entitlement to the
convertible bonds under the rights issue (“Rights Issue”)
of SingXpress Land Ltd and pay for not less than SGD7
million in aggregate principal amount of the convertible
bonds provisionally allotted to the Group of which the
Group has undertaken to take up. The Rights Issue
was completed on 9 November 2010 and the Group
has subscribed for approximately SGD16.2 million in
aggregate principal amount of the convertible bonds.
On 15 November 2010, the Group converted SGD3
million of the convertible bonds into 100,000,000 new
shares of SingXpress Land Ltd and the shareholding
interests have been increased from approximately
33.3% to 51.4% and SingXpress Land Ltd became a
subsidiary of the Company thereafter. Since the Group
increased its shareholdings in SingXpress by acquiring
its shares in open market afterwards, the Group held
approximately 62.7% equity interests of SingXpress as
at 31 March 2011.

SingXpress is a limited liability, which is incorporated
and domiciled in Singapore and publicly traded on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
The principal activities of SingXpress Land Ltd and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as “SingXpress Group”)
are property development, property investment and
properties trading and investment holding.

42.

ES S0

BE_F——F=HA=+—HIFE

& W #ESingXpress Land Ltd ([ SingXpress |)
RZZE—ZFNA AEECAFRFBLER
SingXpress Land Ltd % ([ A% 1) 18 T iz LL 1S 2 A3k
MREHILEE - Wt AEBERE F A8 mANEE B A&mwmiE
Z AR IR AE 75 SN AN & 42 FR R D112 7,000,000 %7 SN TT
HRERZZE-ZTF+-ANATK  FAEEERELRS
#EFE4916,200,00081 M3 2 AR E S - R_T—F4F
+—A+EIHA - AKE 3,000,000 1135 7T 2 AR &5
32 /100,000,000 4% SingXpress Land Ltd 7% 5 + H &
R #)33.3%E E51.4% » It1& SingXpress Land Ltd X /3
RRATZHMELRAE - ARANEEE RSB BN AFRT S
SingXpress i% 17 14 il £ 72 SingXpress 2 &4 + NEE K =
T ——F = f=+—H¥5HESingXpress#162.7 %% ANz

SingXpress BT I sEMAC T K& E 2 BR AT - W
MNEELFEZHGMBRATIAMES  SingXpress Land
Ltd & E 1B R 8] (F5F8[ SingXpress®E @ |) 2 EBEE AV
XER  MERERDMEEBEURLERZER -
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 42, EBEO(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued) BE-E——FZHA=+—HILFEHE)
Step acquisition of SingXpress Land Ltd (“SingXpress”) ZE % W BESingXpress Land Ltd ([ SingXpress|) (#&)
(continued)
Details of identifiable net assets acquired on 15 SingXpressfE BN — T —FF+— A+ A BB 2 7T #
November 2010 and gain on bargain purchase of BB EFEMZBRBRE ZFFBOT ¢
SingXpress Group are as follows:
HK$’000
FTHERT
Consideration RE
Fair value of conversion of convertible bonds H#mA R ES 2 A FE 16,151
Fair value of equity interests in SingXpress Group E S UEB BT A S B A5 SingXpress &
held by the Group before the step acquisition % 2 N E 16,062
32213
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired BRRFINBEAIBIIEEREBCCHIALE
and liabilities assumed
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE k& 281
Investment properties B 63,620
Properties under development for sale HEPIEEE 129,927
Trade and other receivables, B REMBEWTE  Ee Rk
deposits and prepayments TaftRIA 12,461
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABG s eRERE
profit or loss 20
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEMBEIER 47,360
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 REMERRIEL R EE R (11,456)
Deferred taxation IRIER A (387)
Borrowings B (133,470)
Liabilities component of convertible bonds before RSB AR EH E AT 2
elimination of convertible bonds which held AR EAFaER S
by the Group (42,813)
Non-controlling interests (Note 1) iR (A7aE1) (1,176)
Total identifiable net assets AIERIEEFERARE 64,367
Non-controlling interests (Note 2) FEfEfRtEs (A1at2) (31,315)
33,052
Gain on bargain purchase REWE 2 = 839
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEBELEZRESRAER
Acquired cash and cash equivalents W BESingXpress& B 2 IR & K&
in SingXpress Group ReHEEER 47,360
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42.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued)
Step acquisition of SingXpress Land Ltd (“SingXpress”)

(continued)
Note:
1. It represented 20% equity interests of Charlton Residences

Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of SingXpress Land Ltd, which hold
by non-controlling interests on 15 November 2010.

2. It represented 48.6% equity interests of SingXpress Group
which hold by non-controlling interests on 15 November
2010.

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Acquisition of Expats Residences Pte Ltd

On 8 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Expats Residences Pte Ltd (“Expats”)
together with a loan due to Mr. Chan Heng Fai (“Mr.
Chan”) of approximately SGD4.39 million from the
vendor, Mr. Chan at a consideration of approximately
HK$40.7 million. Mr. Chan is a substantial shareholder,
the chairman of the Board of Director and an executive
director of the Company. Expats is principally
engaged in property investment. It was incorporated in
Singapore with limited liability and is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chan. The acquisition has been completed on 5
March 2010.

42.

RBa 0 (A)

BE_FE——F=HA=+—HIFEE)
& W #ESingXpress Land Ltd ([ SingXpress |) ()

Hat -

1. 8 & 7 SingXpress Land Ltd 2 Fff B 22 &) Charlton Residences
Pte LLdR ZZ—ZF+— A+ A BB BIHEREEFE 220%
R AR o

2. HEE M SingXpress N =T —TF+— A+ A BB BIEER
HEETFH 2 48.6% M AN E R ©

BE-—F-—FF-F=+—HIFE

W B8 Expats Residences Pte Ltd

RZE-ZF—-HF/\A - XEELARE4L40,700,0008
TLRE FBREE S A ([ R % 4 | ) Wi Expats Residences
Pte Ltd ([ Expats ] ) & B i 7N & [ 48 R R % & 2 B4
4,390,000%T IETT ° BRAEERAR AT ERR - EFEE
FERINITEDS © ExpatsEERBYEIRE - POET I M
R BERAR - WAHMRSEZERE - ZBREERZ
T-TF=ARATK -
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42.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 42, ¥EBE/H(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued) BE-—E-—ZSF=HA=+—HILFEE)
Acquisition of Expats Residences Pte Ltd (continued) W B8 Expats Residences Pte Ltd (#&)
Details of net identifiable assets acquired on 5 March ExpatsM —ZE—ZF = AR BHKE Al B EEFE K
2010 and gain on bargain purchase of Expats are as HEWERE 2 FBEOT
follows:
HK$’000
THET
Consideration RE
Loan due to Mr. Chan BERRAEEZER 24,355
Issue of shares BTN 16,345
40,700
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired BRAVBTRNEERABEZCHRISH
and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREFHEIEE 18,927
Investment properties TEME 65,523
Deferred taxation IRIERR I (6,421)
Borrowings BE (1,461)
Trade and other payables Z 5 R E M ENFIA (17,730)
Total identifiable net assets AR E R E AR 58,838
Gain on bargain purchase REREB WS (18,138)
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition WBELEZRSRAFE
Acquired cash and cash equivalents g B AT 2 Re &
in subsidiary ReFEIER 18,927
The acquired business did not contribute any revenue BWEERE_T-—TF=A=1+—H18H - FTREZE
or result to the Group for the period from the date of A MR AR B TR E U s S o

acquisition to 31 March 2010.
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RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Group

The Group has entered into the following related
parties transactions with SingXpress prior to the step
acquisition as mentioned in Note 42 to the financial
statement during the year ended 31 March 2011:

() The Group has subscribed for approximately
SGD16.2 million in aggregate principal amount
of the convertible bonds from SingXpress prior
to the step acquisition during the year ended 31
March 2011 (2010: Nil).

(b) Accountancy fee income of approximately
HK$435,000 (2010: HK$244,000) received
from SingXpress.

(c) Consultancy fee income of approximately
HK$156,000 received from SingXpress Realtors
Pte Ltd, an associate of SingXpress, for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

(d) Rental income of approximately HK$84,000
received from Sansui Resorts Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of SingXpress for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

()  Advisory and administrative support fee income
of approximately HK$480,000 (2010:Nil)
received from Sansui Resorts Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of SingXpress.

Apart from the above, the Group did not have any
other significant related parties transactions for the year

ended 31 March 2011.

43.

BEALRS

rEH

HEZZ——F=-A=+—HILFE  FTEERVHRE
B sE42fr il 2 35 2P UL BS 3 77 AT B B2 SingXpresss] 37 51/ 8
BALRS

a) BEZET——F=-ZAZ=Z+—HBLTFE £4£H
REZUWHERTE B SingXpress R AR BT L
16,200,000%T 3% (Z 2 — T4 « ) 2 [ RIRE
%—; °

(b)  ESingXpressit BV 5+ B AU A £9435,0007%8 7T (=
T—T4F : 244,000 7T) °

0 #B#E-_ZT-—ZF+_AZ=Z+—HLFE B
SingXpress 2 Bt 2 A 1= SingXpress Realtors Pte Ltd
U ExRE & A UL A 49156,00078 7T ©

d #HEZZ—ZF+-_A=F+—BHLFE " H
SingXpress 2 2 & [ & /A 7] Sansui Resorts Limited
U ERAE £ 48 A 4984,0008 7T °

(e) B SingXpress 2 & & M B 2 7 Sansui Resorts
Limited S BUEE A 52 7T B2 1 B A U A #9480,00078
T(ZE—FF  FT)-

B bish  AEERBE-_Z——F=A=1+—BILFE
WEEMEMERBEALRS -
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44, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44, S@IA
Categories of financial instruments T AR
Financial assets SEMEE
Group Company
rEE b /NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF —E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTEx FTEx FTEx
Non-current assets ERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets A[ftHES R EE 1,464 1,462 - -
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value BATERFABREZ
through profit or loss SREE 175,417 136,117 163,649 96,753
Loans and receivables: ER R EWFUE -
— Trade and other receivables  —85 K E b EZIAE 31,701 15,345 931 1,630
— Loan receivables —EWER 635 926 - -
— Amounts due from — B RRIRK
subsidiaries - - 613,730 492,417
— Amounts due from associates —H& QAR 172 9,528 - 2,052
— Pledged bank deposits —BERRITER 7,492 3,413 1,531 -
— Bank balances and cash —RITEEBRRIRE 185,071 133,846 107,330 60,383
400,488 299,175 887,171 653,235
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Current liabilities hREAE
Financial liabilities measured at ZE# KA E 2
amortised cost TRAE
— Trade and other payables and —Z 5 K fbfE(+
accruals AR ES B
— Bank overdraft —RITEX
— Borrowings —fEE
— Amounts due to subsidiaries =~ —#&XHMIBAFFE
— Amounts due to associates — KB A RIFIR
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Financial liabilities measured at Z#HEH AT E 2
amortised cost TRAE
— Borrowings —18E
— Convertible bonds — AR ES
— Non-convertible bonds — AR ESH

Z®/——FFR  Annual Report 2011
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44. EWMIAHE)
EHTAZHEG(E)
A==k
Group Company
FEE AN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g-——% -3-%F -%-—-F %%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
42,083 101,160 3,151 2,088
86,486 8,274 86,273 -
216,763 128,457 62,535 31,029
- - 297,992 273,089
515 10 - -
345,847 237,901 449,951 306,206
327,279 47,105 - -
293 - - -
105,633 - 105,633 -
433,205 47,105 105,633 -
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments including
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables,
loan receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
amounts due from associates, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and
accruals, bank overdraft, borrowings, amounts due
to subsidiaries, amounts due to associates, liability
component of convertible bonds and non-convertible
bonds. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments including market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. According to the Group’s written risk
management policies and guidelines, the financial risk
shall be assessed continuously by the management
taken into account of the prevailing conditions of the
financial market and other relevant variables to avoid
excessive concentrations of risk. The Group has not
used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging
purpose. The most significant financial risks to which
the Group is exposed to are described below.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Japan and North America with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in Hong Kong dollars,
Singapore dollars, Japanese Yen and United States
dollars respectively. Foreign currency risk arises from
financial assets, liabilities and transactions which were
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

44.

SRMIAE)
HBEREEREREE

AEETZERTASEARBESREE - RO FER
ABHZeREE - BEHNEMBKFOR - BEER -
BARRIRNK - BERRRK - BEMBITER - |RITHER
kA  BHREMENFRULEER  RITEX
B - BRMBRARKIA - EREERRFIR - AHERE
HZBERD RIFTBREES - 2R TAFBERSMEA
B BZEFeRTAABZRERBETSAR(IMNER
B MEEREERER)  FERBRLTBHESER R
BAKE EERREERRNES  EEEREEESR
MIRMR L EMAREE - HEFEVHRR - AR
BBEED ARBAREAEFAARNE 2 TETARHE
TR - AREAR 2 ZEARMERBREALT o

SN LB

AREBTZREE ¥ - AARIEZMEEER - K
MARBLNETT - FIETT - AERETHEREE - 5b
KRhARESERNEEEANERIIEZERE
E ARERXHEL - EREBRVEZEINERR  HES
B WKEEEHERINERR o



Z®/——FFR  Annual Report 2011
179
L] L]
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 35 25 M
HE-T——F=A=1+—HIEFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, SBMITAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBEBREERERKE (&)
(continued)
Currency risk (continued) SRR (4E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies R EEHEEER @ LINESIEZEBEEREK ARG
which denominated monetary assets and monetary FREIELAT -
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:
Group Company
r5E ENE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—BE-——fF —E-ZF —E——F —E-2F
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTHERT FTET THET TET
Net financial assets SREETE
Hong Kong dollars (HK$) BT(ET) 1,107 22,914 - -
Singapore dollars (SGD) s T R 3R 7T ) 58 61,752 58 46,685
Japanese Yen (JPY) HE(RE) 9 1,027 - 911
United States dollars (USD) EYME) 5,399 30,529 719 12,034
Australian dollars (AUD) BT ORT) 3,250 2,794 - -
Renminbi (RMB) ARE(ARSE) - - - -
Canadian dollars (CAD) () 14,772 - - -
24,505 119,016 777 59,630
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, SBMITAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBEBREERERKE (&)
(continued)
Currency risk (continued) SRR (4E)
The Group is mainly exposed to HK$, USD, SGD REE E ERESTT - 2T - FINEITT RANTT 2 B
and CAD. The following table details the Group’s RAFNAEE 2 BEREDHT - ZATREET %TE %ﬁ
sensitivity analysis, the analysis assumes a 5% increase TR INTR AT BIFHEREZE5% -+ 0PrA i B
and decrease in HK$, USD, SGD and CAD against the (RIFE o S%AATEEIE A B RNIPHREINE R T A
HKS$, with all other variable held constant. 5% is the ZHRELL R Ift%ﬁfiﬁﬁﬁi—r—ﬂ#&%,ﬁﬂ Ep=As
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency HERA gL EESH 2 - RESTEBRERASEE
risk internally to key management personnel and SEBEEINAINETIEZRFRIEE  URFRIZ
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably 5%, R B EY FHBREHRE K o
possible change in foreign exchange rates until the next
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding items denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currencies of the Group
entities and adjusts their translation at the year end for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
HKS$ Impact USD Impact SGD Impact CAD Impact Total Impact
BreE EneRE Eipie bk 7 1d 7 Faa
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“%--% _T-TFf -B--§ _T-%F =Z--f _T-%%F ZB--f _B-TF C-B--§ _T-IF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TER Tin TER TR TER TR TER TR TR TR
Profit after IR
income tax byl 45 939 m 1,277 2 2,594 620 - 889 4810
As HK$ is linked to USD, the Group does not have ES TN - REBRZEER W ESAINERR

material exchange risk on such currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates mainly arises from bank borrowings.
Bank borrowings arranged at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
At 31 March 2011, approximately 97% (2010: 64%)
of the bank borrowings bore interest at floating rates.
The interest rate and repayment terms of the bank

borrowings outstanding at year end are disclosed in
Note 30.

A= @R

AEBEBZRARKELREREERN EFITIEFREB)
2. AREFMISHEREHERFEBREBITHEE - UF
B EREEFNRZHE 2 RITEEESEAEE D BIAZ
ReneEfERBRLkATFERNERE RZTE—F=4
=+—H  H97%(ZF—FF : 64%) 2 RITIEELFE)
FIREE - REREKREEZRITEE ZFIR REEER
R RE30 3 EE o



s

Annual Report 2011

181

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011

BA R AR BT

BHE

44.

—E-—HZA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group has exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk through the impact of the rate changes on bank
balances which are carried at variable interest rate.

The directors consider the Group’s exposure of the
bank deposits to fair value interest rate risk is not
significant as interest bearing bank deposits at fixed rate
are within short maturity periods in general.

At 31 March 2011, if interest rates had increased or
decreased by 1% and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after income tax for
the year and accumulated losses would increase or
decrease by approximately HK$5,440,000 (2010:
HK$1,756,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to floating interest rates of the
floating rate bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed investments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

44.

SRMIAE)
BB EEEE R BEREE(E)
MERER(F)

BT BN RS B ZRITEBRNEREE - WAREAT
BenerxmE

EFRA  MREETFRIA M B TEREE 3
R EE  MAEE 2 ROTERARSE AT ENEAR
UTEX -

RZZE——F=A=+—H  M{FARLHKTEI% @
B EMEERENE  AASEARFERASHERT
K B5t BB A58 ek 4 495,440,000 L (ZF — T4 ¢
1,756,000/ 7C) ° b BHARARNEEEEZ B F| RRITIE
B2 FEF R -

ERERE
AEBEAZRBRAFEFABRLIDBRAEREEZ LT
RESRZ ERRER



Xpress Group Limited FPREBEFRAE

182

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011

B R AR B

BE_ZT——F=A=t+—HILFE

44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Price risk (continued)

Management’s best estimate of the effect on the
Group’s profit after income tax due to a reasonably
possible change in the relevant stock market index,
with all other variables held constant, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows (in practice, the actual
trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis
below and the difference could be material):

44.

SRMIAE)
BIHBEEEEREREKE (&)
BERER(E)

RBEHRGER  EEERAEREFM SRRz EE
ERC(ERMEEMBHES TR ZERT) BAREERH
BEMNZ REGFTIO N ERL AEXSERTEEEERIN
THREAMMEMEEREREBEKX) :

2011 2010
—B——F —EB-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TER
Increase (decrease) in profit after income tax  BRETISFLEEFIZ I Od)
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB —BEEH
+30% +30% 36,702 34,554
~30% ~30% (36,702) (34.554)
Singapore — Straits Times Index TN — IR IR IS 2K
+20% +20% 8,732 3,435
—20% -20% (8,732) (3,435)
Fair value DA

All financial instruments are carried at amount not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2011 and 2010.

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group. The carrying
amounts of available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from
associates, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets. The carrying amounts
of these financial assets presented in the statements
of financial position are net of impairment losses, if
any. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

NZB-——FR_Z-ZTF=—A=+—H ELHRIA
ZHREERREE NP ETEERESR -

FERR

REEHREER  AREAZZERERERARBEER
SERXSHFRERBTEERAEBEIREMEERME
SUBER AHEESREE  RAFEFARREZ
TREE  BHHREMEKFIE  BRER  BEQRR
P CEMRIOTERERRTERZEEEELAEERES
BMEEARZBRREERR - RMBRRBREN 2%E
SREEZFRAECHRRESRE(NE) ERECDARE
EHR - WHATAR 2 2 S EERBETRERE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, loan receivables
and amounts due from associates, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring
credit and loan receivables over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtors’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the debtors as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the debtors operates. Trade receivables are due within
60 days from the date of billing. The Group obtains
collateral from customers in respect of trade receivables
and loan receivables.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-ratings agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables and loan receivables are set out in
Notes 27 and 23, respectively.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the directors
monitor and maintain a level of bank balances deemed
adequate to finance the Group’s operations investment
opportunities and expected expansion. The Group
finances its working capital requirements mainly by the
funds generated from operations and from fund raising
activities such as placement of new shares and issuance
of warrants.

44.

SRMIE(H)
BIBEREE R ERBKE (&)
FERR (&)

B S MEMBYGIE - BREEREBERATRAME
HMBERERERBRE BB EBE BT ETER
SR - ZEHEZERIET NEED IR 2 ERT
BEBRSZERES  UEBETZRBBEARETEE
B KBRS - B HRUKIRB REREFORAE
H o REERLE 5 8 UGOR K R E S B P U R R o

HRZSEFHRBEREEFRRBTEZSERMRZ
RiT RELBRSFERAZEERRER

AEBREGNEMBWRIBBNALEBRERMEELEZEE
[R 2 — 2 E E R BB AN FE27 23 °

REBESEM

REERBDESRRMS  EFERTERKEARHEN
AEBEKSRERG REMBRZRITERKF - XEH
ITEFBREMELZES REE RS (IR EH D K
BITRBREE)MS2ESRNELEEET R -
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, SBMITAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies B EE EE R ERBE(E)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REETRM(E)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s RBEHEEER  AEEepBE2&NE A
financial liabilities have contractual maturities which T
are summarised belowr:

At 31 March 2011 R-B——F=A=+—H
Weighted
average Total
effective ~ Less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate lyear 1-2years 2-Syears Over5years  cash flows amounts
¥ REB
BBRAE PR-F —EWF “ERF IENE BERELE REE
%  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000
T TiEn Fign T T T
Trade and other payables 25 R EMEMFUE
and accruals ARIETER 42,083 - - - 42,083 42,083
Bank overdraft RITEX 0.8-2 88,213 - - - 88,213 86,486
Borrowings (Note) fEEH2) 0.13-3.18 223,190 21,593 164,055 177,745 586,583 544,042
Amounts due to associates £ REE L FF 515 - - - 515 515
Convertible bonds AARES 15.1 45 52 399 - 496 293
Non-convertible bonds FARRES 15 15,845 15,845 152,300 - 183,990 105,633
369,891 37,490 316,754 177,745 901,880 779,052
At 31 March 2010 RZE—FTF=A=+—H
Weighted
average Total
effective  Less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate Iyear 1-2years 2-Syears OverSyears  cash flows amounts
MEFH REEB
BERRNZE  OR-F  -E@E ZEIf  IENUL RERELH REE
%  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T T TR TR TR
Trade and other payables and & 5 & E B 50B LA
accruals REHER 101,160 - - - 101,160 101,160
Bank overdraft RITEX 0.12 8,284 - - - 8,284 8,274
Borrowings (Note) fEE At 0.12-5.93 131,111 8,801 19,581 32,180 191,673 175,562
Amounts due to associates £ REE L AR 10 - - - 10 10
240,565 8,301 19,581 32,180 301,127 285,006
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The above contractual maturities reflect the
undiscounted cash flows, which may differ to the
carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the
reporting period.

Note:

Included in interest-bearing bank loans of the Group are term loans
with an aggregate principal amounting to HK$121,911,000 (2010:
HK$40,496,000) of which the respective loan agreements contain
a repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the unconditional
right to call the loans at any time and therefore, for the purpose
of the above maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on
demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe
that these loans will be called in their entirely within 12 months,
and they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with
the maturity dates as set out in the respective loan agreements.
This evaluation was made considering: the financial position of
the Group at the date of approval of the financial statements; the
Group’s compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events
of default, and the fact that the Group have made all previously
scheduled repayments on time.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

J the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and
ask prices respectively; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

44.

SRMIAE)

BIBEREEEERBKE (&)

REBESEME)
BRANIHALSRMEERERE - RFFHRHEHMHE
EEAZAEREE -

Hisz -

AEENERTERBERSLEA121,911,0008 L (= —FF ¢
40,496,000 7T) 2 EEH - BEE R RN A REGER - TR
FERMETBEREMEN Al - Bt EMBBERmE - RESEA
MREf] -

BEA LG ERREXFERTE2BN12EANES - MR
RAEEFEREEERGAMRT B HEE - WEFEEEREER
BEMTBSIRRE B 22BN - AEEETERZOBER - TREHE
HARAEEBE - EERFERMEL ©

AT
SHAERSMAEATEENTHRETE -

. MAESREEREGEERERRBEMSEE 22/
BEREBEBRAFENINNSETSMBREAR
EURREEE K

e HppeREELEBRAGBIAFEDRBEENMKERR
EREDMZ AREERN - RAABEE RIS
RHERERXZEMBUT A2 REETE -
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Fair value (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

44.

SRMIAE)
BB EEEE R BEREE(E)
DFE(HE)

TREFNEHZAFERVTBRENTEZ SR T AMET
AT RESRTANBEEERSHE AT ERESE
BE—E=H -

- F-RAVEFEEAREERBBEERTISZ
BECREHE)MELS -

- F_RATEMAERRRES AR ER(ANZE
RIXER(AHEREL)BEMBZEEREER
ANECRERINELS -

- FMATEFEREBRELIREBEMAETS
BEzEEXABERABCRIFEEMSEAEBEM
A ERMAELS -
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44. SRWIAE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Fair value (continued)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Non-derivative financial assets

held for trading

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Non-derivative financial assets

held for trading

During the year ended 31 March 2011, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1

T ——FFR Annual Report 2011
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BIBREEEEZEREE (&)
ATEE)
2011
—E——
BRATFEFABEZ
SMEE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—® ER E=H Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FERT FTERT
HIEEEZ
T CRMEE 175,417 - - 175,417
2010
—E-EF
BAFREFABERZ
SHMEE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B ot 1 BE=H Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
BHIEEE 2 IFITE
SREE 136,117 - - 136,117

and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

HE"Z——F=A=+—HIFE SF—HLRE_KH
WEAHEFEZEE  TEEARELE = -
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45.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. EXRBER
The Group’s capital management objectives are: REBEZEARERERER
- to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a - BRAEERELE 28N
going concern
- to provide an adequate return to shareholder — IRMHIEE B TR R
The Directors of the Company also balance its overall RARZEZTNER T EHELBERERE - REFNFEE
capital structure periodically. In order to maintain or B  AEBFTRERARN TRRE 2RSSR - FRE
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust TRABBAEE - MBERERSHRMZFIRE ZBWAIS
the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, new BHAEDEERRITES 2BEBAER - KATZEET
shares issue as well as of warrants. The Directors of HEREERPBEFTIERERZE KR -
the Company will also consider the raise of long-
term borrowings as second resource of capital when
investment opportunities arise and the return of such
investments will justify the cost of debts from the
borrowings and bank overdraft.
2011 2010
—B——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THERT
Debt afiE 736,454 183,836
Bank balances and cash and IRITAEER IR S IA
pledged bank deposits EHEMRITER (192,563) (137,259)
Net debt =L 543,891 46,577
Equity represented by total equity excluding RABMBER 2#EE  TEEF
non-controlling interests FEiERRER 869,605 772,679
Net debt to equity ratio BEXEELR 63% 6%

The Directors of the Company also endeavour to
ensure the steady and reliable cash flow from the
normal business operation.

ARBZEEZNB RO BEHLETRBENFELZ

Y-}
RERE °
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46.

47.

MAJOR NON CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group
converted SGD3 million of the convertible bonds
into 100 million shares of SingXpress Land Ltd,
and shareholding interests has been increased from
approximately 33.3% to 51.4% in result of step
acquisition. Details disclosed in Note 42 to this financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, acquisition of
100% equity interests in Expats amounting to HK$40.7
million was settled by issuance of share capital of the
Company. Details disclosed in Note 42 to this financial
statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) As set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 15 April 2011, Ichi Ni San Enterprises
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (“Agreement”) with [PT 7 Company
Limited to dispose the properties situated at
5th Floor, Island Place Tower, Island Place, 510
King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong at an
aggregate consideration of HK$140,630,000. The
transaction has been completed on 20 May 2011.

46.

47.

FTEFRERS

HE-_Z——FZAZ+ALEE KAEBEHEE
3,000,000 A0 # 7T 2 A] #2 j% f& % .32 /& 100,000,000 %
SingXpress Land Ltdi& 7 - H&E F Uk - EREHR LD
33.3%IEINES51.4% © BRAFIBEHN AN EIREMET42 -

BHE—ZT—ZF_A=+—HIFE ' WEExpats® 2%
ARETR 2 FIAH40,700,0008 70 @ THiBE BEITARQRIRA
B - BREFBEN AR BRKM 742 o

BEHMEKER

(a) HBUARFHBHAE-ZT——FNUNA+HEBAZAMET
H - ARF) 22 ENERFIchi Ni San Enterprises
Company Limited #2 [PT 7 Company Limited 5] 32
BE ([ Hha]) - UAEHRE140,630,0008 THE
UREBILBHEESIORBERNBERNESEZY
X oZRHGNZE——FRAZTHTEK °



Xpress Group Limited FPREBEFRAE

190

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2011

BA R AR B E

BE_ZT——F=A=t+—HILFE

47.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(b)

(<)

As set out in the Company’s circular dated 1
February 2011, the freehold site in Waldorf
Mansions, Balestier Road in Singapore with 16
apartment units were purchased by the Group
for a price of SGD21,000,000 (approximately
HK$124,530,000). The Group had decided to
redevelop the site into a new condominum block
for sale and would take an estimated 2 years to
complete. The transaction has been completed
on 28 April 2011.

On 31 May 2011, SingXpress Land (Pasir Ris)
Pte Ltd (“SXLPRL"), a wholly owned subsidiary
of SingXpress, and Kay Lim Holdings Pte
Limited (“Kay Lim”) have jointly participated in a
tender relating to the DBSS Project and received
the provisional tender results on the same date.
The land parcel located at Pasir Ris Central/Pasir
Ris Drive 1 for Public Housing Development
in Singapore (“Land”) has been awarded to
SXLPRL and Kay Lim on 3 June 2011. The
acquisition price for the Land is SGD123.88
million (approximately HK$780.44 million).
SXLPRL and Kay Lim will participate in the
joint acquisition and development of the DBSS
Project through the joint-venture company in the
equity proportion of 80% and 20% respectively.
The acquisition will constitute a very substantial
acquisition for the Company and consequently
are subject to notification, publication and
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For the details,
please refer to the Company announcement
dated 8 June 2011.

47.

BREMEKRERA)

(b)

(©)

BMAMA—T——F - B ZBEAE - A&
[ :A21,000,000% A13% 7T (#7124,530,000/8 7T ) 2 (&
TR EE ALIIHT N3 Balestier Road Bk A EfE 7 i
RNEIEEEEN - NEBEREGZMBERER
—EHABAELE G FEMFRERI - %
RGWR_E——FN/ =+ NHEK °

RZE——FAHA=+—H ' SingXpress Z &
& Mff B A 7 SingXpress Land (Pasir Ris) Pte Ltd
([SXLPRL])&2Kay Lim Holdings Pte Limited([ Kay
Lim]) £ E2EFEIRE ARG - EEMEETS1E
B AR AR ERIER o ZIBHA M Pasir Ris
Central/Pasir Ris Drive 1 * RETIEIEA HFEE 3
ER&([L£i]) o SXLPRLEKay Limf —Z——14F
NAZREE L - T2 WHEER123,880,000%7
BR3 7T (49780,440,00078 7T ) ° SXLPRLEEKay Lim
1 53 RIFZ R Lt 5180% [ 20% 35 1B & & A R A 2
HUCHE R R RET - BIEMEEETEEE - B
BN ART ZIEEEAWE - AMAEST EmR
BIE4ZEETEBEBE - AMAREIEZHRE °
HEELHARTRIRSA=E——F ANAZA
ﬁﬁ °
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48.

—E——F=A=t+—HItEE

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in Note 2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of new and
revised HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations during the current year, the accounting
treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been revised
to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly,
certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation
and accounting treatment.

48.

bBHF

A TGRS T2 — P - AR AFERAFET L
BRI RAM B RE LA RBEM B REERZETARR
B UBHmRTNETHEEREHRZETREREICT
BR] - ARFEFRE - Bt - ETHREFREFR IR
By MEARFE 2 25| R EFtRE—5 -
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Financial Summary

MR

Results

Revenue
Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit (loss) for the year

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities
Non-controlling interests

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

FRu A (EE)

FE1G -
ZA/NCIE 2SN
IR R

FEBEN(ER)

BEERERE

REE
mas
ES g 5o

RATRERA
PEfS R

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLHEE

(Restated)
(E31)
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
=B —T-TF _TTNF —TTN\F _—TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FAT FH&T FAT
75,321 77013 1,112,218 1,430,713 689,184
51,282 190,074 (111,587) 9315 16,081
45,417 191,005  (111,587) 12,229 40,112
5,865 (1) - (2,914)  (24,031)
51,282 190,074  (111,587) 9,315 16,081

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

(Restated)  (Restated)
(E31) (&51)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F =ZZ=-TF ZTThF ZTTNF ZTTtHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FAT FH&T FAT
1,796,867 1,138,823 578,072 939,821 923,583
(894,493)  (366,144)  (150,337)  (380,151)  (355,976)
(32,769) - G1) (2,332) (39,024
869,605 772,679 427,704 557,338 528,583
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Particulars of Major Properties
As at 31 March 2011
FTEVFBE
RZE——F=A=+—H
PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE BRPGEYE
Estimate  Estimated
Stage of Land gross floor  completion Effective
Location completion area area date % held Type Lease term
fat
2 TIRR TEE AHEEERE TIAS BEREGE(%) E kY
Foh Pin Mansion, In design stage 34,154 sq. ft. 46,199 sq. ft. 2013 80% Residential ~ Freehold
No. 1 Charlton Road, Bl 34154FFR 4619FHR —T-=% (Ex=a KAERE
Singapore 539548
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REME
Gross Effective
Location area % held Type Lease term
i HEE BEREEE(%) Ehl iR
No.883 North Bridge Road, Shop on 34,760 sq. ft. 100% Home Office Long-term lease
1/F. and 32 Home Office 34,760F 'R FKEMDE KAL)
Units on various floors,
Southbank, Singapore 198785
No. 200 Jalan Sultan, #08-11 2,378.96 sq. m. 100% Office premises Long-term lease
Textile Centre, Singapore 199018 2,378.96F 75K MAEYE REHL
No. 239 Arcadia Road, #03-04 6,566 sq. ft. 100% Apartment Long-term lease
The Arcadia, Singapore 289845 6,566 R BT REIFHA
No. 237 Arcadia Road, #05-01, 3,757 sq. ft. 100% Apartment Long-term lease
The Arcadia, Singapore 289844 3,757 F AR BAT REIFEA
Shophouse No.35 North Canal Road, 4,844 sq. ft. 100% Office premises Medium-term lease
Singapore 059291 4,844 F 7R WMREYE HERTRAY
No.8 Eu Tong Sen Street, 1,195 sq. ft. 100% Office premises Long-term lease
#23-81 The Centre, 1195757 R MREME D

Singapore 059818
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Location

1o Bk

8 Nos. of Residential Units,
Dakota Residences,
34-42 Dakota Crescent,
Singapore 399939

5/F., Island Place Tower, Island Place,
No. 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

BRI AREESIRBERBENESE

4 units on various floor, Amoy Gardens,
No. 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

BBNRNELTEBETTRAALEE
TREB4EZER

7 units on various floor, Parkland Villas,
No. 1 Tuen On Lane,
Tuen Mun, New Territories,

Hong Kong
BRAMARPIEL BIRBARE
TREETEER

6 units on various floor, Beneville,
No. 18 Tuen Kwai Road,
Tuen Mun, New Territories,
Hong Kong

BRI R HPIEER1SERF I
TR E6EE AL

2 units on various floor,
Affluence Garden,
No. 33 Tsing Chung Koon Road,
Tuen Mun, New Territories,
Hong Kong

BAM AT ENEEIRELER
TEERE2EER

Gross

area

HEE
14,682 sq. ft.

14,682F 7R

20,090 sq. ft.
20,090 R

1,821 sq. ft.
1,821F AR

3,881 sq. ft.
3,881 F R

3,460 sq. ft.
3,460F R

1,015 sq. ft.
1,015 53R

Effective
% held
BEREERE (%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type
8al

Apartment

B

Office premises

MREYE

Apartment
BT

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Lease term

=k

Long-term lease

D

Medium-term lease

FEIRE A

Medium-term lease

A

Medium-term lease

REITEA

Medium-term lease

REIREA

Medium-term lease

REIFE A
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Location

1o Bk

11 units on various floor,
Tsuen Wan Centre,
Nos. 88-105 Tsuen King Circuit,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong
EAMALEERESS- 10558 EEH L
TEEREEN
30/F and Carpark No. C8 on
2nd Carparking Floor,
Wyndham Place,
No.44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong
BBPREMGM4FEREES L3012
K2 FE 5 CRR L

Parcels of Land located at 671-180-012,
013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018
Desert Hot Springs,
Country of Riverside,
State of California,
92503, U.S.A.

Townhouse unit on Strata Lot 7,
No. 1281 Alberni Street,
District Lot 85 District,
Strata Plan LMS3094,

City of Vancouver,
Canada

Car Parking Spaces Nos. 22, 23,
24 on Lower Ground Floor,
Inverness Villa,
No. 22 Inverness Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
FRNEE S LE225,
FESCRIEM 22 + 23 - 24578 M1

The Hamilton, 1-238, Nishi 15-chome,
Minami 060-0061 1-jo, Chuo-ku,
Sapporo, Hokkaido, Japan

Gross

area

BEE

4,810 sq. ft.
4 810F AR

3,480 sq. ft.
3,480 F 7R

67.5 acres/
273,200 sq. m./
2,940,300 sq. ft.
67.581,
273,200 75K,/
2,940,300F 7R

1,572 sq. ft.
1,572 AR

30sq. m./
322 sq. ft.
307K/
322 AR

3,209 sq. m.
3,209 77K

Effective
% held
BEREERE(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

—H R

Type
8hl

Apartment
B

Office premises and
Car Parking space

E/NELYE IS EE

Vacant land
EELH

Vacant

go
-

Car parking space
Bfy

Hotel
BIE

Annual Report 2011
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Lease term
=k

Medium-term lease

REITEA

Long-term lease

AL

Freehold
L

Freehold
KAFERE

Medium-term lease

A

Freehold
AR
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LAND AND BUILDINGS

Location

1%

24/F and Carpark No. C12 on
3rd Carparking Floor, Wyndham Place,
No. 44 Wyndham Street, Central,
Hong Kong
ERPREREM4REREES D241
RIBFEESCI2SREN

Aizuya, 733 Shiobara,
Nasu-shiobara City,
Tochigi 329-2921, Japan

Miyazaki Hotel Plaza,
1-1, Kawahara-cho,
Miyazaki, Miyazaki 880-0866,
Japan

T RETF

Gross

area

BER

3,480 sq. ft.
3,480F /5 R

3,152 sq. m.
3,152 5K

17,721 sq. m.
17,721 75k

Effective
% held
EREERE(%)

100%

100%

100%

Type
Bhl

Office premises and
car parking space

E/NELYEJNEE

Hotel

BE

Hotel
BIE

Lease term

=)

Long-term lease

D

Freehold
AR

Freehold
KA



Track Record of Projects Completed
by Xpress Group over 50 Years

FRESENEES50F7TMZIER

Hong Kong

Housing Estates and Home Ownership
Schemes (“H.O.S”)

Butterfly Estate, Phase V, H.O.S., Hong Kong
Cheung Ching Estate Phase II Extension,

Hong Kong

Cho Yiu Estate, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate, Phase IIA, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate, Phase 1IB, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate, Phase 11, Hong Kong

Choi Wan Estate, Phase IV, Hong Kong

Fu Shan Estate, Hong Kong

Kwun Tong Central H.O.S., Hong Kong
Lower Wong Tai Sin Estate, Phase III, Hong Kong
Po On Market & H.O.S., Hong Kong

R.AF. Kai Tak Estate, Phase I & I, Hong Kong
Shek Wu Hui Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong

Sun Chui Estate, Phase I1I, Hong Kong

Tai Yuen Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong

Tsing Yi Estate, Phase I, H.O.S., Hong Kong
Tsing Yi Tiger’s Head Village Resite, Hong Kong
Tung Tau Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong

Wang Tau Home Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong
Wo Che Estate, Hong Kong

Wong Kong Shan Estate, Phase I, Hong Kong
Wong Kong Shan Estate, Phase III, Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Factories

Cheung Sha Wan Flatted Factory, Hong Kong
Fo Tan Yeuk Flatted Factory, Hong Kong
Keng Fong Industrial Building, Hong Kong
Kowloon Bay Flatted Factory, Hong Kong

o]
AHEREREEFHEAEEE S
AW RIS T R EA T
EFRRFWE _HIEETE

EBEZED
FBREWE _HA
BETEWE B
BBV EBE=H
EER T E I
FR B
EEBEREEES

FRAEAMTE =4
EERLEMREREE
BRRIEmE— —H
BEOWIETRSE —H
EBFTRUE =
BEARTTIBSE —H]
EBFREE —HEEF2
BERFREAUN
EBREBIPE—H
AR TS — 5]
EERED

AR LTS —H

& E M ILTE =

Bk

TR
ERRDEDETR
BENRHDETH
BRRBETXEXRE
BENEEDETH
BRLBEIERE
BEEEE TR
EBHFIRmITED B T

&8

E3=2)

BB L81E217-2235
ERBERREF222-2245

Kwai Chung Industrial Building, Hong Kong
Kwong Luen Tai factory, Hong Kong
Tuen Mun Area 9, Flatted Factory, Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Residential

217-223 Shanghai Street, Hong Kong
222-224 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong
Cedar Apartments, Hong Kong

Chea Jun House, Hong Kong

Inverness Villas, Hong Kong

Kin Fook Mansions, Hong Kong

King Lam Apartments, Hong Kong
Moreton Terrace, Hong Kong

Rhenish Mansions, Hong Kong

Tak Yan Mansion, Hong Kong
Townhouses at 26 Shouson Hill Road, Hong Kong
Tung Shan Villas, Hong Kong

Villa Dorado, Hong Kong

Y.Y. Mansions, Hong Kong

Yik Kwan Villas, Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Offices and Commercial Buildings

Dao Heng Bank Building, Hong Kong

Tai Lee Building, Hong Kong

Tak Yan Commercial Building, Hong Kong
Choi Wan Estate Community Centre, Hong Kong
Fire Services Headquarter, Tsim Sha Tsui East,
Hong Kong

Judiciary Building, Gascoigne Road, Hong Kong
Kai Tak Airport, 747 Nose-in-pier No. 1727 Bus
Docks, Hong Kong

EHABME A B (Cedar Apartments)
BERYIE

EBIE RIE
BEERAE
BEBENLE

BBEES

BBLERE

BEECKE
ABEFILTE2658 BRI 2
HBERLRIE
BEBEERIE
BAERBCKE

BIETAIL

)

BERE
BBETRITRE
BBANE
EBECHERNE
BT EMEP O
BERREER
R MLEEREAE

& 7 RIU1E # 35 747 Nose-in-pier No. 1727 Bus

Docks
BBRERIS R ERETIE
EARMERSRERERETIR
EBZFENTS.DEE
ERFEAEE/MBRAE
EAL+TEHMRBF O
AEEYWH3D [@(Area 3D)H £
BB HART
EVEIEF SR A 22 R it [ A0
TETRAEERFAE
EAZLELEFEISRBHIIER

Kai Tak Airport Terminal Building, Extension,
Hong Kong

Kai Tak Airport Terminal Building, Fitting Out
work, Hong Kong

Kwai Chung N.T.S.D. Garage, Hong Kong

Ngau Tau Kok Housing / Marketing Complex,
Hong Kong

Red Cross Blood Transfusion Centre, Hong Kong
Secondary School, Area 3D, Shatin, Hong Kong
Shatin Lawcourt, Hong Kong

Shun Lee Estate, Secondary School & Community
Centre, Hong Kong

To Kwa Wan Market and Government Office,
Hong Kong

Tsuen Wan Multi-storey Carpark & Transport
Interchange, Hong Kong

Opverseas Project

United States of America

Townhouses, Monterey Park, California
Condominiums, Alhambra, California
Townhouses, Alhambra, California

Canada
Windsor Gardens, Vancouver, Canada
Ladner Pointe, Delta, B.C., Canada

Malaysia
Sri Tunku, luxury condominiums, Malaysia

BHMER

e
EEINEF N AR TERE
E IR VNN
SEEI N U 2= FR RSB AR E

mEX
MeEXRTERFTEE
g AR5 BB = b 28 = A M Ladner Pointe

BRADR
BRAEREQNE AESri Tunku
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